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EXECUTIVE SUMMARY/PROJECT PROPOSAL‘




Fannie Mae Stewart Village Executive Summary

Blackland Community Development Corporation (BCDC)'s Fannie Mae Stewart Village will
consist of 2.5 lots on the north side of the block on East 22'd Street between Poquito St. and
Chicon St. The address is 1906 E. 22" St.

City of Austin, through an RHDA grant has given BCDC a total of $40,000 for pre-development
costs.

BCDC owns the half block and two of the lots, 1904 and 1908, have already been developed and
are the site of two duplexes that are homes to four low-income households.

BCDC has constructed a community center, the Fannie Mae Stewart Community Conservatory,
and nine raised-bed gardens at 1900 and 1902 E. 22.

The project is [ocated in an area that is close to jobs downtown and at the University of Texas
and is well-served with transit options: pedestrian, bicycling and public transportation.

The project will provide eight new homes on vacant BCDC property.
All units will serve households under 50% of MFI.

The site was rezoned six years ago from SF-3 to MF-4 and a site plan is presently under review by
various city departments. It was designated S.M.A.R.T I-housing five years ago.

The apartments will consist of two, four-unit mull-family structures. Four of these will be two-
bedroom homes designed to provide affordable housing for very low-income families.

There wilt be four, one-bedroom units for very low-income people with disabilities and elderly.
Al units are eligible for housing voucher recipients. Four of the units, two two-bedroom and two
one-bedroom, will be fully compliant on the first floor according to Uniform Federal Accessibility

Standards (UFAS).

BDCD has applied for the full cost of construction for the project.

Fannie Mae Stewart Village — Sustainability Features and Facilities
BCDC is excited to include several unigue feature in the project:
* Stewart Community Conservatory where we will teach domestic arts and crafts such as

canning, cooking, quitting, gardening, and arts and crafts. In 2018, we hosted 383
community meetings there.




* Community gardens and an orchard, watered with water harvested from the roots of the
Multi-family units and the conservatory and stored in a historic cistern built by the
Swedish farmers, circa 1890.

* Passive energy systems to include wind and solar energy.

Blackland Community Development Corporation

The Blackland Community Development Corporation (BCDC) was incorporated in August
1983 as a non-profit, 501(c){3) corporation in the State of Texas. The boundaries of the
Blackland Neighborhood are defined as Comal St. on the west, Chestnut St. on the east,
MLK Jr. Blvd. on the south and Manor Road on the north.

The BCDC Mission is to foster a safe, sustainable, inclusive community that strives for social
equity by preserving and enhancing the stock of affordable housing and providing
supportive programs for Blackland residents.

BDCD has a long history in community and neighborhood development. BCDC has a twenty-
year history of providing food (vegetable and dairy products}) to the Blackland
neighborhood residents. The Weliness Committee has for the last two years provided
knowledge of health care and wellness to the Blackland residents. Committee members
have received information on Advanced Directives, Acupuncture, Caregiving, HIPPA
training, etc. BCDC has provided in partnership with the City of Austin, the Miracle Park
experience for the Blackiand residents. BCDC has provide the Domino Trail through the
neighborhood to walk and enjoy the Blackland neighborhood.

BCDC has emergency preparedness plans that include 1) having a solar powered
refrigerator for medication, 2) phone tree to disseminate information 3) On call crew to
remove downed trees/limbs 4) Developing important emergency numbers sheet to keep in
kitchen. BCDC hosts numerous celebrations throughout the year for the BCDC tenants.
BCDC has sponsored art classes to children and their parents. BDCD publishes and
distributes a monthly neighborhood newsletter, The Blackland Miracle to the Blackland
Neighborhood.

Blackland CDC Overview
What BCDC does:

e Provide rental affordable rental housing to residents at or below 60% MFI.
e As financially feasible, provide housing to homeless and near-homeless households



Maintain and rehabilitate BCDC properties

Acquire and develop new properties

Create innovative, environmentally friendly, and socially responsible housing and
community spaces.

Promote economic growth that compliments the needs of the neighborhood’s
residents.

Support safety, health, education and recreational activities in the neighborhood.

Foster a sense of community in the Blackland neighborhood by supporting
community activities and events.

Ensure that BCDC adapts to changing circumstances and contributes to develop as
viable, effective, and efficient organization.

Work with other CDCs, housing organizations, the Blackland Neighborhood Center,

Alamo Recreation Center, Upper Boggy Creek Planning Team, the Blackland
Neighborhood Association and other organizations that fulfill complimentary
functions.

Shape and promote progressive polices for inclusive communities, affordable
housing, social welfare and green building at the city, state and federal levels.

While the primary focus of BCDC remains within the traditional boundaries of the
neighborhood, if opportunities arise from beyond the neighborhood boundaries
that fall within the goals, scope and capacity of the organization and which do not
jeopardize its mission, overly tax the management and impose financial risks that
could negatively affect the existing, in-neighborhood operations, the corporation
will consider such opportunities, on a case-by-case basis.



BDCD was formed in 1983 to be an active developer to end blighted conditions and annexations
and to provide and manage affordable housing units for individuals and families who want to live
in the Blackland Neighborhood.

Since 1983, BCDC has provided decent affordable homes to almost 1,100 individuals and 303
families.

BCDC has buikt or bought or rehabbed a total of 51 housing units. BCDC has 37-year history of
successful delivery of housing services to individuals and families.

The following is the demographic information on current BCDC tenants.

% OF TOTAL
DESCRIPTION TOTAL# | HOUSEHOLDS/INDIVIDUALS
TOTAL TENANT HOUSEHOLDS 47 100%
HISPANIC TENANT HOUSEHOLDS 10 21%
AFRICAN AMERICAN TENANT HOUSEHOLDS 28 60%
TENANT HOUSEHOLDS AT OR BELOW 30% MFI 31 66%
TENANT HOUSEHOLDS WITH EMPLOYED FAMILY 24 51%
MEMBERS
TOTAL INDIVIDUAL TENANTS 104 100%
INDIVIDUAL DISABLED TENANTS 22 21%
INDIVIDUAL TENANTS OVER 62 YEARS OF AGE 17 16%
TENANT CHILDREN 18 YEARS OF AGE AND YOUNGER 33 32%

Partners include: City of Austin Park & Recreation, Save the Food, Whole Foods, Wheatsville,
Sprouts, Lola Wright Foundation, Hammill Foundation, St. David’s Foundation, Religious Coalition
to Assist the Homeless, Foundation for the Homeless, Texas State Affordable Housing
Corporation, Austin/Travis Co. Public Health, St. Vincent De Paul, Catholic Charities, and more.

fn the future BCDC is planning on partnering with Frost Bank, other groups that would like to be
part of the Dream Starts Here.

The following is a list of projects managed by BCDC over the last 36 years.

Year Address Number | New or Cost Target Population

Completed of Units | Rehab




2020 (in 2106 Chicon New $171,611 Low income
progress)
2020 {in 1910 Salina St. New 5$171,612 Low income
progress)
2020 {in 2203 Salina St. New $171,612 Low income
progress)
2014 1902 E. 22M St New $120,000 Low income
Community
Center
2013 2106 Chestnut New $191,000 Disabled
2012 1803 E. 20t New $625,000 low income
2010 1908 E. 22 St. Rehab $500,000 Low
Income/Disability
2008 1701 E. 22 St Rehab $273,000 Low Income
2002 1700 MLK Jr. New $80,000 Low income
Blvd .
New $80,000 Low income
1803 E. 22" 5t
2002 2005 Salina St. New $80,000 Low income
2007 Salina St. New 580,000 Low income
2009 Salina St. New $80,000 Low income
1994 Chicon 5t. Rehab $330,000 Homeless
1992 Units divested Rehab $150,000 Low income

by

UT:

2210 Salina St.
2213 Salina St.
2110 Salina St.

1703 E. 22" St




1702 E. 21 st.
1906 Chicon St.

1902 Chicon St.

1806 MLK Jr.
Blvd.
1998 2106 Alamo St. Rehab $60,000 Low income
1986 2009 Salina St. New $180,000 Senior Citizens
1910 Salina St. New Low income
1708 E. 22" St New Low income
1704 E. 2219 St. New Low income




PROJECT SUMMARY FORM



1} Project Name 2) Project Type 3} New Construction or Rehabilitation?

| Fannie Mae Stewart Village | [100% Affordable] | New Construction |

4) Location Pescription (Acreage, side of street, distance from intersection) 5) Mobility Bond Corridor

| 6656 Acres, Chicon St. corner lot | | _EastMLK/FM 969 |
__6) Census Tract 7) Counecil District 8} Elementary School 9) Affordability Period

] 4.02 I District 1 | |_CAMPBELLEL | | 99 Years |
10) Type of Structure 11) Occupied? 12) How will funds be used?

[ Muiti-family | i No | pre-development and Constructio|

13) Summary of Rental Units by MFI Level

. One Two Three Four (+
Income Level Efficiency Bedroom Bedroom Bedroom BedroEJr)n Total
Up to 20% MFI 0
Up to 30% MFI 0
Up to 40% MF} i)
Up to 50% MFi 4 4 8
Up o 60% MFI 0
Up to 80% MFI 0
Up to 120% MFI 0
No Restrictions 0
Total Units 0 4 4 0 0 8
14) Summary of Units for Sale at MFI Level
Income Level Efficiency One Two Three Four {(+) | Total
Up to 60% MF! 0
Up to 80% MFi 0
Up to 120% MFI 0
No Restrictions 0
Total Units 0 0 0 0 0 0
15) Initiatives and Priorities {of the Affordable Units)
Initiative # of Units Initiative # of Units
Accessible Units for Mobility Impairments 4 Continuum of Care Units
Accessible Units for Sensory Impairments
Use the City of Austin GIS Map to Answer the questions below
16) Is the property within 1/2 mile of an Imagine Austin Center or Corridor? Yes
17) Is the property within 1/4 mile of a High-Frequency Transit Stop? Yes
18) Is the property within 3/4 mile of Transit Service? Yes
19) The property has Healthy Food Access? Yes
20) Estimated Sources and Uses of funds
Sources Uses
Debt 720,000 Acquisition 400,000
Equity 400,000 Off-Site
Grants Site Work
Deferred Developer Fee Sit Amenities
QOther Building Costs 1,665,000
Previous AHFC Funding 40,000 Confractor Fees
Current AHFC Request 1,107,000 Contigency 101,000
Financing
Developer Fees 101,000

Total 2,267,000 Total $ 2,267,000




PROJECT TIMELINE
DEVELOPMENT SCHEDULE



Development Schedule

Start Date End Date
Site Control , Jan-00 Jan-00
Acquisition N/A -
Zoning N/A
Environmental Review N/A e
Pre-Development Aug-20 Oct-20
Contract Execution N/A -
Closing of Other Financing S _
Development Services Review Aug-20 Oct-20
Construction Feb-20 Oct-21
Site Preparaticon
25% Complete
50% Complete
75% Complete
100% Complete
Marketing Aug-20 Oct-21
Pre-Listing o Aug=20 .Oct-20
Marketing Pian e un-21 ~ 021
Wait List Process Jun-21 - Oct-21
Disposition Aug-21 Oct-21
Lease Up conocAug-21) e 0e21
Close Qut S AugR21) - 0ct-21
Dec-14 May-16 Sep-17 Feb-19 Jun-20 Oct-21 Mar-23
Site Control
Acquisition ﬂ
Zoning

Environmental Review
Pre-Development U
Contract Execution
Closing of Other Financing '
Development Services Review '
Construction -
Site Preparation
25% Complete
50% Complete
75% Complete ”
100% Complete '
Marketing V
Pre-Listing .,
Marketing Plan
Wait List Process “
Disposition u
lease Up
Close Out




DEVELOPMENT BUDGET



Requested AHFC

Total Project Cost Funds Description
Pre-Development
Appraisal N/A
Environmental Review N/A
Engineering N/A
Survey N/A
Architectural N/A B
Subtotal Pre-Development Cost 50 50
Acquisition
Site and/or Land -400,000] |
Structures N/A | R
Other {specify) 40,000 .
Subtotal Acquisition Cost $440,000 50
Construction
infrastructure b S
Site Work 365,615 - 145,179
Demslition 6,000 6,000
Concrete 133,524 133,524
Masonry 72,000 72,000
Rough Carpentry -172,000 172,000
Finish Carperntry 16,000} 16,000
Waterproofing and Insulation 8,200 8,200
Roofing and Sheet Metal 43,500 43,500
Piumbing/Hot Water 54,400 64,400
HVAC/Mechanical " 48,000] . 48,000
Electrical 116,355 116,355
Doors/Windows/Glass 35,500 35,500
Lath and Plaster/Drywall and Acoustical 36,800 .. 36,800
Tiel Work - :.22,300 22,300
Soft and Hard Floor 4,800 ...4,800
Paint/Decorating/Blinds/Shades 29,600 e 129,600
Specialties/Special Equipment 13,220 13,220
Cabinetry/Appliances 67,822 ... 67,822
Carpet 4,800 .. 4,800
Other (specify) 442,104| <o |Other-$49,104, GC- $245,000, Overhead - $148,000
Construction Cantingency 57,460
Subtotai Construction Cost $1,760,000 $1,040,000
Soft & Carrying Costs
Legal 10,000] . 10,000
Audit/Accounting -10,000 ©.-10,000
Title/Recordin 5,000| . _...5,000
Architectural (Inspections) 10,000 10,000
Construction Interest -10,000 10,000
Construction Period insurance 4,000( 4,000
Construction Period Taxes ‘12,000 .. 12,0600
Relacation 4,000{ : 4,000
Marketing L 2,000] oo 2,000
Davis-Bacon Monitering N/A : L INJA S
Other {specify) NAA N
Subtotal Soft & Carrying Costs $67,000 67,000

TOTAL PROJECT BUDGET




OPERATING PRO FORMA




THE EXPENSES ON THE PROFORMA ARE ESTIMATED
BASED ON YEAR-TO-DATE ACTUAL EXPENSES FOR OUR
48 UNITS.
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SCORING SHEE




Project Namefnie Mae Stewart Village

Project Type]  100% Affordable
Council District District 1
Census Tract| 4.02
Pricr AHFC Funding S40,000
Current AHFC Funding Request Amaunt $1,107,000
Estimated Total Project Cost $2,267,000
High Opportunity No
High Displacement Risk: YES
High Frequency Transit Yes
Imagine Austin Yes

Mobility Bond Coreidor

East MLK/FM 962

SCORING ELEMENTS

< 20% MFI Q # of rental units ar < 20% MFi

< 30% MFL 0 # of rental units at < 30% MFI
District Goal 0.00% % of annuai goal reached with units
High Opportunity 0.00% % of annual goal reached with units
Displacement Risk 0.00% % of annual goal reached with units
High Frequency Transit 0.00% % of annual goal reached with units
Imagine Austin 0.00% % of annual goal reached with units
Geegrophic Dispersion 0.00% 2% of annual goal reached with units
Mobility Band Corridor 0.00% % of annual gual reached with units

i SCORE Sy od o Gadils ™ 20 R

< 40% MFI! 1 # of rental units at<4ﬂ% MFI

< 50% MFI 8 # of rental units at < 50% MFI
District Goal 1.13% % of annual goal reached with units
High Qpportunily 0.00% % of annaual goal reached with units
Displacement Risk 1.88% % of annual goal reached with units
High Frequency Transit 2.92% % of annual goal reached with units
Irragine Austin 2.92% % of anhual goal reached with units
Geographic Dispersion 0.00% % of annuza! goal reached with units
Mob:hty Bond Carridor 9.42% % of annual goal reached with units

- SCORE]: Sodr 9% of Goals * A5
< su% MF2 a # of units for purchase at < 60% MFI
< 80% MFE 0 # of units for purchase at < 80% MFI
District Goa! 0.00% % of annual goal reached with units
High Cpportunity 0.00% % of annual goal reached with units
Displacement Risk 0.00% % of annuai goal reached with units
High Frequency Transit 0.00% % of annuaj goal reached with units
imagine Austin 0.00% of annual goal reached with units
Geagraphic Dispersion 0,00% % of annuai goal reached with units
Mobility Bond Corrider 0.00% % of annual goal reached with units
o - BCORE 0o |%of Gesls A5 :

Unit Score

3 MAXIMUM SCORE = 350

Continuum of Care 0 Total # of units provided up to 100 per year
Continuum of Care Score .0 J{total CoC Uritts/100'* HF Units/50)*20 .5
Access to Healthy Food Yes Within 1 Mile of Healthy Food {City GIS}
Continsum of Care ighted Scorel (-0 oo IMiobiiy, Adcess to Jobs, Comminity Institutions, Social Cohesign
2 Bedroom Units 4 Total Affordable 2 Bedroom units
3 Bedroom Units 0 Total Affordable 3 Bedroom units
4 Bedroom Units 0 Total Affordable 4+ Bedroom units
- Malti-Generational Housing Score! 530 s IMotti-bedreom Unit/Total Units * 20
TEA Grade 71 Elementary School Rating from TEA
‘Muiti ional g W f Score -3 oo | Edudational Attainment; Envirenment, Commdnity Insfitutions, Sacial Coheston, Ec

Accessible Units

mobiltly and sensory units

Non-FSH, Non-Voucher Under 20% MF

0 Total urits under 20% MFI

FINAL QUANTITATIVE SCORE

Accessibility Score| 10 ciincos | Accassible UnitfTotal Units * 26
Metro Access Service Yes Within 3/4 mife of fixed route transit
“Accessibility Weighted Score Lo Hiousing Stability, Hesith, Mobiity, Community institltions
Initiatives and Priorities Score Fr) ~ MAXIMUM SCORE = 200
AHFC Leverage 51% % of total project cost funded through AHFC request
G By Epverage Score] 12 [ 2B SR e * 25) -
AHFC Per Unrt Substdy (including prier amounts) $143,375 Amaount of assistance per unit
Subsidy per unit scare; 7 {$208,000 - per unit subsidy)*25/$200,000
AHFC Per Badracm Subsidy $95,583 Amount of assistance per bedroom
::Subsidy per Bedroom Score; A3 H S 200,000 - per bedroom subsidy)*25/5200,000
Debt Coverage Ratio {Yedr 5} 2.79 Measured at the 5 Year mark
.- DebE Coverage Ratic Seore o cr i s 1003 Madiv = 1.5;1.25 = best score-
Underwriting Score 32 MAXIMUM SCORE = 100

62 [THRESHOLD SCORE = 50

Previous Developments

Compliance Score

Proposal

Supportive Services

Development Team

Meanagement Team

Notes




ENTITY INFORMATTION
1a. Detailed Listing of Developer’s Experience




5806 Qid Fredencksbuig Road
. Suite 300
Austin, Texas 78742

ENGINEERING s

Company Overview

TDI Engineering, LLC is a foll-service eagineering company offering civil and
structural engineering services for commercial and residential projects. TDI belisves In
an emphasis on quality engineering work and client interpetion. Onr focus as 2 company
is 1o develop long-term relationships with active clients hat share one d%ﬂeﬁopmduce
high quaility projects. The combination of civil and
allows TDI to offer clients bundied services, increasing project coordination and design
efficiency. TDI is registered to provide engineering ?
registered i over 30 states.

Comn Ba

Originally founded in 2005 as Texas Design Interests, LLC and its sister company, TDL
Foundation Engineering, LLC, these companies were reprganized as TDI Engineering,
LLC in 2018. The founding members include Jeff Cloyd |P.E., Roger Meredith, P.E. and
Jeff Shindler, P.E. The three partmers bring years ¢f varied and complementary
professional expersise to the company. After gaining professional expertise in a wide
variety of civil and structimral engineering projects out Central Texas anvd across
the naticn, the three recognized an opportunity to provide professional emgineering
sexvices to clents in a timely and professional while matntaining a level of
personal customer interaction sometimes lacking in larger| corupanies. The privcipals take
pride in the fact that over $0% of clients of TDI are efther repeat customexs or refesrals
from existing ciients. .

Scope of Services
Civil ineering Services
TDI provides a wide range of Civil Engineering Servicey relating io land development
These services are offered to cHents for the emtive thpelive of a project, from the -
feasibility and concepiual planning stage throngh con fon and acceptance of the

project. While the scope of each project, as well as the nieeds of each clent, is vmique;
some of the standard services performed throughout a project include the following:

Feasibility Reporis/Determination of Entitlements

» Conceptual Site Planning
" Preliminary Cost Estimating
» Development of Site Plan/Construction I»
+ Coordination of Subcontractors (% Geotechnical  Eosineers,
Environsoental Engineers, Transportation Engineerls, efc.} as necessary

» Value Engineering/Review of Construction Plans

3 THINK DESIGN innovate, Integrate, ithiplement... 10of2




5906 Oid Fredericksburg Road

Suite 300
. Austin, Texas 78749
E (512 3013389
MEIF‘IEERINE | www.tdile.net
Multi-Family Residentjal
TD1 Engineering, LLC has performed structural engineering esigns on 2 wide range of

challenging muffi-Famity projects. The projects we have
funding including converttional loans, private funds, tax
projects included LEED and Smart Housing elemernis. We
had to meet HUD and TDHCA regulafions. Our experience injthe design of multi-farmily
" residential projects includes the following:

Timber Village Aparments Marshall, TX Beliema Sp Aparimends  Dripping Springs, TX
Mesa Vista Apartments Donna, T Tecom= Aunsfin, TX
Poinsetiia Apariments Alamno, TX River View at en Aparments

Figueroa Apartments Raoisstewn, TX Corpus Chrigt, TX
Sunsst Way Apartiments Port Arthur, TX Vista Pointe =} Wild Pine San Artonig, TX
Crescart Vitlage 1 Elgir, TX Think East Austin, TX
Sandsions Aparimens Guliport, MS Santal Ph # Apariments Austing, TX
Regency Way Apariments Gulport, MS Crystal Falls Center Leander, TX
Hillside Terrace Apartments Guilipart, MS” Waters 2t 8t e Apartments

Baywood Place Apatiments  Gulfport, MS Surrmmerville, SC
Vilage Place Apariments . Guifport, MS Cesar Chaver]Apartments Edeouch, TX
Tirnber Grove Apartmerngts Dbervilie, MS

Back Bay Vilas D'bervife, MS

Morrison Village Aparimerds  Pascagoula, MS
Taylor Heights Aparirents Pascagoua, MS
Hightand Springs Apartments  Jacksan County, MS

Washington Village Wichita Falls, TX
Tuscan it Townhomes Houston, TX
Bouldin Lofis Apstin, TX

Timber Village H Aperiments  Marshall, TX
Horizon Meadow Apadments  Lamarque, TX
Amber Stone Apariments Beavlle, TX

Tririty Place Aaslin, TX

Legacy Aparfrents Austin, TX
Losmopoltan Apariments Corpus Christi, TX
Highland VElzs Apartiments  College Stafien, TX
Hearfland Village Aparfments  Sulphur Springs, TX
Fine Leke Esfates Apartments Nacogdoches, TX
Pafacio del $o) Apartments  Corpus Christi, TX
Avenue Terrace Apartments  Houston, TX
Barton Trads Apatments Austin, TX

Windy Ridge Aparimenis Austin, TX

Esiates at Bllington Apartments

Houston, TX
Emma Finke Apartrmenss Beenille, TX
Bella Terra Apartments Brovnsville, TX
Riverstone Apariments Corpus Chxisﬁ.'ix
Arbor at Centerbrook Apartments

Live Oak, TX
Bella Vista Apartiments Alfon, TX
Aspen Helghs UNC Apariments

Charlotie, NC
Aspen Hejghts Austin Apartments

Ausfin, TX
Waters a Magnoliz Bay Apartments

Lincelnville, SC

K THINK DESIGN innovate, imtegrate, implement...




Tom Hateh

"Sin9e h+ue architects was founded in 1978, we have been blessed to provide
architectural services on a very wide variety of projedts in the Austin area as well as
across the counfry. We have found that what one learhs about one type of project can

be applied to another seemingly disparate chaflenge.
Tom Hatch, having lived in East Austin since 1 972, had

become very aware of the need

for sustzainable housing in Austin's inner city neighborhgods, most of which were on the
east side. Designing quality affordable homes in Cls rksville, Blackland, Blackshear,
Guadalipe, Robertson Hill, and Montopolis neighborhopds became the driving force in

his practice,

Qur ongoing relationship with those neighborhoods cou
the Panhandle, and Ef Paso creafing famm-worker ho

led with our work in the Valley,
ng has given our firm the ideai

foundation fo help local GDC's provide respectable housing to those in need.

Our staff of fourteen along with our experienced consuftant team has provided timely and

professional services for many project types, the majori

communities in and around Austin. The firm has evolve

of which being mulii-family
H over several decades from ks

- sole-proprietorship beginnings to its current partnership struciure when, in 2008, Erk
Ulland and Randall Owen joined Tom as pariners. This nrade the firm sven stronger and
allowed Tom to focus predominately on the work that He loves, aifordable housing for

those in need.
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Carlos H. Cascos

Corporations Section
Secretary of Slate_

P.O.Box 13697
Anstin, Texas 78711-3697

Office of the Secretary|of State

Certificate of Fact

The undersigned, as Secretary of State of Texas, does hereby certify that the document, Articles of
Incorporation for BLACKLAND COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION (file number
66640301}, a Domestic Nonprofit Corporation, was filed in this|office on August 04, 1983.

It is further certified that the entity status in Texas is in existence.

In testimony wherdof, I have hereunto signed my name
officially and causgd to be impressed hereon the Seal of
State at my office ip Austin, Texas on January 23, 2016.

Qe —

Carlos H. Cascos
Secretary of State

Come visit us on the internet gt hitp/fwwwisos.state. tcus/
Phone: (512) 463-5555 Fax: (512) 463-5709 Dial: 7-1-1 for Relay Services
Prepared by: SOS-WEB TID: 10264 Document: 651657260003
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2a. Resumes of Pringipals




QUALIFICATION SUMMARY

Forty-one years of experience in responsible positions of leadefship. Founder of two basinesses. History of
entreprencurship. A servant-leader. Proven ability o influsnce othery and to develop successfisl collaborations.
Extensive commmnity rvolvement resulting i positive community Eighteen years executive management
experience. Twen@*meymofstaieassocmtmnmi&meﬁent to listen to others, gather fnformation,
analyze, develop strategies, and take decisive action. Proven sbility 1o forge consensus throush gnality relationship

T i ive for action and soccess. Bilingual,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOMPLISHMENTS

Recipient of munerous Jeadership awards. o
Founder and President of Texas Strategies, a consulting fion providing gmality services to organizations.
Project Director for Txas: Ploming for the Future, a major tesearch prpject that identified migjor trends
in the social, economic, political and philauthropic areas and thefr pgtential impact on Texas. '

Axthored six successiul publications.
Authored mdependent study entitled “Leaderskip for Total Quality Ivitiatives in State Government™

Provided leadership for two statewide homean sexvice projects in collabgration with the Hogg Foundation.
Forty vears of volunteer sezvice In the copuponity.

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

Executive Divector 200120138
Texas Crimninal Defense Lawyers Associafion

Texas Criminal Defense Lawyers Educationz] Institute
Anstin, Texag

Served as the Chief Execudive Officer, plans, organizes, coordinates, 15 and divects the statf, programs
and activities of the Association, the Institute aud the Criminal Defense Lawyers Project . Assist the Beards
of Directors (94) in the formation and implementation of policy and ess plauning. Responsible for seifing
the Association, Institute and Crimioal Defense Lawyers Project Provides effective leadership

and promotes creativity, productivity amd good moral Successfully m significant fnancial growth in
Association, the Instiete and the Criminal Defense Lawyers Project.

CEO-President 1999-present
Texas Strategies
Anstin, Texas
Provide quality consuling services to a broad mange of local, state znd nbtional chentele

Provide consultation on doing business with governmental agencies aod| membership associations.

Execntive Director 2000-2001
Manor BEducation Foundation
Mamor, Texas

Coordinate with the board successfill strategies for fulfilling the Foundation mission
Plans and oversees fundraising activities

Act as spokesperson for the Foundation i all public vennes




EDUCATION
1994  Master of Business Adrminjstration, University of Fexas Gradpate School of Business, Anstin, Texas.
1975  Master of Arts in Psychology, St. Mary’s University, San Antprio, Texas,

1972 Bachelor’s Degree in Psychology, St Mary’s University, San|[Antonio, Texas.

PUBLICATIONS
Fined Report: 76™ Texas Legislative Session, For Norprofits, Toly 1999,
Texas Public Policy Handbook, 5% Edition, January 1999,
Texas: Ploming for the Future, Social, Economic, Political cod Philapthropic Trends and Inpact, July 1998.
Fanal Repore: 75 Texas Legislative Session, For Nonprofits, Tuly 199).
Texgs Public Policy Hondbook, 4% Edition, Jamary 1997.
Welfare Reform Toolkix for Commmmities, January 1996.

CERTIFICATIONS
Certified Consultant Auditor, American Corrections Association, Roc ille, Maryland.
Certified Anditor, National Institute on Drug Abuse, Baltimore Maryland

PROFESSIONAL TRAINING )
University of Texas Graduate School of Business, Loedon, England - Earopean Business Seminar.

Ecole Superieure de Commerce de Paris, Paris, France - The Enropesn| Business Strategy.

Ecole Superieure de Cormmerce, Graduate School of Business, Lyon, Rrance - Baropesn StyleManageme.nt.
Harvard Medica) School, Commumity Psychiatry - Consultation acd Education for Mental Heajth Professionals.

COMMUNITY LEADERSHIP
President, Board of Directors, Guadainpe Neighborhood Development [Corporation (1998-corrent).
Commissioner, Vice Chainmzan, Zoning and Platting Commission, City|of Austin (2001-2008).
Chzir, East Cesar Chaver Neighborbood Leadership Team (1998-2008}.
Member, Mayor’s Fitness Council, City of Austin (2064-2006)
Member, Taskforce on Historic Rezonimg, City of Anstin {2003-2005)
Member, Austin Neighborhoods Together, Political Action Commyittes [Z001-2004).
Vice Chairman, Taskforce on Boards and Commissions, City of Austin|(2001-2004).
Member, Board of Directors, Texas Association of Nonprofits (2000-2402).
Commissioner, Aunstin Electric Utility Commission, City of Austin (2040 2001).

First Vice President, Board of Directors, Austin Neighborhoods Counci (19932001},
Member, Board of Directors, Catholic Charities, Diocese of Austin {1999-2001).

Vice President, Board of Directors Anstin Hsbitat for Humanity (1999-2001).

Member, Board of Directors, Seton Cove, a Spirituabity Center {1959.2801).

Mensber, Taskforce on Historic Rezoning and Oentrification, City of Aystin (2002-2003)
Member, Citizens Advisory Coramittes, Capital Area Metropolitan Tre
Member, Light Rail Citizens Advisory Committes. Capital Area Me

Advisor, Newcomers s America (1595-1997).
Member, Board of Directors, Project TYYME, East Austin Youth ¥ eadé
Co-Chair Hispanic Heritage Association, Texas Department of Homan $er
Chairman of the Board, Fr. Joe Znotas Scholarship Fund (1994-1995).
Volunteer, Auvstin Meals on Wheels (20072609, 1994-1995). ’

Member, Child Protective Services, State Advisory Board, Texas Department of Human Services (1890-1993).
Founder, South Texas Round Table (12 state agency regional administrators in South Texas) (1991-1994).
Member, Board of Directors, Texas Coalition for Javenile Justice (199141992),

Member, Giddings Lions Chib {1984-1985).

bip Program (1994-1996).
vices (1995-1996).

Joszph A. Martinez page s
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TEXAS
DESIGN
INTERESTS, LLC

AUSTINe HOUSTON

JEFF SHINDLER, P.E.

CURRENT POSITION
Managing Member

JOB DESCRIPTION

Business responsibilities include daily operations and civil engineering department management.

EDUCATION
B.S. in Civil Engineering
University of Texas at Austin

PROFESSIONAL CERTIFICATIONS
Professional Engineer, P.E. (TX-91160), (MI-6201055379)

Licensed Real Estate Agent, License #511268 (Inactive)
Texas Real Estate Commission

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

March 2005 to present

Managing Member, Texas Design Interests, LLC
Managing Member, TDI Foundation Engineering, LLC
6001 W. William Cannon, Bldg 2, Suite 203-C

Austin, TX 78749

{512)301-3389

April 2000 to March 2005
Austin Technical Services (ATS), Austin, TX
Civil Design Manager

Responsibilities include personnel management, client development
management of all stages civil engineering projects including writin|

| and department expansion. Project
o proposals, coordination of feasibility

and conceptual planning, preparation of construction drawings, prodessing development plans through
approval by applicable local, state, and federal authorities, consultinlg during construction activities,

generating invoices and collections.

Representative Projects:
Residential Grading Plans, Austin, TX — Individnal grading/site pl
homebuilder with up to 8 subdivisions under development

s and drainage consulting for large

San Felipe Condominiums; Austin, TX — 64-unit condominium projgct on 6.7-acres
Olive Garden Restaurants; Austin, TX; Round Rock, TX —Multipletlocations for naticnal client

San Marcos Fire Station; San Marcos, TX — Commercial site plan
Camino Crest IT Subdivision; Uhland, TX — 29-acre residential/com

June 1999 to April 2000
Doucet & Associates, Austin, TX
Project Engineer I

Project management of civil engineering projects. Responsibilities i

public-sector client
Inercial subdivision

holuded fulfillment of executed

contracts; feasibility and conceptual planning, design and engineeriz)g, construction drawing preparation,

plan processing through approval, and construction administration;
drafiers assigned to project.

ResidentiaUCommerciarl
Civil & Structural Engineefing

bversight of design technicians and

Page 1of 2




TEXAS
DESIGN
INTERESTS, LLC

AUSTINe HOUSTON

Representative Projects:
The Reserve at Hudson Bend; Austin, TX — 72 lot residential subdivfision on 80+ acres

Oak Hill United Methodist Church; Austin, TX — Expansion of church facilities including multiple
buildings and associated site development
Randalls Expansion; Austin, TX — Expansion of existing facility forjnational client

March 1998 to June 1999
ThermoRetec Corporation, Austin, TX
Project Engineer II

Project responsibilities included both office and field activities; fundtioned as a member of a team of
professionals serving a major client with over 14 sites nationwide agd an annual budget of $1.5 million.
Office responsibilities included remedial design, strategic development, alternative analysis, site
assessment, and reporting. Responsibilities in the field included doumentation of site activities,
interpretation of design documents, oversight of remedial contractors, coordination of sub-contractors and
vendors, scheduling work, environmental sampling and monitoring,}and quality control. Interfaced and
coordinated on projects with federal, state and local regulators as w¢ll as community activists.

Representative Projects:
Creek Remediation Project; Buffalo, NY — Design oversight on-sitejfor $3.5 Million construction contract.
Interpreted and clarified design documents for contractor. Documented project progress and represented
owner’s interests on site.
Drainage Improvement Project; Kansas City, KS ~ Performed drainpge and runoff calculations for 120-acre
watershed draining to creek. Instrumental in preparation of design and bidding documents for $300
thousand construction contract.

June 1997 to Jan 1998
Tuskan Contractors, Austin, TX
Site Superintendent

Construction experience with underground wtilities coniractor. Expprience managing labor, coordinating
subcontractors and vendors, interacting with owners, maintaining equipment on site, schedule planning,
and materials estimating. Responsible for maintaining a high level pf quality while operating on an
accelerated construction schedule.
Woodbury Commons Premium Qutlets; Harriman, NY — Construction of parking lot lighting improvements
at major outdoor retail mall.

Residential/Commercidl
Civil & Structural Engineefing Page 2 of 2




RESUME: PROJECT PRINCIPAL

Thomas H. Hatch, FAIA

EDUCATION

REGISTRATION

EXPERIENCE

SAMPLE PROJECTS

Bachelor of Architecture {with Honors)
Texas Tech University, 1969

Texas #5485 {1975)

hatch + ulland owen architects (forme
Austin, Texas {Jan. 1997 - Present)

Tom Hatch Architects
Austin, Texas {(March 1878 - Decermnbet

3-D International
Austin, Texas (1977 - 1978)

Independent Archifects
Austin, Texas (1973 - 1977)

1.8, Coast Guard
Yorktown, Virginia, (1969 - 1971}

Lakeline Station « Austin, Texas
A new zffordable housing development
Center. The Michaei and Susan Dell Fou
for the Living Buiding Challenge.

Cardinal Point + Austin, Texas
A new affordable housing community 1

ly Hatch Partnership)

1996)

for Foundation Communities with an onsite Learning
ndation Learning Center is pending Petal Certification

or Foundation Communities with an onsite Learning

Center. Like Lakeline Station, Cardinal Point is located in Northwest Austin where heretofore,

there have been no affordable housing
Homestead Oaks = Austin, Texas

Center. This is the first multi-family

developments. Currently under construction.

rental apartments in the City of Austin to pursue

A Foundation Communities 140-unit anrdable housing community with an onsite Learning

134,16kW solar tied directly to reside
gallon rainwater collection cisterns use
Building Award Four-Star Rating.

M Station » Austin, Texas

tial units. THe apartments also feature 18 - 10,000
H for irrigation. Recipient of the Austin Energy Green

A 150-unit eco-friendly affordable housing development for Foundation Communities with an

on-site learning center. M Station is thy
and the first multi-family LEED for Ho
Austin Business Journal’s Social Impac]

Jeremiah Program Moody Campus
New 49,865 sf building that includes
five-classroom child development centg
fife skills classroormns, gathering spaces

e first LEED for Homes multi-family project in Austin
mes Platinum community in Texas. Recipient of the
E Award,

b Austin, Texas

35 two-bedroom apartments, an on-site accredited
br, two covered playground areas, empowermeant and
and staff offices.

La Vista de Guadalupe + Austin, Tekas

A 22-unit downtown affordable housing
very low income working community.

Lyons Gardens = Austin, Texas
54-unit elder housing community of Fa

The Chicon + Austin, Texas

A three-building multi-family mixed-u.
was commissioned by nelghborhood ml
corridor, and will include affordable ho
floor retail space.

Pease Mansion » Austin, Texas
Complete restoration of the Abner Coo

project for the Guadalupe Neighborhood serving our

nily Eldercare in East Austin.

development in East Austin under construction. It
mbers as a revitalization effort for the Chicon Street
using units, market-rate condominiums, and ground

k Governor’s Mansion in Pemberton Heights.

Various New and Rehabilited Homes + East Austin, Texas

Numerous new construction and rev
Neighborhood Housing Corporation.

talization of homes for AHFC and the Guadalupe




RESUME: PROJECT PRINCIPAL

SAMPLE PROJECTS cont.

AWARDS/PUBLICATIONS

Threadgill’s (both locations) « Austin, Texas

Two iconic restaurant/honky tonks that
healthy food and fine local music.

Scholtz Garden + Austin, Texas

have proven to be timeless go-to places for comfort/

Restoration and revitalization of an Austin Landmark including the addition of a new kitchen.

Whole Foods Markets - Nationwidd

Designed 65 Whole Foeds Markets throighout the United States

Various Congress Avenue Restorat|
Provided architectural services for the
Averniue.

Austin Energy Green Building Award F
Homestead Oaks Apartments, Austin,
James D. Pfluger Community Service 4

Property of the Year | Affordable Hous
M Station, Austin, Texas, 2012

AIA Fellowship Recipient | Practice Ca

Envision Central Texas Community Stg
Franklin Gardens, Austin, Texas 2010

Liveable City “Liveable Vision Award”
Franklin Gardens, Austin, Texas 2010

John V. Nyfeler, FAIA Community Sery

American Society of Landscape Architi
Design - Constructed ~ Public
The Crossings, Austin, Texas, 2005

Heritage Society Award | Pease Mansi

The National Community Developmen
Award of Excellence
tyons Gardens, Austin, Texas 2005

Austin’s Commercial Real Estate Awarl
Architectural Design of The Crossings

AIA Austin Design Award
Citation for Whole Foods Market and

Herltage Society Awards:

Jobe House, Austin, Texas, 1991

918 Congress, Austin, Texas - 916 Cé
804 Congress Avenue, Austin, Texas
Texas Society of Architecture Desian
Robert Shaw ECHO Village, Austin, T
In The Public Interest Award
Architectural Record, Robert Shaw E

Publications:

Real Austin — September 2012

Rare Magazine - AprilfMay 2010
Tribeza - October 2009

Austin Monthly Home - Summer 2008
The Good Life - May 2007
Construction Perspectives ~ 2006
Eco-Structure - March 2006
Hospitality Design - July 2005

on Projects » Austin, Texas
restoration of seven historic structures on Congress

hur-Star Rating, 2016
Texas

hward , 2013

ing - Austin Apartment Association

egory - AIA Austin Chapter, 2011

wardship Award | New Development

Fngagement Category

ice Award, 2008

bcts Merit Award

bn, Austin, Texas, 2005

I Association, Terrence R. Duvernay HOME Program

H
Austin, Texas, 2004

orporate Headquarters, Austin, Texas, 1996

ngress, Austin, Texas, 1990
1985

Award

i, 1989

[CHO Viliage, Austin, Texas, 1988

Design Excellence in Affordable Housing — 1996
Texas Architect -~ February 1995

Urban Land -~ July 1990

Texas Architect - January/February 1590
Forbes - Qctober 19688

Architectural Record - November 1588
Progressive Architecture - June 1987

Srnithsonian, “Diners” - November 1986




Tom Hatch, Founding Principal of h+uo architects, LLP, has amasded an extensive and varied background
while practicing architecture since 1975 and then establishing the firm in 1978. He has worked on a
tremendous variety of projects which include retail projects and pffices; public institutional buildings
such as schools and libraries; large multi-family developments; ryral retreats; and private custom
residences.

In 2008, Tom was honored with the John V. Nyfeler, FAIA Community Service Award and in 2011, he was
elevated to Fellowship in the American Institute of Architects. Most recently, in 2013, he received the
James D. Pfluger Community Services Award for his work and adyocacy of community based and
affordable housing designs.




Tom Hatch

"Since h+uo architects was founded in 1978, we

architectural services on a very wide variety of progﬁ

across the country. We have found that what one |
be applied to another seemingly disparate challenge.

‘Tom Hatch, having lived in East Austin since 1 972, ha

for sustainable housing in Austin's inner city neighbo

east side. Designing quality affordable homes in Cl
Guadalupe, Robertson Hill, and Montopolis neighborh

his practice.

Our ongoing relationship with those neighborhoods
the Panhandle, and Ei Paso creating farm-worker ho
foundation to help focal CDC's provide respectable ho

Our staff of fourteen along with our experienced consut

coc

have been blessed to provide
in the Austin area as well as
s about one type of project can

‘become very aware of the need
oods, most of which were on the
arksville, Blackland, Blackshear,
ods became the driving force in

sing has given our firm the ideal
ing o those in need.

ip{ed with our work in the Valley,

nt team has provided timely and

professional services for many project fypes, the majority of which being multi-family
communities in and around Austin. The firm has evoived over sevéral decades from its
sole-proprietorship beginnings to its current partners ip structure when, in 2006, Erik

Ulland and Randall Owen joined Tom as partners. This
allowed Tom to focus predominately on the work that

those in need.

made the firm even stronger and
he loves, affprdabie housing for
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2¢. Resumes of Property Management Team




Blackland Community DevelopmentCorporation

1902 E. 22M st.

Austin, TX 78722

Property Management Team

7/31/20

Blackland CDC (BCDC) has over 37 years of experience in property management. The current management

team consists of the following professionals:

Joseph A. Martinez-Executive Director-21 years in the non-profit/affordable housing area

leannette Balandran-Property Manager- 25 years of experience

in the affordable housing area

Sarah DePriest- Operations Assistant- 6 years of experience in the affordable housing area

Sheryl Cheatham-Accounting services (contract)-25 years of non-profit financial experience

Jennifer Jackson -12 years of experience in caseworker

Bert Allen-Maintenance Manager-22 years in property maintengnce




Jeannette Balandr:

Professional Summary.

Integrity, Developing People, Growth, Meeting Sales Goals, Nego
Territory Management Closing Skills, Prospecting Skills, Professio
Communication Processes.

Strong teamwork, interpersonal and organizational skills. Sensitivi
with diverse social groups. Excellent communieation skills (verbal
approach to work. Negotiation and influencing skills. Leadership s
sitnations. Sef-motivation and tenacity; problem-solving skills. Co
initiative when making decisions; the ability to work under pressur
skills - for calculating rent arrears and service charges; IT skills.

Strong knowledge of LTHTC regulations and project-based Section
Well-developed administrative skills. Strong management skills-p:
working with multiple types of service programs.

ation, Selling to Customer Needs,
ism, Internal Comrounications,

» and smpathy. Interest in working
d written). A customer-first
. The ability to adapt to different
mon sense and the ability to use
and to meet deadlines; Numeracy

/Tax Credit residential properties.

ipciples and people. Experienced

Exhibit good judgment, practical day-to-day experience working with a diverse group of people, and

hardworking.

Extensive experience and judgment to plan and accomplish goals. Qreativity and latitude.
Strong writter and verbal skills, organizational excellenee, and tea%i;ﬂented.

Ability to handle confidential information with discretion and inte,
Previous experience in a confidential administrative role with the a
ability to prioritize and multitask in a fast- paced environment.

Angnst 2017 to

Present DOMINIUM Management, Property Manag
Processing of payables in a timely manner
Maintaining of the budget
COS Training

Jhty to work well independently and

Completion of variance, occupancy and collectign reports

Creating new vendor acconnts

Supervising on site security
Proactive in the tenant’s and neighborhood assq

ciation

Perform all project-based section 8 and tax credit lease recertifications for

173 units
Process all rental applications in Yardi

Interview prospective residents for move in paperwork

Process all move in paperwork
Moved in all new residents

Entered all rental applications in Yardi, updated all information

Supervised staff of three
Performed evictions, move-ins, move ouls, writ

of possessions, foreible detainer

Collected rent payments, posted water bills, posted/deposited rent daily

Showed, leased, processed rental applications
Performed lease renewals, property inspections

December 2016 to

worked with vendors

March 2016 Sage Apartment Communities, Assistant #roperty Manager
Perform all project-based section 8 and tax cregit lease recertifications for




March 2016 to
July 2017

Ang 2011 1o
May 2013

April 1903 to
Aug 2001

Approximately 300 units

Process all rental applications in Yardi
Interview prospective residents for move in pap;
Process all move in paperwork

Moved in all new residents

Entered all rental applications in Yardi, updated

Performed evictions, move-ins, move outs, writ
Collected rent payments, posted water bills, pos
Showed, leased, processed rental applications

Performed Iease renewals, property inspections)

Supervised staff of six maintenance technician’st

Quest Asset Management, Assistant Proper]
Perform all tax credit lease recertification’s for 4

Process all rental applications in Tenant Trackef

Interview prospective residents for move in pap|
Process all move in paperwork

ETWOrK

 all information

f possessions, forcible detainer
d/depostied rent daily

worked with vendors

by Manager
52 unit

BrwoTk

Moved in all new residents

Performed evictions, move-ins, move outs, writ pf possessions, forcibie defainer

Entered all rental applications in One Site, up all information
Supervised staff of three maintenance techniciah’s
ed,

Collected rent payments, posted water bills, p
Showed, leased, processed renial applications
Performed lease renewals, property inspections

Foley Properties, Property Management
Perform all tax credit lease recertification’s for 3

Process all rental applications in Tenant Tracker

Interview prospective residents for move in pap|
Process all move in paperwork

/deposited rent daily
worked with vendors

52 unit

EIWOTK

Moved in all new residents

Supervised staff of three maintenance techmi

iah’s

Performed evictions, move-ins, move outs, writ pf possessions, forcible detainer

Entered all rental applications in One Site, up‘%ed all information

Collected rent payments, posted water bills, p
Showed, leased, processed rental applications
Performed lease renewals, property inspections
Housing Authority City of Anstin, Property

Evaluate agency requirements and implement ¢

development test for all properties

the specific communities within our portiolio.

ed/deposited rent daily
worked with vendors
Manager

prapliance procedures for

Review applications and determine eligibility fi
Manage resident re-certifications, rent in

and utility allowance changes

the affordable housing program for

Field incoming inguiries from site staff with qué¢stions directly related to income and
asset eligibility, legal rents, and property-specific cpmpliance requirements.

Conduet site visits to review resident files and ifaplement standardization of pending
and recertification files. Consistent monitoring to each facility complies with
regulatory requirenents specific to the facility.

Complete annual/quarterly/monthly compliande reports as required.

Prepare for and attend affordable and LIHTC apdits performed by state and
regulatory agencies.

Perform file andits and identify errors and/or

Follow up with facilities on file audits to make
Keep a log of files audited and files to be audited.

Raview new applications for completeness prio:

issing documentation.
e corrections have been completed.

to submission.




Maintain an effective system for reporting and
propetties.

Ensure that all properties meet compliance req
all housing programs.

onitoring compliance for all

irements for LYHTC, Section 8, and

Maintain maximum income limits, rent Emits, 3
anmual rent adjustments within the portfolio.
Provide and/or coordinaie training for proj

d utility allowances and coordinate
management and program staff.

Build and maintain relationships with fonding dgencies Assist with the collection of

rent at facilities.

Participate in HASA case conferences and legal proceedings as needed.

Assist Associate VP for Real Estate and Asset

Perform other duties as assigned.
Skills:
Proficiency: Spanish
Software :

AMST: Property Management and Infor Constructio

agement as needed

REMANAGE: Leading provider of property management softwarg systems

AM RENT: Consumer reporting agency that assembles consumer
reports to companies or individuals

ACT: Resource for Property Management services and rentals
ONE SITE, YARDI VOYAGER (7}, DOC U SIGN, BLUE MO(
DEXIS, TREASURY GATEWAY BANKING, BOSTON POST

Current: Notary Certification
April z016-May 2020

Education:
Albert Sydney Johmston High School -1989

Austin Commumity College (Business Management) - 1943

References:

De Marlon Nixon (512) 614-4579
Theresa Stewart (512) 743-2833

Salary Range $52,000 +

nformation and provides consumer

)N, QUICK BOOKS, OUTLOOK




Meartin & Sadler, Atiomeys At Law - 1982 ~ 1880

SARAH DEPRIEST

Employment

Blackland Community Development Corporation- 2013 o Present

Answer phone calls and letters of people jooking
Provide information about other agencies with
Assist with property management in renting units
Work with Maintenance Manager on upkeep of

2 2 9 9 0

AGE of Central Texas —2011-2013

+» Answered phone calls and referred caliers to co

+ Assisted Director of Caregiver U with her secre
manuals for fraining.
s Toock minutes at board meeting, transcribed them

for approval before disseminating fo board membprs.

Wildwood Dreams Studio 2005 - 2011

+ Maintained alf customer.contact for woodworking
packages, website graphics, collecting payments|

or affordabie housing
rdable housing to callers.

its.

Pay bills and post rent payments using QuickBooks Online.

office.

Assisted Operations Manager with maintenance and rental needs.

needs inciuding copying

and serd o Executive Direcior

studio including emails, mailing

*» Created dollhouse scaie miniatures on wood lathe for sale.

US Postal Seivice — 1982 — 2011

» Supervised up o 13 employess at a large finance

unit. Responsible for zli

reporting, finance accounting, iraining of staff, scl}:duling of staff, daily
sto

operations of unit, explaining procedures to cu

»  Secretary and parategal for 4 atforney law firm.

State of Georgia, Dept. of Human Services — 1972 — 1980

ers, and resolving complaints.

+ Stenographer fo the Director of the State Adopiior] Unit.




BERTRAM ALLEN

Employment

Blackland Communily Development Corporation- 2014 o

Present

Maintenance Manager over 48 units and the office]

Assesses work requirements, performs work, of infprms staff to seek ouiside

confractor when needed.
e Performs maintenance checks on smoke deteciors
defeciors twice yearly.
« Replaced hvac filters in units an a scheduled basis
¢ Coordinates and assists with volunteer projects.

Bert's Maintenance -2013 fo Present

= Self-employed maintenance repairman.

Miler Properties 2011 to 2013

« Maintenance and hvac repair.

Ranier Management — 2005 to 2011

= Maintenance and hvac repair along with make-reag
Berfs Maintenance — 2002 o0 2011

+ Seli-employed mainfenance and hvac repair.

Osk Run Apartments — 1987 fo 2002

and carbon monoxide

iy of vacani uniis.

» Maintenance Manager oversaw maintenance depariment including rehab.
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3a. Federal IRS Certification




e TR SOt MATERT

. Penally of $20 a day, .up te:a maximum of-$10,600, WEN T TR
cause for the delay. . )

Internal Revenue Service Department of the Treasury

K. Q. Box 2508
Qincinnati, OH 45201

Date: Herson to Contact:

FEB 11 2000 Andrea Switser 31-00972
Custorner Service Representative
Blackland Community Development Corporation Toll Free Telephone Number:
2005 Salina St ' 8§77-829-5500
Austin, TX 78722 Fax Number-

. 513-263-3756
Federal Identification Number:
74-2279248

This letter is in response to your telephone inquiry of February| 11, 2000, requesting a copy of your
organization's determination letter. This Iettel_' will take the-plage of the copy you requested.

Qur records indicate that a determination Jetter issued in Janugry 1985, granted your organization exemption
from federal income tax under section 501 {c)(3) of the Internal|Revenue Code. That letter is stilf in effect,

Based on information subsequently submitted, we classified ydur organization as one that is not a private
foundation within the meaning of section 508(a) of the Code bdcause it is an organization described in
sections 509(a)(1) and 170()(1)(A)(vi). -

This classification was based on the assumption that your organization's operations would continue as stated
in the application. If your organization's sources of support, or lis character, method of operations, or
purpeses have changed, please let us know so we can considdr the effect of the change on the exempt
status and foundation status of your organization,

Your organization is required {¢ file Form 920, Retumn of Organiation Exempt from income Tax, only if its
gross receipts each year areriormally more than $25,000. If a qetum is required, .it must be filed by the 15th
day of the fifth month after the end of the organization’s annualjaccounting period. The law ifmposes a.. .

IS fied 1&te, Unless there is reasonable

All exempt organizations {unless 'speciﬁcaﬂy'f excluded) are fiablg for taxes under the Federal Insurance
Contributions Act {social security taxes) on remuneration of $10p or more paid to each employee during a
calendar year. Your organization is not liable for the tax imposed under the Federaj Unempioyment Tax Act
(FUTA). : :

- - - - - - - ¥
Organizations that are not private foundations are not subject tojthe excise taxes under Chapter 42 of the
Code. However, these organizations are not automatically exempt from other federal excise faxes.

Dono.rs may deduct contributions to your organization as provideld iTsection 17G of theCede. Bequests,
egacies, devises, transfers, or gifts to your organization or for it§ use are deductible for federal estate and
gift tax purposes if they meet the applicable provisions of sections 2055, 2108, and 2522 of the Code.
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Montemayor Britton Bender PC

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

Board of Directors and Management
Blackland Community Development Corporation

COMM[_JNECAT?ONS WITH THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE

We have audited the financial statements of Blackland Community Development Corporation (Blackland) for the
year ended December 31, 2019, and have issued our report thereon dated July 7, 2020. Professional standards
require that we provide you with information about our responsibilities under generally accepted auditing standards,
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the andit requirements
of the Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Reguiations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements Cost Principles,
and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance), as well as certain information related to the
planned scope and timing of our audit. We have communicated information related to the planned scope and timing
of our audit in our engagement letter to you dated February 2, 2020. Professional standards also require that we
commuricate to you the following information related to our audit.

Our Responsibility under U.S. Generally Accepted Auditing Standards and Uniform Guidance

As stated in our engagement letter, our responsibility, as described by professional standards, is to express an
opinion about whether the financial statements prepared by management with your oversight are fairty presented,
in all material respects, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles, Government Auditing
Standards and Uniform Guidance. Our audit of the financial statements does not relieve you or management of
your responsibilities.

Because an andit is designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance and because we will not perform
a detailed examination of all transactions, there is a risk that material misstatements or noncomphance may exist
and not be detected by us. In addition, an audit is not designed to detect immaterial misstatements or violations of
laws or governmental regulations that do not have a direct and material effect on the financial statements or on
major programs. Our responsibility as auditors is limited to the period covered by our audit and does not extend
to any later periods for which we are not engaged as auditors.

Accounting Policies

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. The significant accounting
policies used by Blackland are described in Note 2 to the financial statements. No new accounting policies were
adopted and the application of existing policies was not changed during 2019. We noted no transactions entered
into by Blackland during the year for which there is a lack of authoritative guidance or consensus. All significant
transactions have been recognized in the financial statements in the proper period.

2525 WALLINGWOOD DRIVE
BUILDING 1, SUITE 200
AUSTIN, TEXAS 78746
PHONE: 512.442.0380
FAX: 5124420817
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Board of Directors and Management

Blackland Community Development Corporation
Communications with Those Charged with Governance
Page 2

Accounting Estimates

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are based on
management’s knowledge and experience about past and current events and assumptions about future events.
Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance to the financial statements and
because of the possibility that firture events affecting them may differ significantly from those expected. The most
sensitive estimates affecting the financial statements were:

i. Management's estimate of the functional allocation of expenses is based on estimates of time spent by staff
on various functional activities and usage of space, as well as general knowledge of the expense accounts.

2. Management’s estimate of useful lives of fixed assets is based on historical and practical expectations of
the service lives of the particular asset classes.

3. Management’s estimate of the interest rate used to value contributed interest is based on comparable market
rates for long-term notes payable.

4. Management’s estimate of contributed goods is based on general knowledge of market rates for comparable
goods. '

We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop the allocation of functional expenses, the estimated
useful lives of fixed assets, and the values of contributed interest and goods received i determining that they are
reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole.

Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit
We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and completing our andit.

Uncorrected Misstatements

Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified during the audit, other
than those that are trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of management. The attached schedule
summarizes uncorrected misstatements of the financial statements. Management has determined that their effects
are immaterial, both individually and in the aggregate, to the financial statements taken as a whole.

Disagreements with Management
For purposes of this letter, professional standards define a disagreement with management as a financial accounting,

reporting, or auditing matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be significant to the financial
statements or the auditor’s report. We are pleased to report that no such disagreements arose during the course of
our audit.

Management Representations
We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the management representation

letter dated July 7, 2020.

Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting matters,
similar to obtaining a “second opinion” on certain situations. If a consultation involves application of an accounting
principle to Blackland’s financial statements or a determination of the type of anditor’s opinion that may be




Board of Directors and Management

Blackland Community Development Corporation
Communications with Those Charged with Governance
Page 3

expressed on those statements, our professional standards require the consulting accountant to check with us to
determine that the consultant has all the relevant facts. To our knowledge, there were no such consultations with
other accountants,

Other

With respect 1o the supplementary information accompanying the financial statements, we made certain inquiries
of management and evaluated the form, content, and methods of preparing the information to determine that the
information complies with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles, the method of preparing it has not
changed from the prior period, and the information is appropriate and complete in relation to cur audit of the
financial statements. We compared and reconciled the supplementary information to the underlying accounting
records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves.

We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing standards,
with management each year prior to retention as Blackland’s auditors. However, these discussions occurred in the

normal course of our professional relationship and our responses were not a condition to our retention.

This information is intended solely for the use of the Board of Directors and Management of Blackland and is not
intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

W@’L%% Bt Pendec PC -

July 7, 2020
Austin, Texas



BLACKLAND COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
UNCORRECTED MISSTATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2019

Account Debit Credit
Salaries and related 4729
Accrued vacation 4,729

to record accrued vacation

Beginning net assets 12,855
Property taxes 3,549
Accounts payable 9,306

to record property taxes on an accrual basis
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DECEMBER 31, 2019



Montemayor Britton Bender PC
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

Board of Directors
Blackland Community Development Corporation

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Blackland Community Development
Corporation (Blackland), a nonprofit organization, which comprise the statement of financial position as
of December 31,2019, and the related statements of activities and cash flows for the year then ended, and
the related notes to the financial statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generaily accepted in the United States of America; this includes
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted

our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the
assessment of the risk of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation
and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an epinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

2525 WALLINGWOOD DRIVE
BUILDING 1, SUITE 200
AUSTIN, TESAS 78746
PHONE;: 5124420380
FAX: 5124420817
Www.mon.temayox.team



Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Blackland as of December 31, 2019 and changes in its net assets and its cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America.

Other Matfers

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements taken as a
whole. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards (page 16), as required by Title 2
U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles,
and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not
a required part of the financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was
derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the
financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit
of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial
statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information
is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated July 7, 2020,

on our consideration of Blackland’s internal coutrol over financial reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters.
‘The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting
and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over
financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance
with Govermment Auditing Standards in considering Blackland’s internal control over financial reporting
and compliance.

WW Battan. Besdan PC

July 7, 2020
Austin, Texas
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BLACKLAND COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

DECEMBER 31, 2019
ASSETS
Current assets
Cash $100,927
Accounts receivable 11,369
Prepaids and other 37,800
150,096
Property and equipment 2,282,343
$2.432.439
LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
Current habilities
Accounts payable $54,990
Accrued payroll Habilities 10,542
Current portion of notes payable 72,178
137,710
Security and pet deposits 20,225
Long-term portion of notes payable 1,230,946
1,388,881
Net assets
Without donor restrictions
Undesignated 052,650
Board designated for construction and development 34,680
987,330
With donor restrictions 56,228
1,043,558
$2.432.439

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement presentation.
3o



BLACKIL.AND COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019

Without With
Donor Donor
Restrictions  Restrictions Total

REVENUE
Rental income and fees $298 112 $0 $298,112
Forgiveness of debt - 255,700 0 255,700

Grants and contributions, including $179,244 in

contributed goods and interest 184,190 58,108 242,298
Gain on sale of land 97,364 0 97,364
Other 3,931 0 3,931
Net asscts released from restriction 66,351 (66,351) 0
905,648 (8,243) 897,405

EXPENSES
Program 550,712 0 550,712
Administrative 99,904 0 99,904
Fundraising 16,991 0 16,991
667,607 0 667.607
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 238,041 (8,243) 229,798
BEGINNING NET ASSETS 749.289 64.471 813.760
ENDING NET ASSETS $987.330 $56.228 $1.043,558

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement presentation.
4-



BLACKLAND COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Change in net assets $229,798
Forgiveness of debt (255,700)
Depreciation 144,209
Gain on sale of land (97,364)
Change in accounts receivable (9,651)
Change in contributions receivable 43,000
Change in prepaids and other (758)
Change in accounts payable 26,074
Change 1n accrued payroll habilities (345
Change in security and pet deposits 91

82,354

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchases of property and equipment (72,635)
Proceeds from sale of property and equipment 99,900
27,265

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from note payable 75,755
Repayment of note principle (128.342)
(52.587)

NET CHANGE IN CASH 57,032
BEGINNING CASH 43,895
ENDING CASH $100.927

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION:
Cash paid for interest $7.329

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement presentation.
-5-



NOTE 1:

NOTE 2:

BLACKLAND COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ORGANIZATION

Blackland Community Development Corporation (Blackland) was incorporated under the
Texas Non-Profit Corporation Act in 1983 and was established for the purpose of preserving
and improving the character of the Blackland neighborhood of the City of Austin, Texas and
for engaging in community projects for the benefit and revitalization of the neighborhood.
Blackland is supported primarily by grants and contracts, contributions, and rental income.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

FINANCIAL STATEMENT PRESENTATION

Net assets are classified based on the existence or absence of donor imposed restrictions.
Accordingly, net assets and changes therein are classified and reported as follows:

Net Assets Without Donor Restrictions

Net assets available for use i general operations and not subject to donor restrictions. The
governing board has designated, from net assets without donor restrictions, net assets for
an operating reserve.

Net Assets With Donor Restrictions

Net assets subject to donor-imposed restrictions. Some donor restrictions are temporary in
nature, such as those that will be met by the passage of time or other events specified by the
donor. Other donor-imposed restrictions are perpetual i nature, where the donor stipulates
that resources be maintained in perpetuity. Donor-imposed restrictions are released when
a restriction expires, that is when the stipulated time has elapsed, when the stipulated
purpose for which the resource was restricted has been fulfilled, or both.

BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

Blackland uses the accrual method of accounting which recognizes revenue when earned
and expenses when incurred.

REVENUE

Contributions are recorded as revenue when the donor makes an unconditional promise to
give to Blackland. Conditional promises to give are not recognized until the conditions on
which they depend are substantially met, and the promises become unconditional.
Government grants are recognized as revenue as services are performed as required by the
contracts, which is when the related costs have been incurred. Rental income is recognized
monthly as eamed.

RECEIVABLES

Receivables consist of government grant and contribution receivables. Blackland considers
all receivables to be fully collectible; accordingly, no allowance for doubtful accounts has
been recorded.

-6



BLACKLAND COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 2: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Management of Blackland has evaluated subsequent events for disclosure through the date
of the Independent Auditor’s Report, the date the financial statements were available to be
1ssued.

ESTIMATES

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted
accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, disclosure of contingent liabilities at the date
of the financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the
reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

FUNCTIONAL EXPENSE ALLOCATION

Blackland incurs some expenses that are applicable to more than one program or supporting
function. Therefore, expenses require allocation on a reasonable basis that is consistently
applied. The expenses that are allocated include salaries and related, which are allocated
based on estimates of time and effort; depreciation, insurance and utilities, which are based
on usage of space; and professional fees, office and other, which are allocated based on
management's review and analysis of individual transactions and accounts.

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Acquisitions of property and equipment valued at $1,000 or more with a useful life greater
than one year are capitalized at cost, or estimated fair market value on the date of donation,
if donated. Repairs and maintenance costs are expensed as incurred. Depreciation is
computed using the straight-line method based on the estimated useful life of the asset,
ranging from 3 to 27.5 years.

INCOME TAXES

Blackland is an organization classified as an other than private foundation exempt from
Federal income taxes under IRS Code Section 501(c)(3). Therefore, no provision has been
made for federal income taxes in the accompanying financial statements. Blackland's
policy is to record interest and penalties related to income taxes as interest and other
expense, respectively. At December 31, 2019, no interest and penalties have been or are
required to be accrued.

RENTAL OPERATIONS
Blackland leases its housing units (48 as of year end) for use as single family residences

under noncancellable operating leases. Generally these leases have twelve month terms,
automatically renewing on a month-to-month basis thereafter.

u7-



BLACKLAND COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 3: CONCENTRATIONS
93% of notes payable are due to one lender.

NOTE 4: NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS

Subject to purpose restrictions at December 31, 2019:

Repairs $17.797
Construction and remodeling 16,037
Miscellaneous programs 13.789

47,623

Subject to time restrictions at December 31, 2019:

For use in 2020 8,605
56,228

Satisfaction of purpose restrictions during the year ended December 31, 2019:
Bouldin Creek CDC $19.216
Wellness 7,100
Construction and remodeling 13,463
Repairs 12,203
Miscellaneous programs 5474
57,456
Release of time restrictions during the year ended 31 December 2019: 8.895
$66.351

NOTE 5: CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

Blackland receives forgivable loans from the City of Austin (the City) to assist with
implementation of its program. In the event that Blackland does not comply with the terms
of these loans or should any costs be determined to be ineligible, Blackland will be liable to
the City for such amounts. Management believes there will be no such disallowance.

Under the terms of various agreements with funding agencies, Blackland is required to

provide certain services including, but not limited to, using certain properties for low-income
housing and maintaining certain levels of insurance.

&



BLACKLAND COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 5: CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

Blackland entered into a 60-year lease on April 1, 1986 with the City for use of the land on
which the Robert Shaw Village community was constructed. Under the provisions of the
lease, no payments are due to the City and the land must not be used for any other purpose
than to provide housing for eligible, low-income families. The lease contains an option to
renew for successive 10-year periods at the discretion of the City after the initial 60-year term
has expired.

As of December 31, 2019, Blackland had executed a contract for approximately $473,000 to
construct housing units. The entire contract balance was outstanding at year-end.

NOTE 6: PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Buildings and improvements $3,888,990
Construction in progress 142,053
Land 245,943
Furniture and fixtures 75,233
Office equipment 7,690
Accumulated depreciation (2,077.566)

32282343

NOTE 7: LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY

Financial assets available for general expenditure, within one year of the statement of
financial position date, comprise the following:

Cash $100,927
Accounts receivable 11,369
Less: Board designated for construction and development (34,680)
Less: donor purpose restrictions (47,623)

$29.993

As part of Blackland’s liquidity management, it has a policy to structure its financial assets
to be available as its general expenditures, liabilities and other obligations come due. Any
excess funds are invested in demand deposit accounts such as savings accounts.

NOTE 8: CONTRIBUTED GOODS AND INTEREST

During 2019, Blackland received $116,776 in contributed food and plants, and $62,468 in
forgiven interest expense, all of which are recorded in the statement of activities.

-9-



BLACKLAND COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 8:  CONTRIBUTED GOODS AND INTEREST

Blackland received 1,400 hours of volunteer services during 2019 in support of its programs
and administrative activities, with an estimated value of $35,127. However, these volunteer
services do not meet the criteria for recognition in the financial statements.

NOTE9: NOTES PAYABLE

Note payable to Austin Housing Finance Corporation (AHFC), collateralized
by rental real estate. The note bears a 0% interest rate until maturity and the
principal and interest shall be forgiven in its entirety if on January 1, 2023,
Blackland 1s in compliance with all terms and conditions of the Loan
Agreement. If property is sold prior to the maturity date, principal and
mterest on each property is due and payable upon the sale. $330,000

Note payable to AHFC, collateralized by rental real estate. The note bears
a 0% interest rate until maturity and the principal and interest shall be
forgiven in its entirety if on May 1, 2026, Blackland is in compliance with
all terms and conditions of the Loan Agreement. 491,790

Note payable to AHFC, collateralized by rental real estate. The note bears
a 0% interest rate until maturity and the principal and interest shall be
forgiven in its entirety if on March 12, 2033, Blackland is in compliance
with all terms and conditions of the Loan Agreement. 201,535

Note payable to AHFC, collateralized by rental real estate. The note bears
a 0% interest rate until maturity and the principal and interest shall be
forgiven in its entirety if on December 31, 2032, Blackland is in compliance
with all terms and conditions of the Loan Agreement. 150,095

Note payable to AHFC, collateralized by rental real estate. The note bears
a 0% interest rate until maturity and the principal and interest shall be
forgiven in its entirety if on January 31, 2032, Blackland is in compliance
with all terms and conditions of the Loan Agreement. 40,000

Note payable to CAA Premium Finance. The note bears an 11.04% interest
rate, payable in monthly installments of principal and interest until maturity
on November 30, 2020. 27,761

Note payable to Wells Fargo, collateralized by rental real estate. The note
bears a 7.25% interest rate, payable in monthly installments of principal and
interest until maturity on May 15, 2021. 61,943

$1.303.124

-10-



BLACKLAND COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 9: NOTES PAYABLE
Maturities:
2020 $72,178
2021 17,526
2022 330,000
2023 0
2024 0
Thereafter 883,420
$1.303.124
NOTE 10: FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES
Program Administrative  Fundraising Total
Salaries and related $86,245 $356,744 $15711 $158,700
Depreciation 136,999 6,489 721 144,209
Contributed goods 116,776 0 0 116,776
Contributed interest 62,468 0 0 62,468
Insurance 40,716 1,279 0 41,995
Professional fees 9.121 31,536 0 40,657
Utilities 23,985 1,136 126 25,247
Rental property repairs
and maintenance 23,615 0 0 23,615
Property taxes 12,855 0 0 12,855
Office 5,256 1,851 296 7,403
Interest 7,329 0 0 7,329
Other 25,347 869 137 26,353
$550.712 $99.904 $16.991 $667.607
NOTE 11: SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

In January 2020, Blackland executed a $150,000 note payable, at an interest rate of 5.6%,
with a five-year term, collateralized by real property.

In April 2020, Blackland received loan funding of approximately $42,000 through the
Paycheck Protection Program of the Small Business Administration. Blackland expects this
loan to be fully forgiven in 2020.

-11-



Montemayor Britton Bender PC
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

Board of Directors
Blackland Community Development Corporation

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING
STANDARDS

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
Americaand the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government duditing Standards issued
by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of Blackland Community
Development Corporation (Blackland) which comprise the statement of financial position as of December
31, 2019, and the related statements of activities and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related
notes to the financial staternents, and have issued our report thereon dated [ uly 7, 2020.

Internal Control Qver Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Blackland’s internal control
over financial reporting (internal control} to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Blackland’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not
express an opinion of the effectiveness of Blackland’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management
or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in
internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s
financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant
deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a
material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses
may exist that have not been identified.

2525 WALLINGWOOQOD DRIVE
BUILDING 1, SUITE 200
AUSTIN, TEXAS 78746
PHONE: 512.442.0380
FAX: 512.442.0817
WO, M ODtEmAY O teann.



Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Blackland’s financial statements are free from
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
confracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results
of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under
Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance

and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of Blackland’s internal
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering Blackland’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly,
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

WW%QW\/ Pevden FC

July 7, 2020
Austin, Texas
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Blackland Community Developme
Regular Monthly Meeting, Tuesday, Dece
Stewart Conservatory,

The Blackland Community Development Cor,
Tuesday, December 17th, 2019
Present: Joseph Martinez, Brooke Shannon, Bo McCa
Ramos, Amy Allen, and Lewis Roland.

Meeting called to order: 6:47 pm

Meeting adjourned at 8:41 pm.

ftem 8: Director's Report

Joseph requests board approval for submits fo grants.
board before January 2020 board meeting (deadline to)
RHDA grant/ City of Austin: predevelopment costs
Village ($150k predevelopment costs for $1.8 millio

predevelopment)

yet released by city (Spring 2020)

CHDO capacity grant/ City of Austin: grant informat

nt Corporation

ber 17th, 2019; 6:30pm

1902 Emst 22nd St,

poration Board of Directors meets on
at 6:30pm, at the Stewart Conse

rvatory.
er, Austin Dennis, Misael

Will send more information to
submit January 31)

for construction of Fannie Mae

N construction)

RHDA grant/ City of Austin: acquisition of 2107 Alarhio St project ($190k

on and submission criteria not

Motion to approve resolution to submit for funds f
predevelopment costs for construction of Fannie
acquisition of 2107 Alamo St. project; and CHDO ¢

Bo. Motion seconded by Austin. Vote to approve re:

opposition, no abstention.

Signed,

RHDA grant for

e Village; RHDA grant for
pacity building grant made by
olution was unanimous. No

0-21- 2020

Brooke Shannon

Secretary
Blackiand Community Devefopment Carporation
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Page 1 of B
BLACKLAND COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT CORP
1902 E 22ND ST
AUSTIN TX 78722

0

If your small business is experiencing a financial hardship
related to illness or workplace closures due to COVID-19,
please call (BG0)972-3301 to discuss vour payment options.

Th ACCOUNT N 789532
| DEPGSITS [ WITHDRAWALS |

BALANCE LAST STATEMENT i No. | AMOUNT i NO. | AMOUNT | BALANCE THIS STATEMENT
80,210.72 ] 11 ) 12,206.49 i 21 ] 9,853.22 i $2,563.99
Activity Items Processed 44 Cash Processed $1.54
--------------------------------------- DEPOSITS/CREDITS - ---mmomm o e oo o e oo
DATE TRANSACTION AMOUNT | DATE TRANSACTION AMOUNT
. |

07-10 DEPOSIT 1,086.00 | @7-1q DEPOSIT 1.54
07-14 DEPOSIT 781.00 [ 07-14 DEPOSIT 1,344.80
a7-20 DEPOSIT 1.106.00 { 07-24 DEPOSIT 263.00
07-24 DEPOSIT 1,08¢.008 i 07-31 DEPOSIT 950.00
DATE AMOUNT TRANSACTION DESCRIPTION
07-02 97.50 ELECTRONIC DEPOSIT PAYPAL TRANSFER 1009520579978
a47-02 4,751.00 ELECTRONIC DEPOSET HACA Pavrl Dedn 74-2279246

a7-29 767 .65 INTERNET FUND TRANSFER FROM ACCOUNT XXXXX9003

---------------------------------------- CHECKS PAID ==~ =--=--omomommmomemccmcaccccaeaoaa

DATE CHECK - AMOUNT | DATE CHECK AMOUNT i DATE CHECK AMOUNT
1 |

07-21 13311 # 29.95 | 07-28 13315 #* 320.00 |} 07-03 99704938 x ¥ 21.98

07 -27 13312 # 756.25 | 07-28 13316 # 146.00 | 07-03 99705266 * # 9.99

07-21 L33k * # 6%.66 | 07-13 99330646 x # 56.73 | 07-03 99705300 * 3} 6.98

* A BREAK IN CHECK NUMBER SEQUENCE
# RECEIVED ELECTRONICALLY AS AN IMAGE OF THE ORIGINAL CHECK

------------------------------------- OTHER WITHDRAWALS/DEBITS -----------o-cmmoomomaoomans

DATE AMOUNT TRANSACTION DESCRIPTION

G7-02 2,918.53 ELECTRONIC DEBIT IPFS214-775-0222 IPFSPMTTXP 25514

67-02 .00 INTERNET STMT COPY REQ

07-02 -00 INTERNET STMT COPY REQ

07~13 3.,437.50 ELECTRONIC DEBIT MONTEMAYOR BRITT SALE

07-14 100.08 ELECTRONIC DEBIT GOOGLE SERVICES US0B29GXF7
67-17 T740.38 LOAN PAYMENT FROST BANK LOAN PAYMT 664786159001
ar-21 47 .99 ELECTRAONIC DEEIT City of Austin T PAYMENT 5556180000
07-21 141.97 ELECTRONIC DEBIT City of Austin T PAYMENT 4827600000
07-21 230.71 ELECTRONIC DEBIT City of Austin T PAYMENT . 1233734807
07-21 286.462 ELECTRONIC BDEBIT City of Austin T PAYMENT 76414600000
o7-21 320.05 ELECTRONIC DEBIT City of Austin T PAYMENT 7456180000
07-22 .00 INTERNET STMT COPY REQ

07-22 -op INTERNET STHT COPY REQ

g7-22 -o0 INTERNET CHK COPY REQ

07-22 .ao INTERNET CHK COPY REQ

07-22 .00 INTERNET CHK COPY REQ

07-27 120.60 ELECTRONIC DEBIT LEASING SERVICES CASH TRANS UBED of Austin,
07-28 62 .06 ELECTRONIC DERIT ONE GAS TEXAS PR UTIL PAYMT 100854582394562
07-28 &4.67 ELECTRONIC DEBIT ONE GAS TEXAS PR UTIL PAYMT 1008545B81473184
07-31 5.00 SUBSCRIPTION ONLEINE BANKING FOR BUSINESS

Please examine vour bank statement upon receipt and report any differences or irregularities as specified in the Deposit
Account Agreement and Other Disclosures.
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From: Foadey, Angelo <angelo.foadey@ifrostbank.com>
Date: Fri, Jul 31, 2020 at 1:47 PM

Subject: RE: [EXTERNAL] Question

To: Joseph Martinez <jmartinez@blacklandede.org>

Joseph,
Here are the break-down of the term sheet.

- BPlex- : 7 year term with 25 year amortization schedule. For $720,000 = $3,937 payment a month as of yesterday for
principal + interest. We are proposing a 12-18 months interest only period for construction. The payment during that period
would $2,604 as of yesterday

- Single Condo: 7 year term with 25 years amortization schedule. For $20,000 = $492 principal + interest payment,
Best,

Angelo Foadey

Vice President | Corporate Lending

Frost — Banking, Investments, Insurance

2421 East Tth Sireet, Austin, Texas 78702

Office: 512-473-4890 | Customer Service: 5§12-473-4500
angelo foadey@frostbank.com | www frostbank.com

Administrative Assistant:

Sherry Cruz

Relationship Administrative Specialist | Corporate Banking
Frost — Banking, investments, Insurance

2421 East 7th St., Austin, TX. 78702-3801

Office: (512) 4734447 | Fax: (512} 473-4494
Sherry.cruz@frostbank.com| www.frostbank.com

Confidentiality Notice: This e-mail message (including attachments) is covered by the Electronic Communications Privacy
Act, 18 U.5.C. 2510-2521 and is legally privileged. Unauthorized review, use, disclosure or distribution is strictly prohibited. If
you are not the intended recipient, please contact sender and destroy all copies of original message.
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18072 E 22nd St, Austin, TX 78722
Report date Thursday, January 30, 2020

THE 1902 E 22ND ST NEIGHBORHOOD REAL ESTAJTE

AVERAGE HOME VALUES

MEDIAN HOME VALUE: & ME

$454,591
NEIGHBORHOOD HOME PRICES

DIAN REAL ESTATE TAXES:
6,385 (1.4% offectiva rmin)

rmssen

RO STALLD

$654,907 - SHR5N00

575,041 - EE4.000
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SR - e

F252.007 « SAEL00
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pudE o) 2.0%

plude
T OF HOMES
£ T et

YEARS OF AVERAGE RENT NEEDED TO BUY AVERAGE HON
€ 21 YEARS AND 1 MONTHS

AVERAGE MARKET RENT

GRC

AVERAGE MARKET RENT:
$1,407 / per month
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497

Heo) Ruboline to Sittn

o tiey Romsprbie 1B

QPERMAZIANE

For Pptatanr o Halae:




BEIGHRORHODE,

ﬁ@(}{gg& 1802 E 22nd St, Austin, TX 78722
Report date Thursday, January 30, 2020

SETTING

NEIGHBORHOOD LOOK AND FEEL
DENSLEY URBAN URBAN RURAL REMOTE
Pepubston Densiy
HOUSING MARKET DETAILS
AGE OF HOMES @ TYPES OF HOMES
51.2%

% OF HORES
LR

HOME SIZE & SPECIAL PURPOSE HOUSING

Ne Bodem
s Brdwar, ooyt Liesers .o.u%
]
1
L MllarHerung | 8.0%
|
[

2 Betoas Pubic Hody  { D.0%
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HOMEOWNERSHIP

HOMEOWNERSHIP RATE

0%

% OF HOMES.

I P e B




§§O§§ﬁ 1902 E 22nd St, Austin, TX 78722
! Report date Thursday, January 30, 2020

THE 1802 E 22ND ST NEIGHBORHOOD DEMOGRARHICS

136 Vita| Statistics. 0 Condition Alerts found.

LIFESTYLE
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Excellent

f Lwwry Communities

e b s G;:od i e s
= Gollege StudentFriendly | o
Good -
;_:& wﬁetirement Dream_Areas . ‘
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i FamiyFrendy | '
Poor
%x Vacation Home Locations N I
Poor
£ First Time Homebuyers 7 o .
Poor
SPECIAL CHARACTER
o " " —erpTren_dy RN - - .
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83 Walkable
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AGE / MARITAL STATUS

AGE

¢ Under 3 Years:
ST

5Te17:
. S%

B Tods:

Lo Sl

GENDER RATIO

g0

% OF RESIDENTS

HOUSEHOLD TYPES

ONE PERSON HOUSEHOLDS

I
% OF RESIDENTS
torparms it

MARRIED COUPLE WITH CHILD

W0O%
% LF RESIDENTS

AL AMESIEN AT

1902 E 22nd St, Austin, TX 78722
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EMPLOYMENT INDUSTRIES
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MEANS OF TRANSPORT

130%

VEHICLES

1002 E 22nd St, Austin, TX 78722
Report date Thursday, January 30, 2020

PER HOUSEHOLD

= of Mare Vehicles:

4 o¢ 2 Vahicles:
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s (e
% (F RESIDENTS |
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ANCESTRIES & LANGUAGES SPOKEN
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MEDIAN HOUSEHOLD INCOME

EDUCATION
PERCENT WITH COLLEGE DEGREE

% OF RESDENTS

PERCENT WITH ADVANCE DEGREE

INCOME AND EDUCATION
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e dma s

100.0%
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THE 1902 E 22ND ST NEIGHBORHOOD CRIME

67 Vital Statistics. 2 Condition Alests found.

NEIGHBORHOOD CRIME DATA

e e  MIOLENT - PROPER] _ToTAL -
Number of Grimes ol e T 108 120
Crime Rate

. 537 . 4068 45,05
(1005s satest) @ (pert,000residents) | i

17

Safer than 17% of U.S.
neighborhoods.

NEIGHBORHOOD VIOLENT CRIME

MURDER ROBBERY ASSAULT |
NDEX DX | MDEX o WNOEX

i : s g

{100 is satest)

100 i sasesl 00 k= aalest 100 &5 wfanl 104 Is mafet

Safer than 26% of U.S.
neighborhoods.

VIOLENT CRIME COMPARISON (PER 1,000 RESIDENTS)

4N hoveny Nl
o e

Austn ! Texms

AN, AL

MY CHANCES OF BECOMING A VICTIM OF A VIOLENT CRIME

in this Neighborhood

in Austin in Texas
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AUSTIN VIOLENT CRIMES

10802 E 22nd St, Austin, TX 78722
Report date Thursday, January 30, 2020

POPULATION: 964,254
o emmimuen .. WMURDER  RAPE RABBERY ASBAULT

T g Gy T R Frr o e e g
Rate per 1,000 402 082 195 159

UNITED STATES VIOLENT CRIMES

POPULATION: 327,157,434

MURDER RAPE _ROBBERY L LASSAMT
T = i it
Rate per 1.000 0.08 0.3 (ues 247

NEIGHBORHOOD PROPERTY CRIME

16 mOEX
25
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100 s s2fest r e e
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NDEX . THEFT
11 80
00 salesk 40 i satast
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AUSTIN PROPERTY CRIMES

POPULATION: 984,254

T . BURGLARY _THEFT MOTORVEHICLETHEFT .
Rate per 1,000 375 2847 265

UNITED STATES PROPERTY CRIMES

POPULATION: 327,167,434
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THE 1802 E 22ND ST NEIGHBORHOCD SCHOOLS

SCHOOL RATING INFORMATION

63

Address-Specific School Quality R
(1 00is best) schools that s

i Beﬁ:er than 63% of U 5. sr:hoois

1802 E 22nd St, Austin, TX 78722
Report date Thursday, January 30, 2020

ing. Rates the quality of the K-12 pubiic {
rve this address. (D i
i

JUALITY RATING COMPARED TO NA'I:]ON"

SCHOQOLS IN THIS ADDRESS
SCHOOL DETALLS GRADES QUALITY RATING COMPARED TO TX” G
2513 Rogers Ave PK-05 e
Auslin, TX 78722
- —— er e . . e s e
1607 Pennsyivania Ave: o8
Ausbn TX?BrE}Z
11 HS e e e ey e et e i s s
5500 Sunshine Dr 0912

Ausling, TX 70756

NEIGHBORHOOD EDUCATIONAL ENVIRONMENT

Adults In Nesghhorhood With College Degree Or Higher

Chlldr&n In The Neighbortood Living In Poverty

THIS NEIGHBORHOOD IS SERVED BY 1 DISTRICT:

AUSTIN ISD
83, 067 130
... Students Enrolied in Thig Distict

SchoolsinDistrict |

* 10 {5 highest

56.0%

- . _— - =
Students Per Clagsroom

{10 is best)

5

{10 is best)
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1902 E 29nd St, Austin, TX 78722
Report date Thursday, January 30, 2020

Better thar 72.3% of TX scheool districts.

Beiter

than 54.3% of US schoo! disiricls.

Public Schocl Test Scores {(No Child Left Behind)

rofickunicy In Reatting and Maih Proficlenty In Reazing

QO Dicrler 5 Stotn

School District Enrollment By Group

ETHNIC/RACIAL GROUPS
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O

Hlsmn:c

Aslan Or Paaﬁe htardaf

Amefcanladiznt:r!\!auveoimasla
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28.9‘.’!5
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FOR THIS DISTRICT PER STUDENT TOTAL

% OF TOTAL
Tolal Expendlitures @ ' 315.154 51237207.733

110.0%
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THE 1802 E 22ND ST TRENDS AND FORECAST
SCOUT VISION® SUMMARY

RISING STAR INDEX ® BLUE CHIF INDEX ©

Lovwe Blue Chip
Appreciation Fotential (3 years) Past Appreciation and existing fundamentals
RATINGS: 1=Very Low 2=Low 3=hloderate 4=High 5=Rising Star RATINGS: 1=Very Liw 2=Low 3=Moderate 4=High 5=Blue Chip

SCOUT VISION Neighborhood Home Value Trend and Forecast ©

§
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Q12600 QA G12002 QrRWCE G 2008 T T Dizoie e oz

e

SCOUT VISION® HOME VALUE TRENDS AND FORECAST

TIME PERIOD '"'“"'""M'"""'¥5+;£;é§é;£m%5§”W';I{;.I;L;&EAL};JTE CoumAREDTO ccm;iijo
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%&%Eﬁg@ 1802 E 22nd St, Austin, TX 78722
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KEY PRICE DRIVERS AT THIS LOCATION
Pros Cons

Factors likely to drive home values upward over the next ;gimpediments to home value appreciation over the next

few years or indicators of upwerd trends already ;few yezars of indicators of negative frends already
underway. ... pndeneey.
© Access to High Paying Jobs - @ Vgcancies .
& Income. Trend o & Regional Housing Market x
© School Performance Outlpok o o
: & Ctrime

& Educated Population Trend
SCOUT VISION® PROXIMITY INDEX

PRICE ADVANTAGE OVER
SURROUNDING NEIGHBORHOODS ®

3274

. Meighborhood price per saft
Price advantage score $ 2 9 1

RATINGS: 1=Strong Disadvantage 2=Disadvantage 3=Simiar Price ’
4=prvantage 5=Strong Advantage

Average Nearby Home Price per sqft

ACCESS TO HIGH PAYING JOBS ® JOBS WITHIN AN HOUR
Excellent L wmN T HIGHPAING: J0BS

£ minutps 38582
lobsscore o e -
RATINGS: 1=Limited 2=Below Average 3=Average 4=Very Good 18 mingfes 211538
ZzExceliant 20 mingtes 283961

30 mingles 384353

45 mingles Flrgcyl

e s

*Annual safary of 575,000 or mord
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SCOUT VISION® REAL ESTATE TRENDS AND FOR

AVG. ANNUAL HOMEOWNERSHIP TREND Over last §
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AVG. ANNUAL RENT PRICE TREND Over last 5 years
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SCOUT VISION® CRIME TRENDS AND FORECAS?;
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SCOUT VISION® EDUCATION TRENDS AND FORECAST

1902 E 22nd 8¢, Austin, TX 78722

Report date Thursday, January 30, 2020

ECAST

AVG. ANNUAL CHANGE IN COLLEGE GRADUATES Over last 5 years

-

TheNalow 02%

o

oty At ), 7

AVG. ANNUAL CHANGE IN K-12 SCHOOL PERFORMANCE Over last 5 years
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SCOUT VISION® ECONOMIC TRENDS AND FORECAST

AVG ANNUAL CHANGE IN PER CAPITA INCOME Oyer last 5 years

AVG ANNUAL CHANGE IN HOUSEHOLD INCOME ¢
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SCOUT VISION® DEMOGRAPHIC TRENDS

1902 £ 22nd St, Austin, TX 78722
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Dver last 5 years @

SeTacE FRoMTOGRTIoN T POPULATION SYEARS AGO  CURRENT POPULATION _ PERCENT CHANGE
H;‘;M“:_m____w___ e S e 4‘365 o é;”;";,
R e e o R @ 1435\;4.
3 Mlles 135,521 147,200 208% 4
5Hiies . 300282 324,760 LR
e e = e e @ 931;&
15 kves 1,095,854 1.2@8&0 & _33;,..,
25Mies B 1,623,213 T 4,865,817 o e: 15.01% 4
5 iies 038,351 2354450

SCOUT VISION® REGIONAL HOUSING MARKET ANALYSIS
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HOUSING AFFORDABILITY TRENDS: AUSTIN-ROU
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Years of average household income needed to buy average home
275 ]
15 ]

dass
275 I[
Region's Historicat Low Region's Historical High

REGIONAL 1 AND 2 YEAR GROWTH TRENDS @

REGIONACTREND _ LAST2YEARS COMPARED TONATIOM
Fopulation Grow: 5.41%
A-JBI:G-;W;‘ bt i e 5 v R 14134 “;5;3 ;ﬂ — -
Income Trend {Wages) 1557%
unc:ﬁp;y;ﬂm“mnd _935;84’ R
Stock Performance of Region's Industies 44,60 4
Vacaney trend 035% & ‘f:"%
Disclaimer

Forecasts of potential occurrences or non-occurrences of future conditions
rasults may differ materially from what is predicted in any information provi
generated by a Locafion Inc. Product or services is, or should be refied upg
future performance or prediction of real estate values. No representation i
estimate, or projection. Location inc. Makes no express or irnplied warranty|

Currert €8

[ _LAST1YEAR COMPARED TO NATION

0.33% ¥

18.15% 4

37% 4

Q63% -

* 16 highest

nd events are inherently uncertain. Actual
ed by locafion inc. Nothing contained in or
n as, @ pramise or representation as fo the
. made as to the accuracy of any forecast,
and afl information and content is provided
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"As is" without any warranties of any kind. Location inc. Expressly disclaims gny warranty of accuracy or prediciability,
and any warranty of merchantability and fitness for a particular purpose. Location Inc. Fusther disclaims any liability for
damages, loss, or injury arising out of the use this site and the data. All risks gssociated with using the site and the data
are borme by the user at user's scle cost and expense. By using the site you agree fo our Tenns of Use,
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AROUT THE 1802 E 22ND ST NEIGHBCRHOOCD

Real Estate Prices and Overview

This neighborhood's median real estate price is $454,591, which is mare expe

Texas and 80.9% of the neighborhosds in the U.S.

The average rental price in this neighborhoed is currently $1,407, based on
The average rental cost in this neighborhood is higher than §4.7% of the neigjv

This is a suburban neighborhood (based on population density) located in Au

This neighborhood's real estate is primarily made up of small {studio to two
bedroom} single-family homes and apartment complexesihigh-rise apartme
occupied by a mixture of owners and renters. Many of the residences in this

built between 1940 and 1969. A number of residences were also bullt betwee;

This neighborhood has & 11.9% vacancy rate, which is well above averag
{higher than 64.2% of American neighborhoods), Most vacant housing here is
that there is 2 weak demand for real estate in the neighborhood or that large

1802 E 22nd St, Austin, TX 78722
Report date Thursday, January 30, 2020

nsive than 93.1% of the neighborhcods in

NeighborhoodScout's exclusive analysis.
borhoods in Texas.

tin, Texas.

bedroom) to medium sized (three or four
nts. Most of the residential real estate is
neighborhood are older, well-established,
h 2000 and the present.

b compared to other U.S. neighborhoods
acant year rounw. This could sither signal
Lmount of new housing has been built and

not yet occupied, Either way, if you live here, you may find many of the homes or apariments are empiy.

Notable & Unigue Neighborhood Characteristics

“The way 3 neighbortivod lcoks and feels when you walk or drive araund it, frof
make all the difference. This neighborhood has some reaily cool things aboy,
NeighborhoodSeout's exclusive research. This might include anything from th
living here to how people get arcund.

Notable & Unigue: Modes of Transportation

Would you like to be able to ride your bike to work? If you are attracted o
two-wheeled type while reducing your carbon footprint, bicycfing te work mig

hits setting, its buildings, and its flavor, can
b the way it locks and feels as revealed by
b housing stock to the types of households

the idea of getting a litle exercise of the
ht be the answer. But which neighborhood

you live in can make this either impossible, or alternatively, a great and re
revealed that the Manor Rd / Airport Blvd neighbarhood is 2 fantastic
commuters here do ride their bikes to and from work on a daily basis. This is
the neighborhoods in America.

Notable & Unigue: Diversity

tion for bicycle commuters, as 54% of
higher amourt than we found in 98.4% of

a%stic option. NeighborhoodScout's analysis

Did you know that the Manor Rd / Airport Blvd neighborhood has more West Ifdian and Scots-irish ancestry people living

in it than nearly any neighborhood in America? It's truel In fact, 3.7% of this
ancestry and 4.2% have Scols-Irish ancestry.

Manor Rd / airport Blvd is also pretty special finguistically. Significantly,
above primarily speak Persian at home. While this may seem like a small
neighborhoods in America.

neighborhood's residents have West Indian

0.7% of its residents five years old and

percentage, it is higher than 86.5% of the
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The Neighbors

The Neighbors: Income

1802 E 22nd St, Ausiin, TX 78722
Report date Thursday, January 30, 2020

There are two complementary measures for understanding the income of & geighborhood's residents: the average and

the extremes. While a neighborhood may be relatively wealthy overall, it is ¢

people - particularly children - who are living at or below the federal poverty
neighborhoods with a lower average income may actually have a lower childh

average income, nd this helps us understand the conditions and character o

qually important fo understand the rate of
fine, which is extremely low Income. Some
bod poverty rate than another with & higher
f 2 neighborhaod.

The neighbors in the Manor Rd / Alrport Blvd neighborhood in Austin are migdle-income, making it a moderate income

neighborhood. NeighborhoodScout's exclusive analysis reveals that this nelg

hborhood has a higher income than 48.4%

of the neighborhoods in America. With 27.3% of the children here below the federal poverty line, this neighborhood has

=z higher rate of childhood poverty than 72.5% of U.8. neighborhcods.

The Neighbors: Occupations

The old saying "vou are what you eat” is true. But it is also true that you are what you do for 2 living. The types of

occupations your heighbors have shape their characler, and ngether as a gr
culture of a place.

In the Manor Rd ! Airport Bivd neighborhood, 63.4% of the working populatig
and professional occupafions. The second most important occupational grot
jobs, from major sales accounts, to working in fast food restaurants, with
residents here are employed in manufacturing and laborer occupations (9.8
support cccupations.

The Neighbors: Languages

The most common janguage spoken in the Manor Rd / Airport Bivd neig]
households. Some people also speak Spanish {7.9%).

The Neighbors: Ethnicity / Ancesfry

Boston's Beacon Hill blue-blood streets, Brookiyn's Orthodax Jewish encla
Each has its own culture derived primarily from the ancestries and culturs of ]
home. Likewise, each neighborhood in America has its own culfure - some m
occupations, the types of households — and importanily — on the ethnicities

neighborhoed. Understanding where people came from, who their grandpa?

you understand how a neighborhood is today.

In the Manor Rd / Airpori Bivd neighborhood in Austin, TX, residents most ¢

bup, their collective oocupations shape the

in is employed in executive, managerment,
b in this neighborhood Ts sales and service
208% of the residents employed. Cther
L), and 5.8% in clerical, assistant, and tech

hborhood is English, spoken by 87.6% of

res, Los Angeles' Persian neighborhoods.
he residents who cali these neighborhoods
ore unique than others — based on lifestyle,
nd ancestries of the people who five in the
ents or greai-grandparents were, ¢an help

ornmenly identify their ethnicity or ancestry

as German (12.8%). There are alse 2 number of people of English ancestry (11.7%), and residents whao report Irish

roots (8.9%), and some of the residents are also of Mexican ancestry (8.1%),
{4.3%). among others.

along with some French ancesiry residents
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Getiing to Work

Even ¥ your neighborhood is walkable, you may still have to drive to your placg of work, Some neighborhoods are located
where many can get to work in just a few minutes, while others are iocatedluch that most residents have a long and
ardupus commute. The greatest number of commuters in Manor Rd / Airport Bivd neighborhood spend betwesn 15 and
30 minutes commuting ene-way o work {53.0% of working residents}, which i& shorter than the fime spent commuting to
work for most Americans.

-Here most residents (76.4%) drive alone in 2 private automobile to get to work. In addiion, quite 2 number also bicycle
to get to work (6.4%) and 6.1% of residents also ride the bus for thefr daily commute. In a neighborheod fke this, as in
most of the nation, many residents find owning 2 car useful for getting to work.
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City of Austin Good Neighbor Checklist

The Neighborhood Housing and Community Development G
Policy to standardize process and identify expectations for 3

Austin’s Rental Housing Development Assistance (RHDA) an
programs. Applicants of these programs are required to

ATTACHMENT 6b

bffice (NHCD) offers a Good Neighbor
Il projects funded through the City of
i Acquisition and Development (A&D)
prepare and begin implementing a

community engagement plan, including neighborhood notification activities. The community

engagement plan is required whether the application is
renovation of an existing building, regardless of whether ther

A successful community engagement plan leads to ope
between developers and neighbors. This requires good-faith
City officials and residents. A positive, open dialogue betwe
can prevent misunderstandings, facilitate prompt resolution
and provide a fair, thoughtful, dependable means of resolving

The following checklist of items is required of all applicants fq

(1}p
ighborhood Natification

(2)

Jﬁ Notify property owners within at least 500 feet of
organizations with boundaries included in the proposed de
letter or flyer.

liminary Research
Review the Neighborhood Plan (if applicable)

g)}ﬂApp!ication Engagement
Contact neighborhood organizations to provide ct

for funding for new construction or
> is a change in ownership.

n, ongoing two-way communication
=fforts and cooperation by developers,
en housing developers and neighbors
of any inadvertent misunderstandings,
: differences.

r funding:

the site and registered neighborhood

yelopment site, using a written notice,

rrent information about the project,

including any neighborhood association whose boundgries are included in the proposed

development site and Neighborhood Planning Contact Tear
Good Neighbor Guidelines for more detailed information
oppraprigte to share)
Appoint a Single-Point-of-Contact {SPOC) to serve as
{4) Application requirements
Provide communications plan

n (if applicable). (see full City of Austin
on what kind of information may be

the liaison for exchanging information.

Provide documentation showing the content of the notice, and proof of delivery

Provide signed copy of this checklist.

| have re ewed and completed ali of the above checklist
Good Ne; hbor Guidelines.

V Jsel faea

,,\,ft'l-

items required by the City of Austin’s

J12 /205

Slgned printed name

[ [ date
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City of Austin

P.O. Bux 1088, Anstin, TX 78767
zwdfyofaustin.org/ honsing

Neighborhood Housing and Community Déve!opment Department

U g{_) &o\;{%a %ﬁc\ U e «:-..*\\eié
January 28, 2620 (revision to letter dated July 11, 2018)

S.M.A.R.T. Housing Certification
Blackiand Commuagity Development Corporation: Fannie Mae Stewart Village (ID 419)

TO WHOM IT MAY CONCERN:

Blackland Community Development  Corporation. (Development conect: Joseph Maxtinesz;
512.220.8751 jmartnez@blacklandcde.org) s planning o ct an B-unit mubi-family
developrient in the Upper Boggy Creek Neighborhood Planning area at 1900-1908 E. 22 Street.
The development will also inchide 2 community ceater that will sebve the residents. The development
is subject 1o a minimum S-year affordability period after issuance| of certificace of occupancy, unless
project funding requirements are longer.

This revision is only wpdating the certification date.

NHCD ceriifies that the proposed construction meets the SE.R.T. Housing standards at the pre-
submietal stage. Because 100% of the units in this development [will serve households with incomes 2t or
below 50% (MFT) the developmient js eligible for a waiver of 100% of the fecs listed in the City of Austins,
Land Development Code, Chapter 25.1-704, as amended. Expectd fee waivers include, but are not limired
to, the following fees:

AWU Capital Recovery Fees Site Plan Review Land Status Determination
Building Permit Misc. Site Plan Fze Building Plan Review
Concrete Permit Construction Inspection Parkland Dedication {&y
Electrical Permit ‘Subdivision Plan Review seporate ordinonce}
Machanical Permit Misc. Subdivision Fee
Plumbing Permit Zoning Verification

Prior to issuance of building pecmits and starting constructiop, the developer must:

% Obtzin 2 signed Conditional Approval from the Avstin Energg Green Building Program statpng that
the plans and specifications for the proposed development meet the criteria for 2 Green Building Rating.
{Contact Austin Energy Green Building: 512-482-5300 or tnpl@austi o).

¢ Submit plans demonstrating compliance with the required a ibility or visitability standards.

Before 2 Certificate of Oceupancy will be granted, the development must:

¢ Pass a2 final inspection and obtain a signed Final Approval [from the Green Building Program.

(Separate from any other inspections required by the City of Austin or Austin Energy).

¢ Pass a final inspection to certify that the required accessibility oz visitability standards have been met.

¢ An administrative hold will be placed on the building permit, until the following items have been
compieted: 1) the number of affordable units have been finalized and evidenced through a sealed
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Unifonn Residential Appraisal

Ward Appraisals

Report

File  013r20

A Cese No,

The purpose of 4iis su)

rasal report i 1o p

the iendes/clent with an accurals, and adeguatesy

Supporled, opinion of the matket valie of te Sibject gropery.

P Addmss 1902 € 22nd 5t £y _Austin Stale TX_ ZwCode 7m72e
Bosiower NI Croner of Publie Becord  Blackland Comivurity Develspment County Fravis
ipfigh_ Lot 2. Block 46 OLT 46 Division B. C.R. Johns Addition
Assessor's Pasel # 0211080309 TaxYear 2018 RETaes$ 7137
i cod Name _East Austin _ Map Refersnce  Ebst Austin Ceasus Treet pon4.02
Qecupers 6] Dwrer [ Tenant | Yagarm _ Special Assessments§ g CIPUD HOAS 6 1) peryear ] per month
= Prog itts Anpraissd Fee Simple [ ] Leasehold {ier idescribe)
Assignment Ty Purchass Transarsion Befinancs Transecion Dty fdasetibe] Estimate rharket value
LenderChent  Biackland Community Develo, ment Cors  AdNeSs 1902 E 29nd St _Austin TX 78702
k5 ths subject egme oﬂaredfnrsaiemmhummmmmm&emmsgﬂmmm ve dee of this appraisal’? (J¥ss A No

Reoorntdats soumefs) used,

NG AER(s)  MLS, two records,

P )i [ oid neg analyze the cootract for s for the sebiect purchass fensaction. Exp!aimeresmmofmeaﬂ
rformed

elysls of the centract Tor sale or wihy the 2nalysis was not

+} Contract Prige §

Dzze of Costracy

I5 thare ary financial assfstance
I Yes, veport the wial dollar am

(loan cherges, sak concassions, fift or downpayment assistance, e} o be paid
ount and descriis the itsms o be paid.

20y parly on behalf of the borower?

Is the property seller the owner of public % 1Yes | JNo Dak Sourcefs)

LiYes jhe

Nc&:Raeeandﬁwmniﬂwmpusﬁanﬂhameaem isal faztoes.

7 T : P " R o T e e e
Locaticn B Urban Subtrhan [ Rural Property Vaioes B Inerasin Stehle [ ]| Dacfning FRICE AGE | Ome-Unit

o Buii-L Qvervo% | J 35-T5% Under 25% | Dema ) Shantage In Bakence Over Supply | 8 {000} (s} 124 Unkt

%3 Growth Rapi S [ Sow Markettng Fme B9) Under3mahs (] 3-Bmihs | [lOverGrhs | 225 Low. o Meoti-Family
Weighborhood Bopndaries _ Eact 12th to the. seuth, IHL25 to fhe Alrpart io the east and nerth. The 700 Hgh 100 | Commerci

S} Austin ISD serves the neighborhood. Major streste include Manor and Chicon. 445 Prd. 5 [Dfer

Neighbnzhnor Descri The subject is located in an established residential nek hborhoed charactarized by a bland of mediurn sized hom
duplexes and Fal pnits, The neighbsrhood has experdenced cantinyed dermand Tisi| erty values. Access to employmen
shopping, scheols, and the road is gond for the Austin market.
Narien Conditions fnciud et Tor the above conchisions' Sormang for resesl b " sSable With vacancy rates below 105 anvs a1able vitkies Zrw statle to
ncransing with pogt demens, evostor confida e, cagh g boleaial iar Iftion of naw musemit) ks fs rosticted 4o L co fniha and ef the ceatal
urk, The od i 40 mafely &-200 days. Flinanclos i aualizbie vix wentiomal, FHA, and VA a2 5 ta 41 apkeent,

Dittiensions See surv Ared 968S sf Shape Rectanoular ¥iew N:Res;

gific Zoning Classification SF-a-NP Zoning Descrition_Single family residential with a nefahborhood plan
Zonlpy fiance Norcorforming {Srandiathered Tise) Ha Zonk {dascribe) |
I5 the highest and best use of sib 2 improved for as pioposed per plans and Speclications) the tke? Yes I TNo ¥ No descrbe
Ufilities Public  Other fdeseribe} Fublic _Dther {describe) Oft=site mprovestents = Type Public Private
Electicy  B& War [ Street Asphatt
Bas Sanitary Sewer [ N Jalle hatt Bg
FEA Special Propd Hazard Ares Yes 0% No FEMA Flsod 7one X FEMA Mup # sB4z3 fEMA Map Date D1/06/2018

Arz the uffliies and off-site improvements typical for fhe marke; rea?

B% Yes [ Mo Ifio describe

Ase there any agverse sie Gonftions or exenl faciors (=asemerts. gy

eroachments, emvironmentsl corditions, Bnd usks, eie.)?

[J¥es € o I Yes. describe

R R
Do [] One with Accessory Linit face i
# of Stoeies 1.0 (] Partal Baseonent IEseerior Walks
T et [ )k {7 S-Det/End Unit |Basement Area 0_sift|Roof Surface
Existing [ 7 Pmposed [T Under Const o _%|Guters & Do inyliaverage -
Desi Bungaiow o Walhsoo! Fiberalass/average
Year Buat 1937 G2 Shirage 1 Nomg
Pffective 5] 50 5] Driveway  # of Cars 2
Allic L_1 Hone Driveitay Surface Concrete
11 Drog Stalr Staits Gvae  Foflax o
Hoo; Seuftle Campoct  #of Cars 2]
L] Finished Heated At (et [ puka
("] Refrigerator [} Distnsher 71 Disposal [ ] Misrowave Wash, {_] Cther (deserite}
Finshed area above grads containg; 5 Rooms 2 _Bedrooms 1.0 Bahfs) 1,027 _Squerg Feet of ross Living Area Above Grade
Adtonal features {special efiicient 205, #).  Coverad front parei, covered rear and side porches
Deserbe the condfian of the melding nesdag repalrs, deterioration, renovalions, remodaling, le. Ci4No in the prier 15 :The sul
maintained jn a e cendifion, is funcdisnal, marketsble. and in conformy with s surroundi Quality of constraetion is considered to
average for the ares,
A there it deficiancles or atverss etndEons that affec he Tvabilty, Savmioss, o7 SOUERE of the groperty? E1Yes B Mo IfVes describe
Does the prope: confarm  the neighborfiond (fmstional atdiy. shie, condlion, Uite, coRsUCHon, atn }7 B Yes ] No I No, desere
Fredoie Mac Foon 70 March 2005 UAD Version 9/2011  Page1 of 6 Fannie Mae Form 1004 March 2005
Form 1004140 - “TOTAL" appraisal sotiwaze by a ks mode, ine. ~ 1-B0A-ALAMODE
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Uniform Residential Appraisa Report Fe# 01320
jeeae 7 comparble properies comenty oifered for s b 1he sbbiect neighborhgod ranging In brice fiom 8 350,600 b$ 7oo.000
TheeAle 50 comperable sdes in e subix neighbahood within the pest Sweive momhs fnoing I 2 piige fom $ 300,000 &3 730000
: FEATURE SUBJECT CUMPRARABLE SAIF =1 COMPARABLE ESALE#3
B Address  1ap2 E22nd 5t 2801 E 22nd St
Austin, TX 78; Austin, TX 78722
ipet 10 Suljjer 0.57 mites E
Sale Price : e 418,006
Szl Price/Bigss Liv, Area 3 - 576.39 suft [ ‘ ]
Dta Source(s MLsnmdAgﬁDOM £ MLSTax/AgentDOM 7
R Verification Sourcels IMLS-ABOR #8260672 MLES-ABDR 0299 MLS-ABOR #4402272
B VALUE ADJUSTMENTS DESCRIFTION +{} § Adfustment | DESCR +§) § Adstrent | DESCAIPTION i} $ Adustment |
i Safas or Frencing rmith Armlth Armlth
¥ Concessibns {Cash:n Cash:p Cash:0
B Dats of Sale/Time s05/19;008/19 S06/18.c06/1b £10/78:c00/19
8 Location NER N:Res: NiRes; N;Res:
LeaseholdFee Simple Fee Simple Fee Simple Fea Sy Fee Simple
o S S5BS &f &BBS sf +2B (OD|S360 &f +33.300l12187 & 25100
RN View N:Res: N;Res: N:Res: N;Res;
B8 Desion (Style DT1.0:Bungaiow DT 1.0; Bungsfow BT1.0:Bun DT1.0;Bunazlaws
B Quaiity of Construstion Q4 Q4 a4 o4
B Actiial Age 23 59 ojBs algs o]
f Condition ca c4 3 -25000/C3 ~25,000
| Above Grade Tosa! B, | Bathe | ol fEdme [ Behs ot |Bdms. | B Tota) |Bums. | Ezhs
g Room Count £l 218 s 3 [20 5000 5 ( 2 |+ s).2 1140
8 Gioss Living Areg 1,027 st 1,088 sift <8100 720 sif +15,400 720 s.it +15,400
f Basement & Friished Osf Osf Osf osf
Reoms Beiow Grate
% Finctiongl Lin) Avers Averape Average Avemge
[ Heating/ T ng Ceaniral Walliwindow 4+5,000] Certral Central
=} Eneroy Efficient fiems None None None None
[N Samgs/Camort Zdw icpidw 2,500 2elwe Zetw
g Porch/PatioDeck Porghes Porches ... |Porches Porghes
g
g.
b Mt Eosiment (1o B+ [1- 18 22400 &+ 711108 27000 [+ 9- 3% 31,700
P8 Adjsiag Sale Price NetAd,  RI% L IIY ] NetAd,  84%
o 0f Comparshles i JGossAdl  119%!% 387.400/6ross Adi. 187 K|S 417.480(Cross Adj. 158 %(% 380.300
BT 0% did [ cid nx researgh e £ transfer history of the subiect property and camparaite sales, B vt axplah
research [ 1 did DY o not reveal any prior seles o Tansters of he subiet promert 0 the threp years grior ] the sfieetive date of this aopraical.
8 Dot Source(s) LS and Tax Reeordg
(Myresearch [ did (5] did not revesd 2 prior S30es o Wransfers of the comparahle sales for e yorr g fo s dete of sale of the comparabis saie.
020 Sturee(s}  MLS and Tax Recards
R 7 rtmemulsnfmmsemmg@nﬂhegﬁursahDer of the subject and 82 {tepart addRioal prior sales on page 3).
= e SHRJECT COMPARABLE SALE #1 MPARABLE SALE #2 COMPARABLE SALF 23
B Date of Prior Sala/Transfer
& Price of Prior Sele/Transtor
Dale Source(s MLSTax MLE/Tax MLS{Tax MiSiTax
Effective Date of Data Source(s ST 01A7/2020 Q/112020 01172020
i Of prior sele or transfer Mistory of the sobijact property ard comparahls sales There were no saled or the subject property or the comparable sales in
f the mandated period.
QR Summary of Sales Comparison Apgroach  Soe atachod sheets for additionai corments.
M ndicateg Vabie by Sales Gomparisan Appmarh § 400,000
Indicated Value by: Sales Compansa Appreach 3 400 000 Cost Approach (ff developed) § 403 715 Income Approach {f developed) §
f The Ineome Approach upports the value of the Sales Comparison Approach and the final astiriate of value for the subject The Cost Aparoach
«D‘f was not considered refiable and was not ui ed in the report.
=
<X

This appralsel Is made € "asis”. (] sthect 1o compieton pes plans and spesifisations on the basis of &
Mcwingmp&serdtemﬁmsmﬂsebu&sofahm@ﬂnaimﬁrﬁmﬂmﬁem

based on e edraordinaty assumption Hat the condiion or defidents foes not require Fheration or Egalr

edl condifion that the improvements have been
O alierations Bave been complated, or [ subject to th

visual i ection of the inlerior and exterior areas of the Sub) defined Seope of work,
cﬁ%uﬁm, my {our) opinion of the markef valve, gs J:ﬁtned, ofg'erea[pro ety
400000 asof 01722020 which is the dale of ing

ot and the sfiective |date of this a
Freddie Mac Form 70 March 2005 UAD Version 9/2011  Page 2 of 6

Form 1004UAD - <TOTAL® 2ppeaisal sfware by ale tuode, ing. - 1-800-ALAMDDE

statement of
that is the subject of
raisal.

assumplions and limi
this report is "

Fannie Mag Form 1004 March 2005




Uniform Residential Appraisa

Report

FHANA Gass No.

Flles 013r20

B See attached sheet,

o AODITIONAL COMMENTS, vy, o e

- COSTAPPRDAGHTOVARDE {00k reiiired by Fatmia Masy

 Provic adeaual formation for e fenderciont o ke e bleat cost Faures ol st

R Support far the opition of e value (Simmary of somparable land sakes o otfer methods for estimating Site vafue)

Lot sales in close proximity to the subject over

 the past vear ranpe between $310.000 to 8510.000 depe ding on size. Houses considered tefr Gowns on similar sized Iots sold Betwaen
8 5310,000 0 $300.000 and wers all on 0.14-016 acre lots, The gstimated value of the subjects jot = $375 000,

o ESTIMATED' 1 REPRODUCTION OR [ REPLACEMENT COST NEW OPNION GF STFEVALBED. ... =3 375.000

Py Source of cost data _Marshall and Swit Cost Service-2020 online BWELLING 1,027 Seft @3 =5 82,430

4 Qualty reting from cost service_ Average Efiectve dat o1 Cost g D1/47/2020 e SeR@s 000 =8

k=3 Comments on Gost Apnraach (g fiving area caculztions, deoreciation. et) =5

’g‘ Data for the Cost Approsch was ebtined from Marshall and Switt Garagy/Carport Sef@$ =5

it Residential Cast Handooelc, Physical depreciation wes calculsted via {0t Estinge of Costhale =$ 52,430
he Age-Life Method estimating an effeclive age of 50 yess and & [ess Poysical | Trunctonal  JEdemal

8 renaining economic ife of S0 years. The resuiting depreclstion factar ks | Deprcialion 15; =§( 46.21@_1

B 50%, Depreciatec Cost of improjements - =8 46215

: “As-le* Valus of Sitg m% e 2,500

Estimated Bemainico Foonamic Life (D 2nd VA o

e |}

Ectiped Monthly Maket Fent §

‘ndicaed Vaiue by Income Approach |

3
B Summary of Income Appraa

1

cirding subportfor mariet rent and GALD

)

e FROUECT N ORMATION FOR PUCK { tpicasie
L5 e developerbudder in confrod of the Homeowners' AsSociation

Hom? [1Yes [ 1Mo lnlttyoess) [ Ddtached [ ] Attached
J Emvitte the folting information for PUDs ONLY # the developerbricer is in comrol of the HOA and the sebject propertylis 2n attached dwelfing unit.

agal Name of Project

3 Toel umber of pheses Tokeh nuher of s Totel mamher of urits SE
=4 Tofal rumber of 1mits ranted Total number of upits for Sale Data sourzats)

<
=

Vas the projact oreated fiy the conversion of existing buiing(s) it 2 PUR?

E1Yes [ ]No HfVes, date of convbrsion,

o Jocs the prozect contaim any ruti-dweling unts? [ 1 Yes | ] No Dats Sowse

=4 Are the onits, camimon slemenss, and recreation fasiifies campleie? [IYes [1No If¥, descdbe e stews

Coimpisan.

PUDI

 Are the commen elements leased 1o of by the Hemeowmers Assocabon? || Yes | o # Yes, deseribe the Fentd) tarmns and oyions,

R Describe common slements and recreational faciliies,
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FHA/VA fiase No.

Uniform Residential Appraisal Report File# D13r20

This report form s designed to report an appraisal of a one-unit property or a jone-unit properly witht an accessory unif;
intiwing 2 unit in a plaoned unht development (PUD). This report formn is mof designed fo report an appraisal of a
manufactiured home or a unit in a condominium or sooperative  project

nded user, difinitlon of market value,

. additions, or deletions fo the intended
0RS are not permitied. The appraiser may
based on the complexity of this appraisal
assignment. Modfications or delefions to the certifications are also not permitted However, additional certifications that dp
not constitute materdal alterations to this apprasal ®port, such as those required By [aw or those relded 1o the appraiser's
continuing education or membership In an appraisal orgenization, are permitted.

SCOPE OF WORK:  The scope of work for this apprisal is defined by the co
reporiing requiremens of this appraisal report fomm, including the foBowing d
assumptions and fimiting condifions, and certifications. The appraiser must, at a iniwure (1) perform a complele visual
inspection of the imterior amd eerior areas of the subject propeity, (2) imspect the neighborhood, (3) inspect each of the
tomparable sales from at least the strest, (4) research, vorify, and analyze data|from relable public andfor private sourses,
and {5} repont his or her analysis, opinions, and conclusions i this appralsal report.

plexity of this appraisal assignment and the
of market valge, sitement of

INTENDED USE:  The intended use of this appeaisal feport is for the lender/cli
subject of this appraisal for a mortgane fin2nce transaclion.

1o evaluate the propenty that is the

INTENDED USER: The intended user of this appraisal report is the lender/client

DEFINITION OF MARKET VALUE: The most probable price which 2 property should bring in a competiive and open
market under all conditons requisite to a fair sale. the buyer and saller, each acti

the price Is not affected by uadue stimulus. Implieit in tis defnition is the <o
the passing of fiie from seller 1o buyer under conditions whereby: (1) buyer and|seller are typically motivalet; (2) both
parties are well informed or well advised, and each acting in what he or she iders his or her own hest imterest (3 a
reasonable Bme is alfowed for exposure in the open market; (®) payment & made i ferns of cash in U. S dollars or in ferms
of financial amangements comparable thereto: and () the price represents the nomal consideration for the propeny sold
unaffected by specil or creafive financing or sales concessions* granted by anyone associzied with the sale.

*Adjustments o the comparables must be made for special or creative fimancing |or salgs concessions. No adjustments are
necessary for those costs which are nommally paid by seliers as a result of tradiioh or kw in a market area; these costs are
readlly identifiable since the sefier pays these costs in vineally afl sales tansactipns. Spechl o creative financing
adjustivents can be wmade to the comparable property by comparfsons o financing terms offered hy a thind parly Institutionat
lender that is not already involved in the properly o transaction. Any adjustment uid not be calculated on a mechanical
doliar for dollar cost of the financing or concession but the dolfar amount of any| adjustment should approximate the market's
reaction tv the financing or comcessions bassd on the appraiser's judgment.

STATEMENT OF ASSUMPTIONS AND LIMITING GONDITIONS: The appraiser's dertffication in this report is
subject to the following assumplions and limiing condions:

t. The appraiser will 6ot be responsible for matters of a legal nature that affect effer the property being appraised or the fitle
1o B except for information that he ot she became aware of during the research |nvoived in performing this appraisal, The
appraiser asstmes Ihat the tite Is good and marketable and will not render any gpinions about the tiffe.

2 The appraissr has provided z sketch i this appraisal report 10 show the approximate dimensions of the improvements.
The sketch is included ondy to assist the reader In visualizing the property and junderstanding the appraisers determination
of its size.

3, The appraiser has ecmined the available flood fmaps that are proviged by the Federal Emergency Management Agency
{or other data sources) and has noted in this appraisal report whether any porion of the subject sHe is lpeated in an

idenfified Special Food Hazard Avea. Because the 2ppraiser is not a swveyor, hel or she makes ho guarantees, expiess or
implied, regarding this  determination,

4. The appraiser wil not give testimony of appear in court hecause he or she m an appraisal of the propery in question,
unless specific amangements o do so have been made beforehand, or as othe required by law.

S. The appraiser has noted in this appraisal report any adverse conditions {such |as needed repairs, deteriorafion, the
preserce of hazardous wasles, {oxic substances, #ic,) observed during the inspection of the subject property or that he or
she became aware of during the research involved in performing the appraisal. ess offerwise siated in fhis appraisal
repost, the appraiser has no knowledge of any hidden er unapparent physical defjciencies or adverse condiions of the
property (such as, but not Imited {0, needed repairs, deterforatian, the presence jof harardous wastes, tmdo substances,
adverse environmental condifions, efc.) that wold make the property less vahmble] and has assumed that there are no such
conditions and makes no guarantees or wartarties, express or Inplisg, The er will not be responsible for any such
conditions that do exist or for any engineering or festing that might be required ﬁ discover whether such condRions exist
Because the appraiser is not an expert in the field of enviormental hazards, this [appraisal repomt must not be considersd as
an envirenmental assessment of the properly.

6. The appraiser has based fis or her appraisal report and valuation conclusion for|an appraisal that is subject 1o satisfactory
completion, repairs, or alterations on the agsumption that the completion, repairs, o aherafions of the subject property wili
be pedormed in 2 professional manner.
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Uniform Residential Appraisal

Report

File# 013r20

APPRAISER'S CERTIRCATION: The Appraiser cerfifies and agrees that

1.1 hawve, at a minimy
this appraisal report

2. | peformed a complete visual inspection of the infedor and ederor areas of
of the improvements i factual, specific ferms, | identified and reported the pl
bvability, sowntness, or stuctural integrity of the property.

3. F performed this appraisal in accordance with the requirements of ths Unifd
Practice that were adopted and promulgated by the Appraisal Standards Board of
Place at the tme this apprasal report was prepared,

4. | developed my opinion of the market value of the real propery that is the sd
comparison approach 1o value, | have adequate comparable mearke! dalz to dey
for this appraisal assipnment. | further certify that | considered the cost and go
them, unless otherwise Tndicated In this repest,

5. | mesearched, verified, amalyzed, and feported on any cument agrecment for sal
sale of the subject property in the twelve months pricr to the offective date of thi
property for a minimum of three years prior 1 the effective date of this zpprai

6. ! researched, verifisd, anmhzed, and reporied on the prior sales of the com
to the date of sale of the comparable sale, unless otherwise indicated in thie re

7. ! selected and usep comparable sales that are locationally,

8. 1 have not used comparable sales that wers the result of combining a Jand sale

has been buit or will be bullt on the land,

9. | have reparted adiusiments to the comparable sales that reflect the market's
property and the comparable sales.

10. 1 verified, from 2 disimterested source, af
the sale or financing of the subject property.

1. | have kmowiedge and experdence in appraising this type of property In this

12. 1 am aware of and have access to, the necessary and appropriate public and
services, tax assessment records, public lnd records and other such data sources fi

ates, and oplhions furnished hy other parties
e and eorrect

13. | abtained the information, estim
relizble sources that | belleve to be

14, | have teken into comsideration the factors that have an impact on value with
property, and the prodmily of the subject property to adverse influences in the
have moted in this appraisal repait any adverse conditions (such as, but not Gmi
ic substances, adverse envionmental condiions,
e aware of durng the research velved in perfo
adverse conditions In my amlysis of the property value,
merketability of the subject property.

15. 1 have not imowingly withhels any significant information from this appraisal rep
statements and information i this appraisal report are true and comect

16. | stated in this appraisal report my own persenal, unbiased, and professional
are subject only to the assumptions and fimiting conditions in ihis appraisal Teparnt.

T7. ] have no present or prospective interest in the
prospective personal imerest or bias with respect fo
commletely, my analysis and/or opinion of market value in s appraisal report on
status, handicap,
present owners or ccouparts of the properties in the vicinity of the subject property
18, My employment andior co
condifioned on any agreement or understanding,
predetermined  specific value, a predetermined mi
any party, or the atainmernt of z specific result
mortgage loan  application).

19, | persomafly
refied on signfficart real property appratsal assistance
or the preparation of this appraisal report, | have
appraisal report | cerlity that any Individual so hamed Is qualied 1o petforn the
2 ghange to any fem in this appraisal report; therefore, any change made to this
responsbity for it

written or otherwise, that | would
mimum vakie, a range or direstion

from any Individual or indy

20. | idendified the lender/clent in this appraisal
ordered and will receive this appraisal report.

repert who is the individual, organ

m, developed and reported this appraisal in acconlance with

informeation in s report that was provi

and have repoded on the eff

properly thet is the subject of this
the participants in the transaction

nd

famlizl status, or nationai orign of elther the prospective owners or
mpeosation Tor performing this appraisal or any futur
or occumence of a specific subseq

prepared all conclusions and opinions about the real estate that wer
mamed steh Individual(s) and disclpse

the scope of work requirements stated in

the subject propery. | reported the condifion
Dysical deficiencies that could affect the

nn Standards of Professional Appraisal

The Appraisal Foundation znd that were in

bject of this report based on the sales
elop 2 reliable salss comparison approach
ne approaches to value bt did not develop

for the subject property, amy offering for
appraisal, and the prior sales of the subject
unless gtherwise indicated in this report

e sales for a minimum of one year pripr
it

physically, and functionpliy the most simiar to the subject property.

the confract purchase price of a home that

reaction fo fhe differences between the subject

ded by paries who have a fimancial interest in

arket area.

dam sources, such as multiple listing
r the ares in which the property is located.

and expressed in this appralsal report from

respect 10 the subject nelghborbood, subject
opment of my opinjon of market vajue, |
10, needed repalrs, deterdoration, the

.} observed during the inspection of the
no this appraisal. [ have considered these
ct of the condifions on the value and

ort and, to the hest of my knowledge, ail

analysis, opinions, and conchusions, which

mport, and } have no present ar

| did not base, efther partially or

race, color, refigion, sex, age, marital
occupants of the subject property or of the

o on any other basis prohidited by law.

P or anticipated appraisals was not

feport (or present analysls supperting a
valie, a value that favors the cause of
nt evert {such as approval of 2 pending

set forth in this appraisal report if |
in e perfformance of this appraisal
d the specific tasks performed in this
. | have not authorzed anyone fo make
isal iz enauthorized and | will fake no

izgtion, or agent for the organization that
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FHANS Gags o,

Uniform Residential Appraisal Report Flle # 013120

21, The lenderfclient may disciose or distribite this appraisal report to: the bomo another lender at the request of the
bormower; the mofgagee or #s successors and assigns; morlpage Insurers; oovernment sponsared  enterprises; other
secondary market paficipants; datz coflecion of reporting  services;  professio appraisal omganizafions; any department,
agency, of instumentalty of the United Swmtes: and ary state, the Distict of Cojumbia. or other jurisdictions; without having to
obtain the appraiser's or supervisory appraiser's (f applicabie} consent Such sent must be obtamed before this appraisal
repDit may be disclosed or distribited fo any aother party (including, but not limiteqd to, the pubiic through adverlising, public
relations, news, sales, or other media).

4

r the lenderclient may be subject 1o certain
Standards of Professional Appraisal Practice

22. | am aware that any disclosure or distrbsdion of this appraisal report by me
laws and reguiations. Further, | am also subject to the provisions of the Unifo
that pertin to disclosure or disirbufion by me,

?3. The bomower, another lender a2t ihe request of the borrower, the mongagee of its successors and asgigns, morlgage
insurers, govemiment sponsored onterprises, and other secondary market pm'ﬁnip:g‘s may sely on this appraisal report as part
of any morgage finance transaction that mwvolves any one or morg of these parti

24 If this appraisal report was transmitted as an “electronic record® confaining my “slectronic signature,” as those terms are
defined in applicable federal andfor state laws (exclvding audio and video recordings), or 2 Sacsimile transmmission of this
dppraisal report containing a copy or reptesentafion of ry signature, the ap report shall be as effective, enforceable and
valid as K a paper version of ihis appraisal reporl were defivered containing my] odginal hand written siprature.

25. Any imenfional or negligent misrepresentation(s) contzined in this appraisal repert may result in chvil Mabilily andfor
criminal penalties including, but not kmied to, fine or imprsonment or both undbr the provisions of Thle 18 United States
Code, Section 1001, e seq, or simitar stz laws.

SUPERVISORY APPRAISER'S CERTIFICATION: The Supervisory Appraiser cerT and agress that;

1. ¥ directly supervised the apprafser for this appraisal assignment, have read the appralsal report. and agree with the apprajser's

anzlysis, opinions, statements, conclusions, and the appraiser’s cerlification.

2 | accept full responsibdity fer the conferts of this appraisal report including, bub fjot limited to. the appraiser's analysis, opinions,
statements. conclusions, and the appraisers ecerification.

8. The appraiser idertified in this appraisal report is either a sub~contractor or an employes of the supervsory appraiser for the
appraisal finm), is qualified {0 perform this appraisal, and is accepiable to perform this appraisal under the applicable state law.

4. This appraisal report complies with the Uniform Standards of Professtonat Appraisal Practice that were adapted and
promuigated by the Appraisal Standards Board of The Appraisal Foundation and that were In place at the time this appratsal

report  was  prepared.
§. If this appraisal report was fansmitied as an “elecironic record® containing my ["slectronic signa!_.ure," as ﬂwse terms_zre
defined n appficable federal and/or state laws (excluding audic and videa recor&'m;’% or a facsimile transmission of this
appraisal report containing a copy o representation of my sigrature, the appraisal feport shall be as effective, enforceable and
valid as i a paper version of this appraisal report were delivered confaining my | odginal hand wiitten signature.
APPRAISER SUPERVISORY APARAISER (ONLY F REQLIRED)
Sighature Signature
Name James art Waesl Name
Company Name / Wand Appraissis Company Name
Compzny Address 1707 Remeria Dr Comparny Address
Austin, TX 78757-3323
Telephone Number  512452.7305 Telephone Number
Emall Address  bobwardatwork@gmall.com Email Address
Date of Signature and Report 0172012020 Date of Signature
Effective Date of Appraisal D1117/2020 State Certification #
State Cetificaion # 1324560 or State License #
or State Licease # State
ar Other (describe) State # Expiration Date of Cartification or License
State TX
Expiration Date of Certfication or License 11302021 SUBJECT PHOPERTY
ADDRESS OF PROPERTY APPRAISED (] Did not inspect spbject property
1802 E 22nd St [ Did inspect exterjur of subject propesty from street
Austin, TX 78722 Date of Inspecti - -
APPRAISED VALUE OF SUBJECT PROPERTY § 400,000 L1 Did inspect meripr and exterior of subject property
LENDER/CLIENT Date ot Insp
Name NoAMC
Gompany Name  Blacidand Community Development Com. COMPARABLE
Company Addfess 1902 E.22nd St Ausfin, TX 78702 (] Did not inspect exterior of comparable sales from strest
[J Cid inspect exterior of comparable sales from sirest
Email Address Date of inspectiof
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____Uniform Residential Appraisal[Report Fie # 913120
TEATURE { SUBJECT GOMPARABLE SALE #4 COMPARABIE SALE &5
Mﬂres 1902 E 22nd 8t 2305 E 17th St
Austin, TX 78 Austin, TX 78702
Presdeiity 1 Suh iert
Sale Price
B Salo Price/Brogs Liv, Area X T 3
8 Daia Sourse(s) MLSITafogenr,DOM $5 MLSTaxAedntDOM 25
b Verification Salrcats) il MU AROR #4432979 MLS-AEOR 82771187
S VA HE ADJUSTMBNTS CESCRIFTION DESCRIFTION | +{} § Adjustment | DESCRIPTION | +{- 5 Adiustment | DESCRIPTION | -+ 8 Adustmgnr |
B8 Sales or Financing ArmnLth Listing -4,500) ]
B8 Corcessions Cash:0
P Date of SalefTime £10/19:410/19 cl11M19
P2 Lotafion : N:Res: N:Res:
=3 Leasenaié/Foe Simple Fee Simple Fee Simole Fee Simple
3 Siz 9685 st 6970 sf 27, 200IE708 of +28 BOD)
bl iy N:Ras; N:Res; NoRes;
=3 esign &Style) DT1.0;Bungalow! DT1.0; Burgal DT1.0:8ungakow_
=4 Guzlity of Consguelion a4 Q4 o4
g Jctal Age 83 58 ol7e [+
£ Condidon c4 Ca Cq
I5§ Above Grade | Total |Bevos. | Baths | Total [Bderms. | Bt Tutzl[ﬁmfsai\s Totzt YBdms. | Batis
¥4 Foora Court 5]l 2T40] 61 2 |10 o 51 2 [1b it
g4 iross Living Area 1,077 saft 1,054 st 1490 1,012 4t 2 £33
& Basement & Frished osf sf osf
= Flooms Below Grade
f Fmctina) Uiy Average Average Average
HeatingCoofing Ceriiral Waltiwindow +5 000/ \Walliwindow +5.000
 Energy Efficiant fems None None None
§ Garage/Tarort 2dw 1endw =2,500(1dw 0
fi Porch/PatiaDeck Porches Porehes Porches
B Net Adjustment (Tota) MW+ [~ &8 zs300 P+ [1418 303000 [+ [1- 18
B ~cjusted Szl Price X 78% Net AdL. BT% E?@etA@. %
S Of Comperanles : 10.0%{$ 390,550[6mssAd.  87f!S 4B0.300!Gross Ad). 3is
B Report e resufis of the research and af‘&epﬂorsleursanstarmstmyofmmmect mmmﬂmmadmahsaesan page 3.
= SUBIECT COMPARABLE SALE # 4 LOMPARABLESALE #5 | COMPARABLESALE #§
iJate of Prior Sak/Transfer
5 Price of Prior Sale/Transfer
Q Data Sogrcels) MLSTax MLSTax MLE#2842737
2 Hl‘ecnve Baie of Bata Source(sy Di72020 01/17/2020 011772020
= i of prine sale or ranster history of the subject properdy and compambie sabs See aftached shest
3
.1 Sl NI IS
@
]
&
t)_l:!
g
)
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PN Cara Ho.

Market Conditions Addendum to the Appraisal Report FleNa, 013020
‘Ihepurpuseofmisaddenﬂumismpmvideme ieudarfcﬁerrtw%adwandmramundmn'mg of e ntarke trends and concéfions prevaleat in the subject
R riclahborhood. This is 3 rarp ired addendum for all appraisal regorts with & effective daiz an oF after Apiii 1, 2008.
W Property Addess 9902 E 22nd St City Austin Suts TX AP Gode 78722

Somower  NfA

8 I the analysis. I data sources provide the required information 35 an average instead of the median, the appraisel show repert the availeble figure and Tdentfy & 25 2n
i average: Sales and Ustings must be properfies that compete with the subject property, detzmined by applying the criteriz that woold be used by 2 prospective buyer of the
oo

subiectpmnerty.Theawrahermusrmla!nanyammaﬁeshmdansuchassmsonalngﬂmis.newm on, foreclosures,
¥ frventosy Analysis o sl Prior 732 Monbs | Prior 4-6 Months Carrent—3 Months {iverall rend
Total # of Comparable Seles (Seifen) 16 7 L1 Increasin Stzbe
bR Absarpiion Rate {Toral Sales/Manths) 5332 233 [ Increasing {71 Stable
3 Tonal # of Comparshle Active Lisfimms 5 - 8 2=} Declining 10 -Stable -4t ] Increasing
Momths of Housing Supply (Toll Listngsfb Rat) 28 L Dgctinirin {1 Stabgr
B Hectian Sate X List Price, DOM, Sale/List% .| Frior 7~12 Months Cumeht—3 Months Overall Trend
B Viodian Comparabis Sakz Price 403,000 448,500 Tnsseasing [ Stabke
g ideddan Comparahle: Sales Days on Harket & 5 [} Beglinin Sehle
o] Merdan Comparable List Price Stdo! 445,000 : Jlee) Stabls - :
o} Median Comparble |3s8n0s Days oo Market [ 13 Decliting : |- -Stable’ 4 Intreasing ;
=4 Meifian Sale Price as % of List Price £8.6 112 100 Ingre Stabie Beclning
Eoq Seller-(davekper, byilder, pis.jpaid Fennial asestaire prevaknt? X1 Ves [ ] Np Declinhn Stehle Increasing

fo 3%, increasing ese of bitydowns, tiosing cacts, condo

z Exin in detal he selfler concesshons zends for the past 12 morths (e.q., seler conbibutions increzsed from 3%
e ens, opfions, efe).  Sefler poncassions 2ppear o be consistent with market seflers sffering fo pay approximately 3.4% of the buyer's costs,
4 This daes, ot apeear to be increasing or decreasing at the present. No adjustments are indicated,

53 Ao Toreclosers seles {RE) salis) A facior in e ek L) Yeb BC ¥ i yes, exphain (inclucing the in listings and safes of foreciosed es).

E

- MARKET R

B G et So1rces o above OTraion,— WLS. Fediaral vt oo s News Reportd

B Summarizs the above Infommation 25 SUpport for your consiusiens i the Nelghbarficnd secdon of the apprasal mptit ferm, you used any addfticoal informaton, such 25
B 27 asalysis of panding sales and/or expited and withdrawn istings, o fomulate 2 conclusions, pravide bath an Elanafion and suppart for your sonclusions.

| An analysis of the sbove data indicates that the zrea sarket is in a period of siabifity. This is confimed by data from the Federal Housing |
il Finance Age that places Texas in g slightly pasitive market cateqory overall, The number of foresiosures serve as & break on housing
8 oo i oo appreciation rate over the past few years, Both media sales price and list price are increasing
i othenwise, the market is stable. The data used in the analysis represents the market in thelarea. * i should be recognized that the number

i of lisfings on page 2 of the report will no be the same as that on the 1004me form. The 108 4me form reeasures listings for the past 3 months.
B age 2 reflects current Iistings. Seme of the fistings on 1he 1004me form will have cloted or expired or been withdrawn.

e Hihesﬁm&ammamm«mmm,wmmm: Project Kame:
Sublject Prosect Data — Prigr 7-12 Months Fripr 4-5 Months Cureent 13 Momhs Suerz] Trend
i Tomd # of le Szles (Setded} Increzsing I | Stable Declining
. --v--- —mwjoging Stebie Declning
Tam#ofAnﬂvaCumuamlisﬁa B 2} Declining < |- ] Swbte” =1 Ficraasing ]
j Months of Unit Supoly (Totd Liskings/#b.fate) Ao =l Reelining [ -] Stable . dnCreash

P Roreciosur Saes (RED 5as) & fctor 0 Me pofect? L Ves— - TRo ¥ Yo intons S ST FED Tsings and SXptan B tonds I BsTigs a0 sales
mrectmdnmaa'ﬂsa

I Summarize the ahove Tends and audress e § pact of the subject Lt and projest,

- CONDOICO.OP PROJ

f,} 0 f
- . S/ 72 A —
Mmﬂ!’}ﬂ [ A | Stmatire

mss Robert Whrd Supervise
2 Comgany Neme  Waret Appraisais Company Nams
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General Text Addendom File Mo 073120
Bormver NZA
 Property Address 4902 E 29nd St
City Austin County Travis S TX fpCode 78722
Lender/Cllerd  Bfackiand Community Development Carp.

COMMENTS ON THE SALES COMPARISON APPROACH:
SIS AN TR SALES LONIPARISON APPROACH:

The subject, a one story single family house containg approximately 1,027 square fest of lving space. The
improvemeants have been maintainad in average condition and are funcfional, marketable, and in conformity with its
surroundings,

due to their similarity in land size and
good focation {see below). The

ive renovation. All of the comparables
ighborhood. All were adjusied

ent market in the area. Gross nat
aifable, they indicate the range of

condition. Land values in the area are quite high due to strong demand a
impravements are foward the end of their econpmic Jves and require exter
used in the report were drawn from the subject's immediate and general n
accordingly for dissimilar features and falt to most accurately reflect the
adjustments may exceed typical guidelines, The sales used were the: best
optiens available and are feft to reflect the current market in the area.

It is recognized that the subjects fand to improvement vaiue ratio is higher nomal guideline limits, however, itis
typical for the area marketplace. The subject is situated in the established ahd very desirable neighborhoed in East
Austin {the Blackland neighborhood). This areq is just east of the Central Bysiness District, the Texas Capitol
complex and the University of Texas main campus. It is within easy commufing distance to major employers and the
freeway system. The area is well known for ite community atmosphere with focal shops, restaurants and strong
nelghborhood associations. Due 1o these factors, land value within the area|is typically higher because of strong
demand in fhe market for favorable sites and the limited supply of vacant fracts, The majority of hauses in the area
are medium sized, older homes and the newer houses are generaily buitt affer the older improvements have either
been destroyed or have reached the end of their economic cycles. Land to Enprovement ratios are therefore typically
weighted foward higher fand values versus in the subject’s area.

ADJUSTMENTS:

FINANCING: Active sale #5 was adjusted downward since sales tend to sellifor less than the fult asking price as per
the 1004mc form.

LOT SIZE: Due to the land values in the neighbarhood, all comparables werg all adjusted for lot size differences.

CONDITION: Sales #2 and #3 were adjusted for being in superior condition and partially renovated according to the
agent and photos in MLS.

BATHS: Compzrable #1 was adjusted for number of baths.
SIZE OF IMPROVEMENTS: Al comparables, except #5, were adjusted acedrdingly for size differences.

HVAC: Comparables #1, #4 and #5 were adjusted for not having centrat ms.,
PARKING: Comparables #1 and #4 were adjusted downward for parking facilities.

The comparable sales used in the report were ail closed, except for listing #5. Affer adjusting the comparable sales
for all of the factors stated above, they form 3 value fange of $380,300 to $480,300 which {ranslates into a per
square foot range of $370.30 to $467.67. The estimated value of the subjectiproperty is $400,000, or $385.48 per
square foot which is considered appropriate due fo the subject's size and am nity package, All of the sales, when
adjusted, indicate a limited ronge of value for the subject. Htis my opinion that the estimated market value of the
report is well supported by the Sales Comparison Analysls presented in this report,

USPAP ADDENDUM

APPRAISAL PURPOSE / INTENDED USER:
This appraisal report is intended for use in a morigage finance transaction by|Blacidand Community Develapment
Corporation, ts successors and assigns. This report is not intended for any gther use o user.

SCOPE OF WORK:
The scope of this appraisal was to examine the intesior and exterior of the subject, hand measure the improvements
{except in the case of new construction where builder's plans and specifications were ufilized) and analyze those
tnarket forces impacting the value, Square footage figures for subject proy ane derived from actual
measurements taken at the time of the site visit, are an ESTIMATE ONLY an are not guarantead or warranted.
They should rot be considered accurate for any other purposes other than this appraisal analysis. A professional
engineerfarchitect should be consulted for aciual living area measurements. Pertinent market data was collecied
and analyzed in such a manrer that conforms with ordinary appraisal stendards prevalent within the industry. MLS
salesfistings, agent data, builder data, tax records, Marshall and Switt, properly owners, and other publicly avaitable
sourees were researched within the defined sub-market ares {neighborhood) of the subject. The final estimate of
value stated in this report s the Market Vaiye as defined by the Uniform Standards of Professional Appraisal
Practice,

EXPOSURE TIMEMARKETING TIME:
The estimated marketing time is based on an observation of the exposure ti
subject area. Btis assumed that the subject is competitively priced and comp

of MLS sales and listings within the
ently marketed.

PERSONALTY ( non-reaity} TRANSFERS:
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FHANVA Baex No,
General Text Addendum Fle No. 013r20
Borower N/A
Property Address 1902 € 22nd St
City Austin Couty Travis Sk TX fip Code 78722
LendenTient  Blackand Community Development Corp,
The appraiser is not aware of any non-realty Rems that were transferred thst would impact the value as delineated in
this report.
ADDITIONAL COMMENTS:
The appraiser's engagement and/or compensalion in this assigrment was pot contingent upon developing or
reporting predetermined results, nor from directions by the client regarding|the attainment of 2 stipulated conclusion,

nior the occurrence of a subsequent event directly ralated to the intended
considered a report on the physical #e
contain information about the physical i
it should be clearly understood that this
general guide of property valuation, ant is not to be used as a com
report. The appraiser is not qualified o render an opinion in these a

concerned about the existence, condition, or adequacy of any particyl
a home inspector, licensad by the Texss Real Estate Commission, be

The appraisal should not be
Although the appraisal may
adeguacy and/for candition],

twere used in the appraisal process o d
not provided with the report conceming thi
- The depth of the discussion contained
stated in the report. The appraiser is not

dats, reasoning, and analyses tha
Supporting documentation that js
retained in the appraiser's work fil
the client and for the intended use
repert.

e of this report.
that are a part of the property.

ms being appraised {including their
information is only to be used as a
plete or detafled physical inspection

as. IFany interested party is
item, Ywe strongly recommend that
ined for a detailed inspection.

set forth under Standards Rule 2-2(b) of
only summary discussions of the
velop the appraiser's opinion of value.
data, reasoning, and analyses s
in this report is specific to the neads of
responsible for unauthorized use of this
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Comparable Phota Paue
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[117:8
1802 E 22nd St
Austin Courty Travls Sl TX IpLode 78722
Blackland Community Development Com.
Gomparable 1

2002 Maple Ave

Prox. o Subject 030 mlles E

Saies Prige 365,000

Gross Lving Arza 1,088

Total Ropms 5

Tota! Bedmoms 3

Tolkl Bathrooms 20

Location N;Res;

View N;Res;

St 5882 sf

Cuakyy Q4

Age 58

2006 Poquito 3t
Prex, 10 Subject
Sales Price

Bross Living frea
Total Ryoms
Tota] Bedrooms
Toil Bathrooms
Litaton

Viewe

Site

Cuaty

Age

2801 £ 22nd St
Prx. t Subject
Sales Price

Bmss Living Area
Total Roams

Tolal Sadrooms
Tot) Sathmoms
Lozation

View
Sis
Gpality
Age
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Comparable Photo Page

Coumy Travis Sgle TX Jip Code 78722

Comparable 4

2205 E 17th St

Prow. 4 Sublect 0.43 miles 8E
Sales Prie 362,250
BrossLiving Arez 1,084
Totl Reoms -]

Total Bedrooms 3

Total Bathrooms 18

L tcation N;Res;
View N;Res;
St 8970 gf
Cuafity Q4

Age 59

Comparable §

1705 E 22nd St

Proet 1o Subipct 0.11 miles SW
Salgs Price 450,000
Smss Lving Az 1,012
Tota Reoms K]

Tokl Bedmoms 2

Toal Bathmoms 1.0
Locatian N;Res;
View MN;Res;
Site G708 of
Quafty 04

Age 76

GComparable 6

Prox. to Gubiject
Sales Price
Gross Living Area
Tota! Rooms
Tota! Bedioors
Totz! Bathmoins
|.ocation

Vigw

Site

Quality

A
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Borwer NZA, e 0. 013120

Propedty Address 1902 E 29nd St
City Austin

Coomy Travis Sttt TX Zip Code 78722

Lender/Client Blacidand Community Development Corp.

APPRAISAL AND REPORT IDENTIFICATION

This Report is ong of the following types:
Appraisat Report (A written report prepared under Standards Rule 22(z) . pursuant i the \Scope of Work, as disciased elsewhere in this report)

0 Restricted (A written report prepared under Standards Rufe 2-2(8) , pursuant fo the|Scapa of Work, as distlosed elsewhere in this report,
Appreisal Report  restieted 10 the stated intended use by the specified client or intended user)

Comments on Standards Rule 2-3

 certly thet, tn the best of my knowiedge and belipk

- The stetements of Fact cordzingd in this report are s and comect

- The reporied analyses, opirions, and contusions 2 limited only by the repertad assumptions end Fitiag ¢
anzlyses, opinions, and conclusicns.

~ Unless otherwise indiated), | have no present of prospechive interestin the propany that is the sabject of tis repoctand ng persoal interest with respect 1o the parfies involved,
- Unless otherwise indieated, | have performed no servizes, 38 an appraiser o7 in any ather capacly, regarding the gropery that is the subject of this report within the thres-vear
period immediately preceding acceptance of tis assignmert,

~ I biave: no bias with respect to the property that is the subject of fiis fBporL of the panies invalved with this assign
- My engagement in: 88 asstgnment was no contigant upan develoning o 1Eporting predetermined resuts,
- My compensation Tor completing this assignment i not contingent upon the development OF feparting of 2 p ined ¥aite Of dirszdon in vale $hat favors the cause of the
client, the amsunt of the vakie opinion, the sitalnment of 2 sipulated resif, o the occuments of subsequent event tirectly refated to the Intehded use of this zppraissl.

~ My analyses, opinions, and eomclusiors were developsd, 2nd this report has besn prepered, it sonformdy vith e Unifarm Stzndards of Pesfessional Appraisal Practice that
were i effect at the dme this report was preoared.
-LInlassuﬂmerseszed,!imemadeapasmaunspecnunofmepmmﬁyﬁmkmesubkmfmkmm

- Unless otferwise Indlcated. no one provided sigrificant reat property 2poralsal assistance to the person(s} signing
inhvitual providing significant real promerly appralsel assisiance is stated elsewhere in this repart).

and are ray personal, imparkal, and unbissed professional

i certfication (if theze are exceptions, the name of ezch

Reasonable Exposure Time  (UsPAP defines Expusure Time as the estimated [enpth of time that the property inferest being
appraised would have been offered on the market prior 1o the hypathetical consummation of & sale at et value on the effective date of the appraisal)
My Opinion of Reasonable Exposure Time for the subject property 2t the market value stated in s repoit 1S 0-80 days

Gomments on Appraisal and Report Identification
Note any USPAP-related issues requiring disclosure and any state mandated requirgments:

The highest and best use for the property Is eonsidered single famnily residential due to dead restricfions/zoning and area land use |

| seonsimies.

APPRAISER: SUPERVISORY gr CO-APPRAISER (if applicable):
Sigpare: A‘M’/’«%&j Signatre:
; i Nams:

Name: James Robﬁ Ward

Swte Cerfification # 1321580 State Cerlifeation #:

07 Stats License £ ar Stete License

Sqer T Expiration Date of Certificanion or License: 14/30/2021 Stale: ___ Biraion Daie of Certification o Hcense:

Date of Signatire and Repart  94/20/2020 Date of Signatae:

Effective Date of Apprisal  0iAM7/2020

Inspection of Subjest [ None [ interiorand Exerior || ExedorOmy inspaction o Subject | [] None [ imerior and Beerior ) Exerior-Galy
Date of Inspection (if epplicable): 0121742020 Date of Inspection (it agplicable):
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| COMBARABLE No. 1
| 2002 Miple. v
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Appraiser Gertification

JAMES ROBERT WARD
1707 ROMERIA DRIVE
AUSTIN, TK 78757

//%;«*\\ Certified R
TALCB | Real Estate

TEXAS AFPRAISER UICENTING &
CERTIMCATION JOARD

Appraiser: JAMES ROBERT WARD
License#: TX 1321560 R License B

Faving provided satisfactory evidence of the qualifications.req

esidential
Appraiser

xpires: 11/30/2021

uired

by the Texss Appraiser Licensing and Certification Act, Occupalions

"‘Code, Chapter 1103, autharization is-granted 1o usé this.title:
Certified Residential Real Fstate Appraiser

‘For-additional information or to file a coimplaint please toitat
at wwwizlchtexasgov.
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UNIFORM APPRAISAL DATASET (UAD) DEFINIT

Flalo. o13r20

IONS ADDENDUM

(Source: Fannie Mas UAD Appendix D: LAD Field-Specific StandaTdizaﬁon Requirements)

Condition: Ratings and Definitions

e1 .
The improvements have been recently consiructed ant have not been previously occupied, TH
and the dweiling features ne physical depreciation.

Note: Newly constructed improverments that featre recycled or previously used materials and
provided that the dwelling Is placed on a 104 percent bew foundation and the recycled

e entire structure and all compenents are new

Or COmponents ean be considered new dweffings

tals and the recycled compenents have heen
rehabilifated/remanutactured into Bke-new condition, Improvements that have aot been cocupied are not considered "rew” if they

have ary significant physical depreciation (thatis, ngwly constructed dwellings that have
adequate maintenante or upkeep).

G2

The improvements feative no deferred maintenance, jittle or ng physical depreciafion, and req
are new o have been recendly repaired, refinished, or rehabifated. Al ouidated companents
with companents that meet curvent standards. Dwellings in this category are either almost ney
are similar in condiion 1 rew constniction.

Note: The improvements represent a relatively new property thatis well maintzined with no deferred

depreciation, or an older property that has been recently completely renovated.
£3

vacart for an exiended perdod of e without

ire no repairs, Virually a¥ buifding components
nd finisties have been opdated and/or replaced
i or have been recently completely renovated and

mainterance and fitfie or po physical

The improvernents are weil maintained and feature Gmited physical depreciation due to nol

wear and tear. Some components, but not every

major building tomponent, may be updated or recently rehabilitated. The struchire kas besn well maintained.

Noste: The improvement is in Hts first-cycle of replacing short-lived building components (3

, flogr eoverings, HVAC, ele) and is

being well maintained, lis estimated effective age is less than its actual ape. italso may refiect(a property in which the majority of
short-ived buliding components bave been replaced but not o the level of acomplete renovation.

C4

The improvernents feature some minar deferred maintenance and physical deterioraiion due 39 nomal wrear ared tear. The dwefling has been

adequetely maintained and requires only minimal repairs to bullding componenta/mechanical
components have beenadequately maintained and are functichally adequate.

Note: The estimated effective age may be close to or equal to its actual age. Rreflects a propel
components have been replaced, and some shortdived building comptnants are at or near th
they st function adequately. Most minor repairs have been addressed on an ongoing basis

G5
The improvements feature obvious deferred maintenance and are in need of some slgnificant

rehabifitfon, or updating. The tunctioral uility and overall fivability is somewhat diminished d

useable and functional a5 2 residence.

Rystems and cosmefe repairs. All major building

in which same of the short-ived building
erid of their physical life expestancy; however,
g in an adequately maintained property.

irs. Sote bullding components need repairs,
e f0 condifion, but the dweling remains

Note: Some significant repairs are needed 1o the improvements due fo the fagk of Fdequate mairtenance, it refiects a propesty in which many

of its short-fived building components.are at the end of or have exceeded their physical iife

CB

The improvemenits have substantial damage or deferred maimtenance with deficiensies or def
soEndness, or structiral integrity of the improvements. The improvements are in need of su
or most major components,

Note: Substantial repales are needed to the improvements due 1o th lack of adequate maimendnce
Wwith congitions severe enpugh 10 affect the safety, sourdness, or structural mtegrity of the Impy

Quality Ratings and Definitions

o

Dwellings with this quality rating are usually urique Structures that are individually designed
residences typically are constructed from detailed aschitecturat plans and specifications and
and exceptionally hgh-grade materfals frroughtut the interior and exderior of the strusture,
exterior refinerments and ormamentation,
throughtut the dwelling are of exceptionally high quality.

Qz
Dwellings with this quality rating are often custorn designed for eonstruction on an individual

this quality grade are also found in high-quality tract developments featuring residence eonstru

modified or upgraded plans, The design features detafied, kigh quality exterior serumentation,

workmanship, materials, and finishes troughtit the dwelling are generally of high or very hig

UAD Version §/2011 (Updated 1/2014)
Form BADDEFINETA - “TOTAL" appraisal sofwarn by 2 J2 made, ing. -

cy butremain functional.

that are severe sncugh to affect the safety,
iak repairs and rehzbilfation, including many

or propesly damage. it refiecis.a property
Tovements.

an architectfor a specified user. Such
an exceptionally high fevel of wotkmanship
design features exceptionally high-quafity

and exceptionatly high-quality interior refinemerns. The worionanship, materials, and finishes

pesty Ownier's site. However, dwellings in
from individua! plans or from highly
igh-gualiy interior refinements, and detzil. The
quality,

{HEDO-ALAMODE



ANA Gase No.

UNIFORM APPRAISAL DATASET (UAD) DEFINI E 10NS ADDENDUM
{Suurce: Fannie Mae UAD Appendix D: UAD Field-Specific dization Requiremeants)

Quality Ratings and Definitions (continued)

a3
Dwelings with this qualfiy rating are residences ofhigher quality buitt from individuat er available designer plans in above-standard

residertiaf tract developments or on an ingividial properly owner's site. The design includes Significant exterior omarmentation arw Interiors
that are wedl finished. The workmanship exceeds accepiabie standards and many materizls and finishes throughout the dwelling have heen
upgraded from "$inck” standards,

Q4
Dwellings with this quakity rating meet or exceed the requirements of applicable building codes, Standard or modified standard buliding plans
are uilized and the design includes adequate fenestraion and some exterior omamentation and [nteriar refinements. Materials, workmarship,
finish, and equipment are of stack or builder grade and may feature some upgrades.

as
OwelEngs with this quality rafing featura economy of construction amd basic Tunclionality as main conslgerations, Such dwellings featize a
plaih design using readily svaitable ar basic fioor plans featuring mirimal fenestration and basje finishes with minimat exterior omementtion
and imited interior detail. These dwelings meet minimum bullding codes and are constructed|with inexpensive, stock materials

with fimited refinements and upgrades.

Q6
Dwellings with this quality rating are of hasic quality and lower cost; some may not be suitablé for year-round occupancy. Sich dwellings
are often built with sirple plans or without plans, often uiifizing the lowest quality building matertais. Such dwellings are often built or

expanded by persons whe are professionally unskifled or pdssess only minimal construction $kills. Electrical, plumbing, and other mecharical
syslems and equipment may be minimal or non-existent. Older dwellings may featire one or thore Substandard or non-confotning additions
{o the original sructure

Definifons of Not Updated, Updated, and Remodeied

Not Updated
Litle or no updating or modemization. This description includes, butis not imited 0, new homes.
Residential properties of filteen years of age or less often refiectan oniginal conditioh with no updating, i no major
components have been replaced or updated. These over fifteen years of age are als£et:onsidered not updated if the
applianses, fodures, and finishes are predominantly dated. An area thatis "Not Updated” may still be well maintained
and fully fonctional, and thés rating does not necessarily imply deferred maintenanse: or physical/functonal detefioration.

Updated
The area of the home has been modifled 1o meet cuent market expectations.
are Hmited in temms of both scope and cost
An updated area of the home shoufd have an improved iook and feel, or functiona) uiility. Changes that constitute
updates include refurbishment and/or replacing components tn meet existing markel expectations. Updates da not
include significant alterations to the exisfing structare.

e modifications

Remodeted
Significant finish and/or structutat changes have been made that increase wtility Znd appeal through
complets replatement and/or expansion.
A remodeled area reflects fundamertal changes thatinclude multiple aiterations, These alterations ray include
some or all ot the Tollowing: replacement of 2 major component (cabinet(s), bathtub, or bathroam file), refocation
of slmbing/gas fidures/appliances, significant struchral alterations (relocating , and/or the addition of)
syuarefootage). This would include a comiplete gutting and rebuld.

Explanation of Bathroom Count

Three-quartar baths are courrted as a fult bath in aff cases. Quarier baths (baths thaf Teature only 2 toilet) are not

included in the bithreom count. The numbear of full and half baths is reported by ing the two values using a
period, where the full bath count is represented to the left of the period and the half comtis representad to the
right of the period,

Exampie:
3.2 inticates three full baths and two half baths.

UAD Version 9/2011 {Lipdated 1/2014)
Forrn UADDEFINETA - “TOTAL" appreisal software by a la mode, inc, - 1-500-4LAMODE




Abbreviations Used in Data Standardization Text

UNIFORM APPRAISAL DATASET ({/AD) DEFINITIONS ADDENDUM

{Source; Fansie Mae UAD Appendix D: UAD Feld-Specific Sandastiization Requirements)

A Locakioh & View
| ac Agres Area, Site
AdjPrk Adacentio Park Logation _
| AdiPwr Adjacent to Power Lines Logation
ArmLih _Arms Length Sale Sale ar financing Concessions
AT Attached Struchure Design [Style)
B Beneficiat LMDF &View
ba Bathrooms; Basement & Finished Rooms Below Grade
br Bedroom Basement & Finished Rooms Below Grade
| BsyRd Busy Road Location
< Contracted Pate Date of SaleTime
t Cash Cash Sale or firancing Concessions
Cormm Commercial influence Locatioh -
Cony Conventional Sale or financing Concessions
B, Caport Garage/Larport
CriOrd Court Ordered Sale Sale or financing Concessions
OtySky City View Skyfine View View
ClyStr Cly Street Visw View
s Covered Garage/Carport
DoM Bays On Market Data Solpes
GF Detached Structure Design (Styls)
g Driveway Garage/Garport
g Expiration Date Date of Sale/Time
Estate Estaie Sale Szle or Fnancing Concessions
A Federal Housing Authority Sale or financmyg Coneessions
] Garage %@%
g2 Aftached Garage Garage/arport
ght Bullt-In Garage Garage/Larport
gd Detached Garage Garage/Darport
GifCse Golf Course Locatinn
Glifvw Golf Course View View
GR Garden Design {Style)
HR High Rise Design {Style)
in Interior Only Stairs Basement & Fiished Ruoms Below Grade
Ind indusgia Locafion & View
Listing Listng Sale or Financing Concessions
Lngf Landfii Locafion
| LidSqht Urnited Sight view |
MR Mid-rise Design {Style)
| Min Mouriain View View |
N Neutral Location & View
Nondnm Non-Arms Length Sale Sale or kinancing Concessions
G Otbrer B t & Finished Rooms Below Grade
o Other Design {Style)
op Open GarageCarport
Prk Park View View
| Pt Pastoral View
| Pwrln Power Lines
Puptm Public Transponason
| Relo Relocafion Sale
REQ RED Saie
| Res Residenttal
RH USDA - Rural Housing Sale or Financing Concessions
14 Recreational {Rec) Room Basemelt & Finished Rooms Below Grade
RT Row or Townhouse Design {ggg}r
5 Settlement Date Data of ime
) Semi-detached Stucture Gesign {Styfe)
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Lity of Austin

L WATERSHED FLOODPLAININFORMATION
{PROTECTION REQUEST FORM
Tax Parcel ID: 0211090309 Date Processed: 01/27/2020
Property Address: 1902 E 22ND ST
FEMA Flood Insurance Information: City of Austin Regulatory Information:
Flood Zone*: X 25-Year Flogd Elevation®*; N/A
Community Number: 480624 100-Year Flood Elevation®*: N/A
Papel Number: 48453C0465J)
Effective Date: 01/06/2016 All elevations are in feet above mean sea level; Dahna for
FEMA 100-Year Elevation®: N/A all elevations is NAVDSS.
FEMA 500-Year Elevation®: N/A

Additional Questions? Please contact the Floodplain Office
Phone Hotline: 512-974-2843 Fax: 512-974-3584 E-mail: floodpro@austintexas. sov

Mailing Address: Atiention: Floodplain Office, Watershed Protection Department-12th Floor, PO BOX 1088
Austin, TX 78767-1088

* The flood zone determination is based solely on a graphical interpretation of the FEMA Flood Insurance
Rate Map (FIRM). Parcels with flood zones A, AE, AO, or AH|are located or partially located within the
FEMA Special Flood Hazard Area designated 1% annual chance flood hazard (100-year floodplain).
Parcels with flood zone 0.2% annual chance flood hazard (50D-year floodplain) are located or partially
located within the shaded zone X portion of the FIRM. Parcels with flood zone X Protected by Levee are
located within in an area protected by a levee from the 1% annual chance flood hazard. Parcels with flood
zone X are located outside the 0.2% annual chance flood bazard. The 1% annual chance flood hazard is
the base flood and is used to determine the base flood elevation (BFE) for flood insurance purposes. BFEs
mwust be determined using the flood profiles contained in the effective Flood Insurance Study (FIS). The
FEMA 1% annual chance floodplains may differ from the City of Austin regulatory floodplains.

* *The City of Austin uses the fully developed 25-year and 100-year floodplains to regulate development
within the full purpose and exira territorial jurisdiction (ETJ) as [established in the Land Development
Code. The City of Austin regulatory floodplains may differ from the FEMA. 1% annual chance
floodplains.

The City provides the information on this form using the best available engineering and topographic data.
Floodplain elevations to be used for development applications mmst|be determined by a Texas Registered
Professional Engineer. The official determination of a parcel’s floodplain status may necessitate a comparison
of the floodplain elevations to an on-the-ground topographic survey|by a registered design professional.

DISCLAIMER: The City of Austin provides this information on request as a courtesy to our citizens. Any use
of this information is at the sole discretion of the nser. The City of Austin makes no warranty, expressed or
implied, for the accuracy, completeness, or applicability of the information provided in this form.

THIS FORM IS NOT A PERMIT FOR DEVELOPMENT. For infdrmation about development permitting, call
the City of Austin Development Assistance Center at 512-974-6370. THIS FORM IS NOT A SUBSTITUTE
FOR FEMA FORM 81-93, STANDARD FLOOD HAZARD DETERMINATION. Private flood hazard
determination companies may provide Form §1-93. For more information on the National Flood Insurance
Program and how to find a flood msurance agent, please visit htip:/ www.floodsmart.gov/floodsmart/
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ACITY OF AUSTIN -~ ZONING VERIFICATION LETTER

For questions tonceming zoning compliarice or any development erfteria comtact the Development Assistance

Center of the Cily of Austin at (512) 974-6370_

This letter is to verily that the parcel fisied is covered by the listed zoning slassification on the

date the letter was éreated
Party Requesting Verification

Name: Joseph Martinez
Mailing Address:
1502 £ 22nd st
Austin, TX 78722

Tax Parcel Identification Number
Agency: TCAD
Paxcel ID: 202217, 2022178, 202219

Zoning Classification(s) find definfions at bitoclfuna sustimexas advipagelzoring districts
MP-2-CO-3p

Zoning Case Number(s) Look up case info at hiips/fawwa

Cl4-02~0057, C14-03-0204, Cl4~2009~0L0£,.88, NPA~-2003-0

plz.01

Zoning Ordinance Number{s) tookup crdinances at Mip-Taustinbexas. govedims/search ofm

020801~32, 20060206-053%, 20091210~087, 20081210-088

For Address Verification visit
hitp:/eusiinderas goviaddressverfication

To access zoning ordinance documenisfion visi:
@:f@usﬁg;exas.awiedimsfs%@_c&n

To access zoning overlay documentation {Land Development Code Chaper 25-2 Division 6) visit

hifp: usffnims.acvld rrnent/aoshn.ci d-development-coda

hitp:/faustiriessas govidenarimentzoning

This leiter was produced by the City of Austin Communication Technology Menragement Depariment on behalf of the

Pianning and Development Review Department

L, Stecy Mesks, of the Communications and Technology Management Department for the Cily of Austin, do hiereby
certity that the above information refiects the data and records on file in ihis dffice.

[

=

4/16/2015

202217,
2022178,
202218
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| 5d. Proof of Site Control
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SENERDT WARRANTY pEmn o

THE STATE OF TEXAS g
COUNTY OF TRAVIS s

ENOW 251, MEN BY THESE P -

THAT we, Amnte Maxifie ‘Ross and Claire Denise Jo [++1
Claire Demise Ockletree Sohneon Givens, not joined Ty spguﬂs:ég

hend paid by Blackland Conmgmrmnt ty Development Co: ration, a Texas
non~profin Foxporaticn, the regeipt of, zll ogpzhieh is hexsby
acknowledged, have GRANTED, BERGATNED, SORD and CONVEYED, and by
these presents 8o GRANT, SZARGAIN, SELL and CONVEY untd the said
Blackliznd Commmity Development Coxporation, = Texas nen-profits
corporaiton, whose address is 2005 Salina, Zustin, Travis County,
Texas, 78722, hereimafter called "Crantee®, the fullowing described
tract ox parcel of Iand lyzng and being situared ip Trevis County,
Texas, to-wit-s

Lot 1 z;md 2, Block 15, C-R JUEN-S SUBRDIVISION OF OUTLOT
8. Divigicm B, an addition in Travis County, Te -
according to the map or plat thereof zecorded in
Volume 1, Page 3 of the Dlat Reccrds of 'Travas County,
Texas.

TEIS COMVEYANCE - is exprassly made SUBJECT TO oy =md =21l
sasements, rights-of-way, restricrions, ordinsnces, wmineral or
royalty resexvarioms o conveyances, leages of every ! kipnd and
chavacter, and any and all other similer mattexrs affecting che
ahove-described Property, excluding liens, life estates, snd/or fes
interests in third partias, and zppearing of record in the Office
of the County Clerk of Travis County,. Texas.

TC HAVE BND TO BOLD the zkove described premises,| together
with a}l apnd singelar the rights and sppurtenswres thersto in
Grantee hevein, their heirs and asszgne,
forever; and Grentor does mereby biad themselves, their hedirs amd
assigns, Lo WARRAWT AND FOREVER DEFEND =211 and singular| the =zzigd
Premises unto the Srantee herein, its heirs and assigns, agmanst
Svery persom whomsoever lawfully claiming, ox && cluim tHe same or

th

The real preperty comveyved heyeby is conveyed and deliverad to
Grentee in 1Ts prosemr condition and op an *as is* basig, and
Sranter expressly disclaiwms eny warranty as toe the condabion of
such propertty or the sSuitability of any such Propexrty for the use
and purpose for whick the same 15 intemded, andl GCrantea
acknowledges it hes inspected che property or canssd Gt to be
inspected, and iv adcepting the Propexty “as is® it is nok relying
upcn any statements or representations of Gramtor regaxding the
cendition of the property or improvements.

Taxes having beer prorated to the satisfacrion of the paxties,
the Cranree has assumed the cbligation for paymentr of taxes for

2001 and subsecuent verrs.
DRTED this the & dayof_#gwﬁ_., 2901

. . \%:7

M}fm
Givens

4 Dana DeBeauvelr, County Clerk, Travis Gounty,
Texas, do hereby cerfieingt tis i 2 pus ang
correst copy as same epheets of Slein Iy aRce.
A

hsnéarﬁss&!:faﬁiﬁlaiogﬂg 281&

Y Dana DeBaauyai, Gourry

SF anSe SAMANTHA LOPEZ




TEE STATE OF TEYAS -
COURTY OF VICTORIA §

Zhas instrument way acknowledged before me on the |/€ day of

AN ]

« 2001, by Znmie Maxwine Ross.

IS L ooty
4 CORRESSI0N Exrgs
<Jidr 30, 2001

f & ? }5’ ‘:2{‘@.2?,
TARY PUELIC, STATE OF T=XAS

g

comiry oF LeoTop 5

This insitrument was.acknowledg

ed before me on the day of

; 2001, by Clanre Denise OckletXes Joamson

Givens.

NO 10, STATE OF TEXRAS

peSeauve, County Clerl, Zravs Coumty,
¢ heredy cerify Hhat this is a tree 3nd

Y a5 seEneappears of ils mmy office.
fness my band and sesl of ofiice o9

Daca Daswgi% m&
svDeptys SAMANTHA LOPEZ




WARRANTY DEED G4 —08-5190

Sza; oF 2600 ZETDT =z 55232 :
COUNTY OF TRAVTS } KROW ALy MEN BY TRESE PRESENTS:
TEt I, -rannie Mxe sz : ‘ 2
gy , THAXE, & Ffomme soke, nwelr having vseq This 'p'é'-cperty
of the o - AT

> Cvr-‘wtyo'f : :tzavf.s, aﬁds‘ma"oc’g__:ze:gqs__“ e oy for amnd in
%ﬂmiqf:b‘e_-m o Ten ang oS IO0 $********$}-¥“r€3*5&*'*3eg**x e e ks e A S e ke SR ohe S
ot e e e ke ($10.00) a*u_—**w**w*a**w*iméﬂa****ﬁﬂ:&'*ﬁe&i*#—Eﬁ**x&-&******m LATS

¥, Eu Y, -ty =7

and otRer mh&aﬁn&m@m&pﬁd'&y&chﬂuﬂm hares; Arned, she Spt of
which I= herpey Y acknowlodged,

havnmAN‘!ﬁ},soLDANDCDNVEYEJ. anad by these presemts dd m,mmmﬁ-xm

Blackland Commuamity Develomment corporatsion

ofthccomtyof Travics awwl State of Texwas -~ " > B of

t&eioabﬁngdmibmreﬂmin Wravis Connty, Temas, toowits

ot = Bi?czk. 16, C. .. TOENS smamgm, = subdivision of PERL of Oabtliowr

4€, Division “Bw, fn the City of Austin, Pravi Sounty, 2 s _accoocedine
the map or platr oF record En Yolwne 1

=R Y r Page 3, of the Plat -
Trxvis Cowmoty, Texzs, £1:L?:!:.bez_: i&mtif.?.aa as City Tax Pareel 2--1199—-0303-

mﬂ&%wmmmﬁmam&m‘be&m,mgeﬁnwﬁ&zuanﬂﬁngulax-dleﬁghtsant!
a%j:nam’. 2 thereto i anywisc belonging, wmio the said grmtee - ies hckes and assigas
foreves; and X dohoreby bind mySelf,. my fiedzs, creontors and administrarecs to
wmmmmnm@mmmmem fes unto the swid gradtee. | St

wﬁém-w%mwmmydm fng or 'da_i‘nitbem:e;oranypémmm -

This ciaivesmheoe . iv made Tursuant £o the toarme an <onditions of the .

CORTIICE betwesn e R 3 Commary ity Devil odmend:
Ton which is attached hereitt as Exhibitc &

EXECUTED this  F5¥s day of Srie, « AD. 1085

REAL PROPERTY RECOROS .

- Tzrav's‘cotxnzy. Temas -
) —  B8757° {567 ’ ’

- - _— - 2 .w'-.-'.'a-:__-
— - 7

L, Dana DeBeauvoir, County Glerk of Travis County, cenify Histo bea fusang correct Lopy as the same appears of record
e my office. Withess my hand and seal of office an this date,

Dz Daf24/2019 . Danz DeSeauvoir | Trovis County Clerk
By: \J\ﬁ% Depisty Clerk

J. ANDREW RAMIREZ
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A"ﬁ;\f\l Toz. e Too. ‘
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thh&;ﬁtraf?ﬁ:ns - ..
- Ny Comien gk f"'{f._,-‘_._‘a
(Corpomate AciDowiadyeenty "—ﬁ-;e...: . N
STATE.OF TEXAS : &ﬁ ~
T } | remEmiaEes
by'n::s' ERt was sk Fodged before me o the Say of T -
o . - -
L a wmm&éﬂsofn’idmﬁm
STtaEy Pablic, OF XY
g MNotary's comumissida txpires:
AFIHQRECORDNGWTO:‘ Pmamml‘ﬂamwomor—
# SEeraTY
|_ —' mm..e,?wsx
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[, Dara DeBeauvoir, County Clerk of Travis Cotnty, certify this to be 2 tire and comect copy a5 the Same appears of record
i my offies. Witness my haad and seal of office on this date.

Datz:  Q4l2dpo0mg Travis County Clerk

By: Depuiy Clerk

\){.AQ ‘:1 Brana DeBeauvoir,
J Y

J. ANDREW RAMIREZ
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wWe, Anmae ROSE xng Cladtrea Dexi Tolam e,
CI.?:-_}‘::& Densse Ockletres oo Givens, T Joined bygcw.:x- ?p&/};ég
> oﬂse the Properta, comTataed herein a oL constiture |oY  mae
callu:ea raLTY ﬁzis_ne:g. °::f::_ Va.ctazéa. County,, Texas, BeraimaTrer
= Sensiderakson oE LaTn ey
=S S{L0.00)}) and otheap Food and vaiy e considerarions gaﬁ$h g;:
i, paé_ by Blacklaca i Ty Devrelopnent TPoration, g Texas
Dreftie Sorporataior, o Fecelnt of all of whick s herabn,
Swiedges, hava SRANTED, =am . 50 ans i X
= siecl TeZents Go GRANT, . SETI. CONMVEY wuxmtao The sagey
BORI Sy Comomand, ty Developmens Corpora: LON, & Tesme DO -ProEl e
car;oratz.bn, whose BS5E IS 2005 Soi » Buastin, Travisg WXy,
r 7ETRZS he::ea.nafter Salled “Grantee Lol owing desceribead
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Professional Service Industries, Inc.
2600 McHale Court, Suite 125
Austin, TX 78758

Phone: 512-491-0200

Fax: 512-491-0221

July 23, 2020

Mr. Joseph A. Martinez

Blackland Community Development Corporation
1902 E. 22nd Street

Austin, Texas 78722

RE:  Phase | Environmental Site Assessment Report
Blackland Property
1900, 1902, & 1904 E. 22nd Street
Austin, Texas 78722
PSi Work Order Number 0435-4512

Dear Mr. Martinez:

Thank you for choosing Professional Service Industries, Inc. (PSl), an Intertek company. The
information you requested is attached.

PSI performed the Phase I Environmental Site Assessment that you requested in general accordance
with our agreement dated June 24, 2020. PS| transmits one electronic pdf copy with this letter.

We thank you for your business and we look forward to finding ways to grow our partnership,
expand our services, and continue Building Better Together.

For Professional Service Industries, Inc.

U Oy Z

Andrea Clements Jehn Langan
Environmental Services

Staff Scienti
entist Department Manager

Attachments
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Professional Service industries, Inc.
2600 McHale Court, Suite 125
Austin, TX 78758

Andrea Clements
Staff Scientist
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John Langan
Environmental Services
Department Manager
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CERTIFICATION

Professional Service Industries, Inc. (PSI), an Intertek company, has completed a Phase | Environmental Site
Assessment of the Blackland Property located at 1900, 1902, & 1904 E. 22nd Street in Austin, Texas (“the
Subject Property”). PSI performed the Phase | ESA in general accordance with ASTM E1527-13, Standard
Practice for Environmental Site Assessments: Phase | Environmental Site Assessment Process (the Practice).
The assessment was completed at the request of Blackland Community Development Corporation (“the
client”) in accordance with the scope of work outlined in PSl's Proposal Number 0435-312354, which was
authorized by the client on June 24, 2020.

The conclusions developed herein represent our professional judgment based on information and data
available to us at the time of the assessment, and observations made at the time of our site reconnaissance.
In accordance with ASTM E1527-13 § 4.6, the report is valid for a period of 180 days from the time of issuance.

Site Assessor:

Andrea Clements
Staff Scientist

Reviewed by: =7 /\‘

John Langan
Environmental Services Department Manager

Environmental Professional Certification

I declare that, to the best of my professional knowledge and belief, | meet the definition of Environmental
Professional as defined in 312.10 of this part. | have the specific qualifications based on education, training,
and experience to assess a property of the nature, history, and setting of the subject property. | have
developed and performed the all appropriate inquiries in conformance with the standards and practices set
forth in 40 CFR Part 312.

Environmental
Professional:

John Langan
Environmental Services Department Manager
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1.0 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

PSI, an Intertek company, performed a Phase | ESA of the Blackland Property located at 1900, 1902, & 1904
E. 22nd Street, in Austin, Texas, 78722. PS| performed the assessment to comply with the contract between
Blackland Community Development Corporation (the client) and PSI.

Our assessment included a Phase | ESA and did not include evaluation of business environmental risks that
are beyond the scope of ASTM E1527 (e.g., asbestos, mold, lead based paint, radon, wetlands, etc.).

1.1 FINDINGS

A summary of findings is provided below. The report should be read in its entirety to obtain a more complete
understanding of the information provided and to aid in any decisions made or actions taken based on this
information.

1.1.1 SITE DESCRIPTION AND CURRENT USE

The subject property consists of an approximately 0.6657 acre tract that is located at 1900, 1902, & 1904 E.
22nd Street, in Austin, Texas. The subject property at 1900 E. 22nd Street is developed with a garden, the
Fannie Mae Conservatory. The subject property at 1902 E. 22nd Street is developed with an approximately
1,038 square feet (sf) one-story single-family residential structure that is used at the office for Blackland
Community Development Corporation. The subject property at 1904 E. 22nd Street is developed with an
approximately 2,392 square feet (sf) two-story multi-family dwelling with associated landscaping, and is
currently occupied by residents whom are utilizing the services of Blackland Community Development
Corporation (CDQ). Blackland CDC provides affordable housing via single family homes, duplexes, and an
apartment complex.

1.1.2 ADJOINING PROPERTY DESCRIPTION AND USE
The subject property is located neara primarily commercial corridor along Manor Road, with a single

family residential area located to the west and south. Usage of the immediately surrounding properties is
summarized in the table below.

Direction Description of Adjoining Property Use
North Salty Sow American restaurant and associated parking lot followed by Manor Road
East Apparent single family residential property followed by Pogquito Street
South E. 22nd Street followed by single family residences
West Chicon Street followed by single and multi-family residential properties

www.intertek.com/building
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1.1.3 HISTORICAL USE OF SITE AND SURROUNDING AREA

The subject property has consisted of residential or vacant properties at least from 1922 through the late
1980s according to the Fire Insurance Maps and other historical resources reviewed. Based on a review of the
local tax assessor's records, the subject property at 1900 and 1902 E. 22nd Street was transferred from Annie
Maxine Ross to the current owner, Blackland Community Development Corporation, in 2001. Prior to that,
these parcels were transferred from Fannie Mae Stewart to Annie Maxine Ross in 1987. The subject property
at 1904 E. 22nd Street was transferred from Fannie Mae Stewart to the current owner, Blackland Community
Development Corporation, in 1985.

The northwest adjacent property across Chicon Street had permitted UST facilities in the 1950s according
to The City of Austin records discussed in Section 7.2.2 below. The closest filing station was listed in the
city directories reviewed at least from 1959 through 1970, and the filling station was apparent in the 1962
through 1971 Fire Insurance Maps of all the historical resources reviewed. Subsequently, the northwest
adjacent property was used as an automotive repair and trucking business at least from 1976 through 1985
according to the city directories. From the lack of further listings and aerial photographs, the northwest
adjacent property was vacant or used as a parking lot after 1985 through the time of site reconnaissance
in 2020. The database records discussed in Section 7.1.2 below indicate that the parking lot may have
contained USTs and was used by the University of Texas Physical Plant as a parking lot at least in the late
19803 and early 1990s.

The immediately north adjoining property appears to have been used residentially in 1922 and was first
listed commercially as a grocery store at least from 1959 through 1970. Then, the immediately north
adjoining property was listed as a Community Auto Co-op in in 1976, unlisted in the early to mid 1980s,
and used as various apparent restaurant or catering businesses at least since 1989 through the time of site
reconnaissance.

The east adjacent properties were primarily residential properties and also included a church at least from
1922 through 2015 according to Fire Insurance Maps and Aerial Photographs reviewed. Additionally, the
south and west adjacent properties were residential at least since 1922 from the historical resources
reviewed.

1.1.4 GOVERNMENTAL RECORDS REVIEW

PSI subcontracted with Environmental Risk information Services (ERIS} to provide a review of governmental
database records for spill sites, tanks, hazardous waste handlers, and other facilities of potential concern
within proximity to the subject property.

The subject property was not identified as a spill site or regulated facility on the regulatory databases that
were searched. However, off-site facilities were identified in the database search within the appropriate
AMSD and were evaluated by PSI during this assessment. These facilities are discussed in Section 7.1 of this
report, and the regulatory radius map report is appended.

www.intertek.com/building
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1.1.5 SIGNIFICANT DATA GAPS

The ASTM E1527 Standard Practice defines a significant data gap as a lack of or inability to obtain information
required by the practice that would limit our ability to draw conclusions with regard to RECs in connection
with the subject property. Based on our experience, the information that we gathered and evaluated did not
present significant data gaps that affected our ability to identify RECs in connection with the subject property.

1.2 CONCLUSIONS
PSI performed a Phase | ESA of the subject property in general accordance with the scope and limitations of
ASTM Practice E 1527-13. Any exceptions to or deletions from this practice are described in Section 2.3 of this

report. The following conclusions have been made with regard to evidence of RECs, HRECs, CRECs, VECs, and
de minimis conditions on the subject property, as defined in ASTM E 1527-13.

1.2.1 RECOGNIZED ENVIRONMENTAL CONDITIONS

This assessment has revealed no evidence of RECs in connection with the subject property.

ON-SITE CONDITIONS

None

OFF-SITE CONDITIONS

None

1.2.2 CONTROLLED RECOGNIZED ENVIRONMENTAL CONDITIONS

The ASTM E1527 Standard Practice defines a CREC as a past release of hazardous substances or petroleum
products that has been addressed to the satisfaction of a regulatory agency with chemicals of concern
allowed to remain in place subject to the implementation of institutional and/or engineering controls to
prevent future exposure. In some cases, certain uses or activities (e.g., residential use) may be limited

or prohibited on the property. By definition, the ASTM E1527 Standard Practice considers a CREC to also
represent an REC, since residual chemicals may remain present in the subsurface.

This assessment has revealed no evidence of CRECs in connection with the subject property.

www.intertek.com/building
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1.2.3 HISTORICAL RECOGNIZED ENVIRONMENTAL CONDITIONS

The ASTM Standard Practice defines an HREC as a past release of hazardous substances or petroleum
products that has impacted the property, but the release has been addressed to the satisfaction of a
regulatory agency or meets unrestricted use criteria established by the regulatory agency without the need
for institutional or engineering controls. PSI has identified the following HRECs in connection with the subject
property:

+ Former Fueling Facility / Arthur P Watson 7 Abandoned UST Faciity
1900 Manor Road
Austin, TX 78722

This former fueling facility was located over 200 feet to the north and does not represent evidence of
a current REC based on the separation distance from the subject property, closure of the LPST case,
the cleanup status in the Brownfields program, and the removal of the USTs and lack of active USTs.
The LPST case and Brownfields listing do appear to represent evidence of an HREC in connection
with the subject property; however, the TCEQ file room is closed from the emergency declaration
regarding coronavirus, and records were not available for review.

* UT Physical Plant Parking Lot
1815 Manor Road
Austin, TX 78722

This facility was located adjacent to the northwest of the subject property across Chicon Street.
The TCEQ LPST case was reported in October 1990 and closed in April 1991. Contamination
reportedly only impacted the soils. The UST Facility status is inactive, and the USTs were removed
from the ground in 1990. Files were not available for review from the TCEQ due to coronavirus
related closure of the central file room. This off-site petroleum release on an adjacent property
appears to represent evidence of an HREC in connection with the subject property.

1.2.4 VAPOR ENCROACHMENT CONDITIONS

The ASTM E1527 Standard Practice requires that the environmental professional evaluate the potential for
VECs on the subject property. A VEC is defined in ASTM E2600 as the presence or likely presence of volatile
chemicals in the subsurface that are caused by the release of vapors from contaminated soil or groundwater
either on or near the subject property.

This assessment has revealed no VECs in connection with the subject property.
1.2.5 DE MINIMIS CONDITIONS
A de minimis condition is a condition that generally does not present a threat to human health or the

environment and that generally would not be the subject of an enforcement action if brought to the attention
of appropriate governmental agencies.
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PSI did not identify evidence of de minimis conditions on the subject property.

1.2 RECOMMENDATIONS

PSI recommends no further assessment for RECs in connection with the subject property at this time.

www.intertek.com/building
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2.0 PHASE | ESA SCOPE AND METHODOLOGY
2.1 PURPOSE OF SERVICES

PSI performed the Phase | ESA in conformance with ASTM E 1527-1 3, Standard Practice for Environmental
Site Assessments: Phase | Environmental Site Assessment Process {the Practice). The purpose of the Practice
was to define good commercial practice for conducting a Phase I ESA and as such, the Practice is intended
to permit the user to satisfy one of the requirements to qualify for the LLPs. The goal of the processes
established by the Practice is to identify RECs in connection with the property.

Based on the information provided, PSI understands that your purpose for having the Phase | ESA performed
is to satisfy one of the requirements to qualify for one of the LLPs.

2.2  PHASE | ESA METHODOLOGY

PSI performed a Phase I ESA of the subject property. The scope of our services and general methodology is
presented below.

The information sources that PSI used, including published material, material obtained from commercial and
other sources, is listed below and cited as it is presented in the report. The information or excerpts thereofis
appended.

This assessment included the following components:

* Records review:

« Reconnaissance;

+ Interviews;

* Vapor Encroachment Screen (VES) in accordance with ASTM E2600-15; and
*+ Preparation of this report, inciuding our evaluation.

2.3 LIMITATIONS, EXCEPTIONS, DEVIATIONS AND DATA GAP

PSI considers that limitations, exceptions, and deviations from the Practice manifest as a lack of or inability
to obtain information required by the Practice. This represents the definition of the 'data gap' contained in
the Practice. PS listed the component objectives of the Practice on the appended Data Gap Worksheet and
tracked the information obtained against the objectives. Therefore the limitations, exceptions and deviations
are identified in the Worksheet.

In general, when required information was incomplete, not provided, otherwise not obtained, or indicated a
need for additional information, PSI attempted to use information from other sources to meet the Practices'
performance objectives. When the data gaps affected the Environmental Professional's ability to identify
RECs, PSi considered the data gap(s) to be significant. PSI identified significant data gaps (if any) on the Data
Gap Worksheet and reported them in Section 1.1.5.
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SIGNIFICANT ASSUMPTIONS

PSI made the following assumptions in developing our Phase | ESA findings and conclusions:

-

Regulatory Agency Information - PSI considers all information provided by our environmental
database subcontractor regarding regulatory status of facilities to be complete, accurate, and
current.

Other Regulatory Information - PSI considers all information obtained from regulatory or
enforcement agencies to be complete, accurate, and current.

Title, Lien and AUL Information - PSI considers all information provided by real estate title record
review firms regarding property use or ownership, encumbrances or other limitations, if provided,
to be complete, accurate and current.

Interviews - PSI considers all information provided through interviews to be complete, unbiased and
provided in good faith.

Groundwater - PSI interpreted and inferred the direction of the shallow groundwater movement
based on the information we obtained and our experience. Actual groundwater flow may be locally
influenced by many factors beyond the scope of this assessment. Subsurface mnvestigation would be
necessary to determine site-specific groundwater flow direction.
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3.0 USER-PROVIDED INFORMATION

PSI considers the client to be the "User of our assessment, defined in ASTM Practice E 1527 as "the party
seeking to use ASTM E 1527 to complete a Phase | ESA of the property. A User may include, without
limitation, a potential purchaser of property, a potential tenant of property, an owner of property, a lender,
Or a property manager. The User has specific obligations for completing a successful application of this
practice...."

341 USER QUESTIONNAIRE

The EPA All Appropriate Inquiry Rule {40 CFR Part 312) and ASTM E1527 Section 6 require the User to answer
certain questions related to the property, in crder to obtain certain LLPs from CERCLA liabifity. To facilitate
this process, PSI provided the client with a User Questionnaire, which is provided in the Appendix if it has
been returned. A summary of the required questions and client responses is provided below:

Client did
Question Yes No Unknown N/A | notrespond

Did a review of recorded land title records or other
sources identify any environmental liens filed or
recorded against the subject property under
federal, tribal, state or local law?

Did a review of land title records or other sources
identify any activity use limitations (AULs), such as
engineering controls, land use restrictions or v
institutional controls that are in place on the
subject property?

Do you have specialized knowledge or experience
related to the subject property or nearby v
properties?

Does the purchase price being paid for the
property reasonably reflect the fair market value of v

the property?
If you conclude that there is a difference,
have you considered whether the lower
purchase price is because contamination is v
known or believed to be present at the
property?
Are you aware of commonly known or reasonably ascertainable information about the property that
would help the environmental professional to identify conditions indicative of a releases or threatened
releases?
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Question

Yes

No

Unknown

N/A

Client did
not respond

Do you know of the past uses of the
property?

Do you know of specific chemicals that are
present or were once present at the

property?

Do you know of spills or ather chernical
releases that have taken place at the

property?

Do you know of any environmental cleanups
that have taken place at the property?

Based on your knowledge and experience related
to the property are there any obvious indicators
that point to the presence or likely presence of
contamination at the subject property?

Do you know of any pending, threatened, or past
litigation or administrative proceedings relevant to
hazardous substances or petroleum products in,
on, or from the property?

Do you know of any notices from any
governmental entity regarding any possible
violation of environmental faws or possible liability
relating to hazardous substances or petroleumn
products?

NOTES

Known past uses of the subject property and surrounding area are residential according to explanations
provided in the User Questionnaire appended for questions 3 and 5.

PSI was not provided with supplemental documentation about environmental cleanup liens or AULs, but the
Client indicated in the User Questionnaire that they were not aware of environmental liens or AULs recorded
on the subject property. All Appropriate Inquiry is based upon the client conducting a title review to search
for liens/AULs outside the scope of this assessment. This limitation and our evaluation are recorded on the

appended Data Gap Worksheet.
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3.2  TITLE RECORDS

Based on a review of the local tax assessor’s records, the subject property at 1900 and 1902 E. 22nd Street
is currently owned by Blackland Community Development Corporation; the property was transferred from
Annie Maxine Ross to the current owner in 2001. Prior to that, it was transferred from Fannie Mae Stewart to
Annie Maxine Ross in 1987.

The subject property at 1904 E. 22nd Street is currently owned by Blackland Community
Development Corporation; the property was transferred from Fannie Mae Stewart to the current owner in
1985.

PSI was not provided with land title records by the client in order to obtain information about the past
owners of the subject property and past uses and tenancies. However, given the availability of other historic
resources, we do not consider this limitation to represent a significant data gap.

3.3 SUGGESTED INFORMATION

The client provided PSI with the following suggested information described by the Practice.

+ The reason for performing the Phase | ESA,

* The type of property and type of property transaction.

*+ The complete and correct address of the property.

* The scope of services desired for the Phase | ESA, including any evaluation for business
environmentai risk that is beyond the scope of ASTM E1527.

* ldentification of all parties who will rely upon the report.

* Identification of the key site contact and contact information.

3.4  HELPFUL DOCUMENTS

The Practice requires that the environmental professional ask the property owner, the key site manager
(if any is identified), and the User for certain helpful documents about the property and certain legal
proceedings involving hazardous substances and the subject property. PSI mailed or e-mailed guestions
or performed interviews requesting this information. The responses documenting the persons we
corresponded with, and relevant information obtained, are appended where practical.

The client did not provide prior environmental reports or other helpful documents within the performance
period of this assessment.
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4.0 PHYSICAL SETTING

P5l reviewed & USGS topographic (topo) map, information from the USDA and/or Natural Resources
Conservation Service (NRCS) and/or other information regarding the physical setting of the subject property
to assist with the interpretation of subsurface water movement near the subject property. Physical setting
information is summarized in the table below.

Summary of Physical Setting Information

Physical Setting Attributes Description Source
Subject property elevation: Approximately 594.1-feet AMSL USGS Topo Map
"Austin East, TX" & "Austin
West, TX" 7.5 minute
Quadrangle
2016 (Year revised)
Topographic gradient: The subject property and surrounding ERIS Physical Setting Report
area slopes in general to the
south-southeast.
Closest surface water: Boggy Creek: ~3,900 ft to the Northeast | ERIS Physical Setting Report.
Other resource or physical No ERIS Physical Setting Report
characteristics mapped on
the subject property?
Is a flood hazard zone No ERIS Physical Setting Report
mapped on the subject
property?

www.intertek.com/building




PSI Project Number 0435-4512
Blackland Property

July 23, 2020

Page 12

Physical Setting Attributes

Description

Source

Predominant soil type(s)
mapped on the subject

property:

Urban land, Austin, and Whitewright
soils, 1 to 8 percent slopes (UtD): parent
material is residuum weathered from
chalk; variable soil horizon

profile; approximately 10 to 40 inches to
paralithic bedrock; well drained;
medium to high runoff class;
moderately low to high capacity of most
limiting layer to transmit water; very low
avaifable water storage in profile; not a
hydric soil.

Urban Land includes soils that have
been reworked, constructed on or
otherwise disturbed so that the parent
materials cannot be identified and the
characteristics of the soils have been
altered from the native conditions.

USDA NRCS Custom Soil
Resource Report (retrieved
from website on July 6, 2020)

Geology/Hydrogeology:

High gravel deposits (Qhg): Quaternary
Period, Pleistocene Series; No Group;
gravel commonly exposed to the
surface on southeastern part of Austin
Sheet; thickness of limestone gravel
5-25 feet.

Texas Water Development,
Board, USGS Geaologic Atlas
of Texas, Austin Sheet,
Revised 1981

Anticipated regional
groundwater flow direction:

South-southeast

ERIS Physical Setting Report

Oil and Gas Resources:

None mapped on or adjacent to the
subject property

ERIS Physical Setting Report

Mining Resources:

None mapped on or adjacent to the
subject property

ERIS Physical Setting Report

www.intertek.com/building




PSI Project Number 0435-4512
Blackland Property

July 23, 2020

Page 13

5.0 SITE RECONNAISSANCE

The location and approximate boundaries of the subject property are illustrated on the appended figures.
The legal description of the subject property, if provided to PSI, is appended.

Mr. Joseph A. Martinez, Executive Director, granted PSI access to the subject property and escorted PSI during
the site reconnaissance.

The ground reconnaissance consisted of observing the periphery of the subject property and viewing the
subject property from accessible adjoining public access areas. Visual reconnaissance of adjoining properties
was limited to areas and facilities that were readily observable from the subject property or from public
access areas. PSI also systematically toured the interior portions of the subject property parcels to provide
an overlapping field of view.

The peripheries of surface features and/or structures, where present on the subject property, were observed
along with accessible interior common areas. PS| photo-documented selected features. The photo log is
included in the Appendix.

5.1 SUBJECT PROPERTY DESCRIPTION AND CURRENT USES

General Site Information

Subject Property Address | 1900, 1902, & 1904 E. 22nd Street, Austin, Texas 78722
Parcel Size (acres) 0.6657 +/-
Site Contact/Escort Mr. Joseph A. Martinez / Mr. Joseph A. Martinez
Date of Reconnaissance July 1, 2020

Building Information
Building Description Residential structures constructed of wood siding
Size (sguare feet) 1,038 sf & 2,392 sf
Number of Stories One-Story & Two-Story
Approx. Construction 1937 & 1988
Date

Utilities

Water City of Austin
Wastewater/Sewer City of Austin
Electricity City of Austin Energy
Natural Gas City of Austin Energy
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Heating Source Unknown

Improvements to the subject property consist of an appropriately 1,038 square feet (sf) one-story
single-family residential structure that is used asthe office for Blackland Community Development
Corporation and an approximately 2,392 square feet (sf) two-story multi-family  dwelling with
associated landscaping. According to the owner interview with the Executive Director of Blackland CDC, the
structures were moved to the subject property by the current owner, Blackland CDC.

5.2  SUBJECT PROPERTY OBSERVATIONS

A summary of the subject property uses and conditions is tabulated below. Detailed information is discussed
following the summary for any “yes” answers, along with an opinion about the significance of the listing.

Identified?
{check if
Yes) Item Description
Equipment/Activities/Uses
Emergency Generators
Elevators
Hydraulic Lifts
bry Cleaners/Laundrormats
Photo Processing
Medical/Dental Offices - Biomedical Wastes
Automotive/Equipment Repair
Grease Traps and Oil/Water Separators
Wastewater Treatment Systems
Septic or Sewage Tanks
Air Compressors
v Transformers or Other Mech./Elec. Equipment That Could Contain PCBs

Pipeline Markers
Oil and Gas Wells
Stormwater Ponds
Quarries, Pits, Lakes, or Lagoons
Use, Storage, or Disposal of Hazardous Substances
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Identified?
{check if
Yes)

Hem Description

Use, Storage, or Disposal of Petroleum Products

ASTs/USTs

Brums or Other Bulk Chemical Containers

Suspect Containers/Unidentified Contents

Drains and Sumps

Drinking Water, Irrigation or Monitoring Welis

Agrochemical Use/Application

Railroad Spur/Tracks

Potential Evidence of Releases

Interior/Pavement Stains or Corrosion

Stained Soil/Stressed Vegetation

Chemical Odors

Surface Water Sheen or Discoloration

Exterior Pipe Discharges/Unknown Pipes/Effluent Discharges

Pools of Liquid or Standing Water

Solid Waste Dumping/Landfilling/Suspect Fill Material

Construction Debris/Material Stockpiles

Other Uses or Conditions of Concern

5.2.1 TRANSFORMERS OR OTHER ELECTRICAL OR MECHANICAL EQUIPMENT THAT COULD
CONTAIN PCBS

A pole-mounted electrical transformers was observed along the south property boundary on the subject
property between 1902 and 1904 E 22nd Street. PSI did not observe non-PCB labeling on the transformers at
the time of the site reconnaissance. PSI believes the electrical equipment is the property and responsibility
of Austin Energy, the local electrical utility company, who would be responsible for cleanup related to the
equipment that could not be attributed to tenant negligence. The identified electrical equipment appeared
to be in good condition, with no apparent evidence of staining, leakage, or corrosion noted. Based on their
observed condition and the local utility ownership, the observed transformers are not considered to be
evidence of a REC in connection with the subject property.
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5.2.2 DRAINS OR SUMPS

A landscape drain was observed on the south portion of 1900-1902 E. 22nd Street. No unusual staining,
odors, stressed vegetation or other indications of possible misuse were observed in the vicinity of the
landscape drain; therefore, the landscape drain does not represent evidence of a REC in connection with the
subject property.

5.2.3 DRINKING WATER/IRRIGATION/MONITORING WELLS

PSI observed a cistern or potable water well at the subject property at 1900-1902 E. 22nd Street. No unusual
staining, odors, or other indications of possible misuse were observed at the time of site reconnaissance. This
potabie water well or cistern is not considered to be evidence of a REC in connection with the subject

property.
5.24 CONSTRUCTION DEBRIS/MATERIAL STOCKPILES

PSI observed stacked piles of metal siding, wood porch railing and other building supplies in the backyards
at 1902-1904 E. 22nd Street. PSI also observed landscaping materials in portable sheds used as a a garage
at 1904 k. 22nd Street. No obviously hazardous chemicals were observed. No indications of leaks, spills,
dumping, nor buried materials were noted at the time of site reconnaissance; no odor, staining, or stressed
vegetation was observed. The presence of these construction and landscaping materials is not considered to
be evidence of a REC in connection with the subject property.

5.3  OFF-SITE OBSERVATIONS

A summary of the adjoining property uses and conditions is tabulated below. Detailed information is
discussed following the summary for any “yes” answers, along with an opinion about the significance of the
listing.

Identified?
{(check if
Yes) Item Description

Equipment/Activities/Uses

Emergency Generators

Elevators

Hydraulic Lifts

Dry Cleaners/Laundromats

Photo Processing

Medical/Dental Offices - Biomedical Wastes
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Identified?
(check if
Yes) item Description

Automotive/Equipment Repair

v Grease Traps and Oil/Water Separators
Wastewater Treatment Systems
Septic or Sewage Tanks
Air Compressors

v Transformers or Other Mech/Elec. Equipment That Could Contain PCBs

Pipeline Markers

Oil and Gas Wells

Stormwater Ponds

Quarries, Pits, Lakes, or Lagoons

Use, Storage, or Disposal of Hazardous Substances

Use, Storage, or Disposal of Petroleum Products

ASTs/USTs

Drums or Other Bulk Chemical Containers

Suspect Containers/Unidentified Contents

Drains or Sumps

Drinking Water, Irrigation or Monitoring Wells

Agrochemical Use/Application

Railroad Spur/Tracks

Potential Evidence of Releases

Interior/Pavement Stains or Corrosion

Stained Soil/Stressed Vegetation

Chemical Odors

Surface Water Sheen or Discoloration

Exterior Pipe Discharges/Unknown Pipes/Efffuent Discharges

Pools of Liquid or Standing Water

Solid Waste Dumping/Landfilling/Suspect Fill Material
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Identified?
(check if
Yes) Item Description

Construction Debris/Material Stockpiles

Other Uses or Conditions of Concern

5.3.1 GREASE TRAPS AND OIL/WATER SEPARATORS

An above ground grease receptacle and an in-ground grease interceptor are likely present on the
north adjoining property, Salty Sow. Manholes associated with an in-ground grease interceptor were not
observed near the building form public thoroughfares. The internal conditions of the in-ground grease
interceptor were not able to be inspected due to access restrictions; however, no exterior staining or
obvious odors were noted. Grease interceptors are commonly associated with food preparation businesses
to prevent clogging of sewer pipes. The drains from the interior of the building, likely the kitchen or food
preparation areas may be connected to the in-ground grease interceptor. An in-ground grease interceptor
would likely discharge to the municipal sewage system. Based on the use of the north adjoining property
building as a restaurant, the in-ground grease interceptor does not appear to represent evidence of a REC in
connection with the subject property.

5.3.2 TRANSFORMERS OR OTHER MECH./ELEC. EQUIPMENT THAT COULD CONTAIN PCBS

Pole-mounted transformers were observed in the surrounding vicinity. PSI did not observe non-PCB labeling
on the transformers at the time of the site reconnaissance. PS| believes the electrical equipment is the
property and responsibility of Austin Energy, the local electrical utility company, who would be responsible
for cleanup related to the equipment that could not be attributed to tenant negligence. The identified
electrical equipment appeared to be in good condition, with no apparent evidence of staining, leakage,
or corrosion noted. Based on their observed condition and the local utility ownership, the observed
transformers and are not considered to be evidence of a REC in connection with the subject property.
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6.0 HISTORICAL USES

PSI utilized readily ascertainable historical data resources in order to research the history of the site and
surrounding area. The intent of this review was to identify historical tenancies or uses of the subject property
and surrounding area, which might be considered evidence of a REC. Generally, PSI reviewed the following
readily ascertainable historic data resources, where they were available:

Readily available historical topographic maps were reviewed to evaluate land development in the
area over time. it should be noted that the scale of topographic maps in some cases does not allow
for mapping of individual structures and developed areas may be shown by shading only.

Selected historical aerial photographs were reviewed at 5-10 year intervals to obtain information
concerning the development and history of the subject property and surroundings.

PS5l reviewed readily ascertainable historical city directories at 5-10 year intervals in order to obtain
information on tenancies on the subject property and adjoining properties.

PSI requested available historical fire insurance maps from ERIS. The Sanborn® Map Company and
other regional providers historically mapped urban areas for use by insurance underwriters. In
some cases these maps provide useful information in evaluating previous tenancies and uses of
the subject property and surrounding area. “Sanborn”, “Sanborn Map”, “Sanborn Map Company”,
and “Sanborn Fire Insurance Maps” are recognized trademarks of the Sanborn Map Company, a
subsidiary of EDR.

Copies of select historical documents are provided in the report appendix; however, it should be noted that
some of the resources used by PSI may be copyrighted and PSI has summarized these resources herein, but
we have not included copies of these resources in the appendix.

6.1

SUMMARY OF RESOURCES

PS5l reviewed the following resources in order to evaluate the historic uses of the subject property and
surrounding area:

Source Type Years Reviewed Source
USGS Topo Maps "Austin, 1896, 1910, 1954, 1966, 1988 USGS TopoView
TX" & "Austin East, TX" (accessed online on july 2,
2020)
Aerial Photographs 1940, 1652, 1966, 1973, 1981, 1995, 2004, 2005, ERIS

2010, 2012, 2014, 2015, 2016, 2018

City Directories 1924, 1930, 1935, 1940, 1944, 1949, 1954, 1959, ERIS

1966, 1970, 1976, 1980, 1984-85, 1989-90,
1994-95, 1998, 2002, 2006, 2010, 2014, 2018
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Source Type Years Reviewed Source

Fire Insurance Maps 1922, 1935, 1962, 1971 ERIS

6.2  CURRENT AND PRIOR USE INTERVIEWS

P51 conducted interviews with persons who are knowledgeable of the current use and history of the site. The
following individuals were interviewed:

Name Title/Role Date Interviewed Comments
Mr. Joseph Executive Director, | july 1, 2020 Mr. Martinez was not aware of any
Martinez Blackiand environmental conditions or uses of
Commutnity concern on the subject property or
Development adjoining properties. Blackland CDC
Corporation does not use or store petroleum
chemicais or hazardous chemicals of
concern,

He believes that the Blackland CDC has
owned the property since
approximately 2001 and that it was
purchased form Fannie Mae, Blackland
CDC owns the adjoining three lots. Prior
to Blackland CDC, he indicated that the
subject property was vacant and had
some household type non-hazardous
debris on site. Blackland CDC moved the
current residential structures on the
subject property and adjoining property
for use as housing and office space. The
Phase | ESA is intended to satisfy the
requirements of future lenders for a
proposed multi-family housing
development in the back of the subject

property.

No evidence of RECs were identified as a result of the interviews conducted during this assessment. Complete
records of communication detailing information obtained and reviewed, have been appended to this report.
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6.3  PRIOR INVESTIGATIONS

The client did not provide PSI with prior environmental or geotechnical reports, permits or registrations, or
other pertinent information regarding the history of the site for review.

6.4  CITY DIRECTORIES

The following table lists the chronological city directories for the subject property and immediately adjoining
properties.
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Property Address: Listing Description by Year
Subject Property 1900 E. 22nd Street
1994/95: NP

1989790 - 1984/85: No Listing
1980: Alfred E Lee

1976: Pear] Sims

1970: Stella Wilson

1959 Holman Bertha

1954: Calvert Mahaly Mrs
1949: Marshal Kermit

1944: Fitzhugh Maggie

1940 - 1935: Johnson Jos ©
1930 - 1924: Unlisted

1902 E. 22nd Street

2018: Blackland Community Development Corporation
2014 - 1924: Unlisted

1904 E. 22nd Street

2018 - 1998: Unlisted
1994/95: NP

18989/90: B - Rhonda Musgrove
1984/85 - 1924: Unlisted
1906 E. 22nd Street

2018 - 1998: Unlisted
1994/95: NP

1989/90: No Listing
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Property

Address: Listing Description by Year

1984/85 - 1949: Fannie M. Stewart

1944: Alexander | D

1940 - 1924: Unlisted
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Property

Address: Listing Description by Year

North

1809 Manor Road (Further Northwest Across Chicon Street)

2018 - 2014 El Chile Cafe y Cantina

2002: Gaby And Mo's

1998: The Seventh Flame, The Manor Road Coffeehouse
1994-95: Building, A- Black Hair Unlimited, B- Raymond's TV Service
1989-90: A- Black Hair Unlimited, B- Raymond's TV Service
984-85: A- Spocks Upholstery, B- Raymond's TV Services
1980: B- Raymond's TV Service

1970-1966: Standard Automotive

1959-1940: Swinney Clayton Co

1935: Vacant

1930 - 1924 Unlisted

1815 Manor Road (Northwest Across Chicon Street)
2018 - 1989/90: Unlisted

1984/85 - 1980: Monroe'’s Auto Repair

1976: A Marshall Trucking

1970-1959: Phillips 66 Service Station

1944: Vacant

1940: Smith Roy

1935 - 1924: Unlisted

1901 Manor Road

2018 - 1998: Unlisted

1994/95 - 1966: Howard S Walton

1959: Freeman Nelson
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Property

Address: Listing Description by Year

1954: Walton Stacy H
1949: Freeman Nelson
1944 - 1935: Walter Carrie
1930 - 1924; Unlisted

1803 Manor Road

2018 - 1976: Unlisted

1970 - 1966: Elzie Jones

1959 - 1954: Washington Vada L
1949 - 1924: Unlisted

1917 Manor Road

2018 - 2014: Salty Sow

2010 - 2006; El Gringo

2002: Kum By Yah

1998: Private 1daho

1994/95 - 1989/90: S & M Catering
1984/85-1980: Unlisted

1976: Auto & Stereo Co-op

1976: Community Auto Co-op
1970 - 1966: Shaws Food Store
1959 - 1949: Shaw's Food Store & Bar-B-Q
1944 - 1940: Macom Jos G

1935: Vacant

1930 - 1924: Unlisted
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Property Address: Listing Description by Year
East 1908 E. 22nd Street
2018 - 1924: No Listings
South 1907 E. 22nd Street

2018 - 1998:; Unlisted

1994/95 - 1949: | D ALEXANDER

1944 - 1940: Unlisted

1935; Edmerson | R

1930 - 1924: Unlisted

1903 E. 22nd Street

2018 - 1998: Unlisted

1994/95: Lewis Roland

1989790 - 1980: Lewis Roland

1976 - 1970: Multi Tenant Residential
1966: unlisted

1959: B- Lewis Arth; A- Lott Howard Mo; Vacant

1954: B- Hill Janelie Mrs; A- Roberts Charlie; Carrington Elva Mrs Beauty
Shop; Carrington Ralph

1949: Golden Pearl

1944 - 1240: Golden Hudie

1940 - 1924: Unlisted
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Property

Address: Listing Description by Year

West

1808 E. 22nd Street

2018-1998: Unlisted

1994/95: Multi Tenant Residential
1989/90 - 1984/85: Dorothy Black
1980: Marie Rhone

1976 - 1959: Proutt Lang

1954 - 1935: Atkinson H P

1930 - 1924: Unlisted

6.5 SUMMARY HISTORY OF SITE AND SURROUNDING AREA

A chronological summary of the history/use of the subject property and immediately adjacent properties is
provided in the following table.

Date

Resource Interpreted Use/Observations

SUBJECT PROPERTY

1896, 1910, 1954,
1966, 1988

Topographic Maps | 1896: No structures or special features of environmental
concern were mapped.

1910: A structure was present on the central portion of the
subject property.

1954-1988: Red shading, indicating dense urban
development, was present.

1922, 1935, 1962,
1871

Fire Insurance 1922-1935: A single family residential structure or dwelling
Maps was present at 1200 E. 22nd Streetin 1922 and 1900 E. 22nd
Streetin 1935.

1962-1971: A second dwelling was present at the central lot
now identified as 1906 E. 22nd Street.
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Date Resource interpreted Use/Observations
1940, 1952, 1966, Aerial 1940: An apparent residential structure was present on the
1973, 1981, 1995, Photographs southwest corner lot. The central and east lot were primarily

2004, 2005, 2010,
2012, 2014, 2015,
2016, 2018

cleared and vacant.

1952-1981: A second residential structure was present on the
central lot.

1995-2005: A third residential structure was present on the
east lot. Vegetation or tree canopy cover obscured the subject
property structures.

2010-2012: At least by this time, the structure on the west lot
was absent.

2014-2018: The conservatory or garden on the west lot and
the parking lot around the central lot appears to have been
present with the current configuration.

2020

Site
Reconnaisance

The subject property was developed with the Fannie Mae
Conservatory garden, a single family residential structure
used as an office space for Blackland CDC, and a two story
multi-family residential structure.

NORTH AD)OINING PROPERTY

1896, 1910, 1554,
1966, 1988

' Topographic Maps

1896: Four structures were mapped followed by a road.
1910: Three structures were mapped.

1954-1988: Red shading, indicating dense urban
development, was present.

1922, 1935, 1962,
1971

Fire Insurance
Maps

1922-1935: An alley followed by a residential structure or
dwelling was present on the northwest portion, and two
dwellings were present on the northeast portion. Manor Road
was identified further north.

1962-1971: Three more dwellings were present on the west,
north central, and east portions. A commercial store was
present on the northeast corner. To the northwest, a UST
filling station was present.
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Date Resource Interpreted Use/Observations
1940, 1952, 1966, Aerial 1940: Residential structures were apparent.
1973, 1981, 1995, Photographs

2004, 2005, 2010,
2012, 2014, 2015,
2016, 2018

1952-1981: Commercial retail stores were present along
Manor Road and replaced prior residential structures. A
commercial structure, currently the Salty Sow restaurant,
appears to have been present immediately adjoining to the
north.

1995: Further northwest across Chicon Street, the property
parking [ot appears to have been cleared with soil
disturbances.

2004-2005: Further northwest across Chicon Street, the
property parking lot appears to have been repaved with both
concrete and asphalt.

2010-2016: The property immediately adjoining property to
the north was developed with the current configuration; the
vegetation was cleared and a paved parking lot was apparent.

2018: Further northeast across Poquito Street, the property
was undergoing a major redevelopment.

2020

Site
Reconnaisance

The north adjoining property consisted of three structures for
the Salty Sow restaurant on the east portion and the
associated parking ot followed by Manor Road. The alley was
still present between the subject property and north adjoining

property.

EAS

T AD)OINING PROPERTY

1896, 1910, 1954,
1966, 1988

Topographic Maps

1896-1910: Vacant lot followed by a road followed by more
apparent vacant land. No structures or special features of
environmental concern were mapped.

1954-1988: Red shading, indicating dense urban
development, and a church was present.

1922, 1935, 1962,
1971

Fire Insurance
Maps

1922-1962: A single family residential structure or dwelling
was present followed by Poquito folowed by a Baptist
Church.

1971: A second dwelling was present immediately east
adjoining.
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Date Resource Interpreted Use/Observations
1940, 1952, 1966, Aerial 1940: The existing roads were present. The properties appear
1973, 1981, 1995, Photographs to have been used as single family residences.

2004, 2005, 2010,
2012, 2014, 2015,
2016, 2018

1952: Across Poquito Street, the closest residential structure
was absent.

1966: A residential structure on the middle lot across Poquito
Street was absent.

1973-2015: A non-residential structure was present, likely the
church from the topographic map.

2016: Across Poquito Street, the closest church structure was
absent.

2018: Across Poquito Street, the prior church property was
cleared and appeared to be used as a construction staging
area.

2020

Site
Reconnaisance

An apparent single family residential property was present
followed by Poquito Street,

SOUTH ADJOINING PROPERTY

1896, 1910, 1954,
1566, 1988

Topographic Maps

1896-1910: A road was present followed by primarily a vacant
lot with one structure on the central portion near the south
property boundary.

1954-1988: Red shading, indicating dense urban
development, was present.

1922, 1935, 1962,
1971

Fire Insurance
Maps

1922: East 22nd Street was present followed by vacant lots
with residential structures further to the southwest and
southeast,

1935: A dwelling was present on the west and central-east
portions.

1962-1971: Approximately seven dwellings and a garage were
present.

1940, 1652, 1966,
1973, 1981, 1995,
2004, 2005, 2010,
2012, 2014, 2015,
2016, 2018

Aerial
Photographs

1940-2018: The existing roads were present. The south
adjoining properties appear to have been used as single or
multi-family residential properties.
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2020 East 22nd Street followed by four single family residences was
present.

WEST ADJOINING PROPERTY

1896, 1910, 1954, Topographic Maps | 1896-1910: A road followed by apparent vacant land was
1966, 1988 present. No structures or special features of environmental
concern were mapped.

1954-1988: Red shading, indicating dense urban
development, was present.

1922, 1935, 1662, Fire Insurance 1922-1935: Chicon was present followed by a single farnily
1971 Maps residential structure or dwelling, two vacant lots and another
dwelling.

1962-1971: Single and multi-family residential structures filled

in the block.

1940, 1952, 1966, Aerial 1940-2018: The existing roads were present. The south
1973, 1981, 1995, Photographs adjoining properties appear to have been used as single or
2004, 2005, 2010, multi-family residential properties.
2012, 2014, 2015,
2016, 2018
2020 Site Chicon Street followed by single and multi-family residential

Reconnaisance properties were present.

The subject property has consisted of residential or vacant properties at least from 1922 through the late
1980s according to the Fire Insurance Maps and other historical resources reviewed. Based on a review of the
local tax assessor’s records, the subject property at 1900 and 1902 E. 22nd Street was transferred from Annie
Maxine Ross to the current owner, Blackland Community Development Corporation, in 2001. Prior to that,
these parcels were transferred from Fannie Mae Stewart to Annie Maxine Ross in 1987. The subject property
at 1904 E. 22nd Street was transferred from Fannie Mae Stewart to the current owner, Blackland Community
Bevelopment Corporation, in 1985,

The northwest adjacent property across Chicon Street had permitted UST facilities in the 1950s according
to The City of Austin records discussed in Section 7.2.2 below. The closest filling station was listed in the
city directories reviewed at least from 1959 through 1970, and the filling station was apparent in the 1962
through 1971 Fire Insurance Maps of all the historical resources reviewed. Subsequently, the northwest
adjacent property was used as an automotive repair and trucking business at least from 1976 through 1985
according to the city directories. From the lack of further listings and aerial photographs, the northwest
adjacent property was vacant or used as a parking lot after 1985 through the time of site reconnaissance in
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2020. The database records discussed in Section 7.1.2 below indicate that the parking lot may have contained
USTs and was used by the University of Texas Physical Plant as a parking lot at least in the late 1980s and
early 1990s,

The immediately north adjoining property appears to have been used residentially in 1922 and was first
listed commercially as a grocery store at least from 1959 through 1970. Then, the immediately north
adjoining property was listed as a Community Auto Co-op in in 1976, unlisted in the early to mid 1980s,
and used as various apparent restaurant or catering businesses at least since 1989 through the time of site
reconnaissance.

The east adjacent properties were primarily residential properties and also included a church at least from
1922 through 2015 according to Fire Insurance Maps and Aerial Photographs reviewed. Additionally, the
south and west adjacent properties were residential at least since 1922 from the historical resources
reviewed.
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7.0 ENVIRONMENTAL REGULATORY RECORDS REVIEW
7.1 DATABASE FINDINGS

PSI retained ERIS to provide environmental database information attributed to the subject property and its
surroundings. ERIS obtains environmental databases published by local, state, tribal, and federal agencies
and maps the information for electronic searches. ERIS's service includes reporting Standard Environmental
Records Sources and, in most cases, some Additional Environmental Records Sources.

The search was performed to AMSDs listed in ASTM E 1527-13. The search radius required by ASTM varies by
database.

Unplottable (orphan) sites (if any were listed) having insufficient address information to be mapped were
evaluated for potential location within the AMSD. Those that could be determined to be within the AMSD are
discussed, as appropriate.

The distribution of listed sites with respect to the subject property is tabulated and mapped in ERIS's
Database Report, which is appended. The reader is referred to the table, which can be found near the front
of ERIS's report. The full names of the abbreviations and acronyms used below and in ERIS's report can be
found in the Database Descriptions appendix of ERIS's report.

7.1.1 SUBJECT PROPERTY

The subject property was not listed on the searched governmental databases as a spill site or regulated
facility.

7.1.2 SURROUNDING PROPERTIES

ERIS identified a number of regulated facilities and/or spill sites within the search radius. Those sites that
are adjacent to the subject property are summarized and discussed in the table below. PS| considered the
remaining database listings unlikely to impact the subject property based upon factors including (but not
limited to):

* The nature of the listing;

+ The use of the facility;

* When the facility was listed and its current listed status;

+ The developmental density of the setting;

+ The potential for vapors to encroach from the property to the subject property;

» The distance between the listing and subject sites related to whether releases are likely to migrate
based on local surface and subsurface drainage conditions; and/or

* The presence of intervening drainage divides; and/or inferred groundwater movement.

www.intertek.com/building




PSI Project Number 0435-4512
Blackland Property

July 23,2020
Page 34
Elevation
Facility Name & Distance {feet) | Difference
Address & Direction (feet) Database(s) Comments

Former Fueling North 8 ft Higher | LPST, UST, HREC. Not a REC, See below.

Facility / Arthur P 215 ft Fed

Watson / Brownfields, | Permanently Closed Tank Facility.

Abandoned UST UST Austin City of Austin (COA) USTID | UT

Facility System ID: NOO&3 | 2305

1800 Manor Road

Austin, TX 78722

Capital City Oil Co. Northwest 5 ft Higher | UST Austin Not a REC. See below,

Manor & Chicon Adjacent

Austin, TX Historical Tank Records Available.
COA UST ID | UT System ID: H0674
| 539

University of Northwest 6 ft Higher | UST Austin Not a REC. See below,

Texas Adjacent

1815 Manor Road Permanently Closed Tank Facility.

Austin, TX COAUST ID | UT System ID: NO134
| 2337

Texas Company West-northwest | 6 ft Higher | UST Austin Not a REC. See below.

Manor Road and 277 ft

Lafayette Historical Tank Records Available.

Austin, TX COAUST ID | UT System ID: H0517
| 418

UT Physical Plant Northwest 6 ft Higher | LPST, UST HREC. Not a REC.

Parking Lot Adjacent

1815 Manor Road TCEQ LPST case was closed in 1991,

Austin, TX 78722 Contamination only impacted the
soils. The UST Facility status is
inactive, and the USTs were
removed from the ground in 1990.

Austin Foundation | West-northwest 10 ft UST Austin Not a REC. See below,

Co 406 ft Higher

1803 Manor Road Historical Tank Records Available.

Austin, TX COAUST ID | UT System ID: H0487

| 389
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Elevation
Facility Name & | Distance {feet) | Difference
Address & Direction (feet) Database(s) Comments
Pak N Go / Manor Northeast 18 ft LPST, UST, Not a REC. See below.
Express / Gulf Oil 450 ft Higher UST Austin
Co. TCEQ LPST case closed in 1995, UST
2101 Manor Road Facility status is active, and prior
Austin, TX 78722 USTs were removed from the
ground in 1981 and 1995,
Facility Currently Permitted
Through COA. COAUSTID | UT
Systemn ID: 01809 | 1340
Historical Tank Records Available,
COA USTID } UT System 1D: H0661
| 525
University of Texas 489 ft 13ft [HW, UST, Not a REC, See beiow.
Main Campus / West-northwest Higher LPST, RCRA
Physical Plant 5QG Vioiations are associated with the
1800 Manor Road RCRA-SQG facility registration (EPA
Austin, TX ID TXDS88063731).

Former Fueling Facility / Arthur P Watson / 1900 Manor Road
This site is listed in the UST, LPST, City of Austin UST, and Federal Brownfields databases. The site is located

approximately 215 ft to the north across Manor Road from the subject property. The site consists of
approximately 0.27 acres and was impacted by petroleum products.

The TCEQ maintains the UST and LPST databases regarding the presence of registered petroleum storage
tanks and associated releases. The LPST case initial assessment for the prioritization of the cleanup was
described as, "No groundwater impact no apparent threats or impacts to receptors.” The LPST case or
petroleum release was reported in March 2008 and achieved regulatory closure in December 2017. The LPST
ID number is 117899, and the former facility number is 23278. The USTs were reportedly installed in 1952,
registered in 1986, and removed from the ground in 2008. Tank 1 had an approximately 550 gallon capacity
and held used oil, and tank 2 had an approximately 2,000 gallon capacity and held gasoline.

Brownfields are real property, the expansion, redevelopment, or reuse of which may be complicated by
the presence or potential presence of a hazardous substance, poilutant, or contaminant. Cleaning up and -
reinvesting in these properties protects the environment, reduces blight, and takes development pressures
off green spaces and working lands. This database is made available by the United States Environmental
Protection Agency (EPA). The Federal Brownfields EPA ID number is 49541, From the ERIS database report,
the assessment started in September 2006; the cleanup started and was completed in 2008; and the
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redevelopment started in january 2011.

This former fueling facility does not represent evidence of a REC based on the separation distance from the
subject property, closure of the LPST case, the cleanup status in the Brownfields program, and the removal
of the USTs and lack of active USTs. The LPST case and Brownfields listing do appear to represent evidence of
an HREC in connection with the subject property; however, the TCEQ file room is closed from the emergency
declaration regarding coronavirus, and records were not available for review.

The City of Austin UST listing was described as a permanently closed tank facility with little other information
documented. Based on the separation distance and time since these USTs were in operation, the historic City
of Austin UST registration does not represent evidence of RECs in connection with the subject. Further, the
property has been redeveloped.

Capital City Oil Cq. / SW Corner gf Manor. & Chicon

The City of Austin UST listing was described as a new filling station that was council approved in October 1956
on the southwest corner of the intersection of Manor Rd. & Chicon Street. This facility was located adjacent
to the northwest of the subject property across Chicon Street. The site has been redeveloped as a parking
lot and restaurant, currently El Chile Cafe Y Cantina. This historic UST listing does not represent evidence of
a REC in connection with the subject property at this time based on the separation distance, time since the
operation of the facility began, and lack of reported releases.

University of Texas Main Campus / Physical Plant Parking Lot / 1815 Manor Road

This facility is located adjacent to the northwest across Chicon Street and is listed in the UST Austin and the
TCEQ UST and LPST databases.

The City of Austin UST listing permit status was described as a Permanently Closed Tank Facility. The site has
been redeveloped as a parking lot and restaurant, currently El Chile Cafe Y Cantina.

The TCEQ LPST ID is 96947 and the facility 1D is 48817. A petroleum release or LPST case was reported in
Qctober 1990. The prioritization of the cleanup was described as, "Soil contamination only requires fult site
assessment [and a] Remedial Action Plan.” The LPST case achieved closure by April 1991.

Another UST facility ID is 50480 for the same physical address. The facility is reported as an inactive fleet
refueling facility that began in August 1989. USTs - with ID numbers 173, 274, 375, and 76 - were reportedly
installed in 1959 and and removed from the ground in 1990. IDs # 173 and 274 capacity and contents were
not listed in the ERIS database report reviewed, ID # 375 contained used oil and had an unlisted capacity. ID
# 76 had an approximately 3,000 gallon capacity and contained diesel,

Based on the database information summarized above, this off-site petroleum release on an adjacent
property appears to represent evidence of an HREC in connection with the subject property; however, hased
on the closed status and lack of groundwater impact, it does not represent evidence of a current REC in
connection with the subject property.
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Texas Company / Manor Road & L afayette

The City of Austin UST listing was described as a filling station that was council approved in December 1951
on the northeast corner of the intersection of Manor Road and Lafayette Street. This facility was located
approximately 276 feet to the northwest of the subject property according to the ERIS database report
reviewed. The site location as described indicates its the same site as the property listed at 1900 Manor and
discussed above. This historic UST listing does not represent evidence of a REC in connection with the subject

property at this time based on the separation distance, time since the operation of the facility began, and
subsequent redevelopment.

Austin Foundation Co /1803 Manor Road

The City of Austin UST listing was described as a private filling station that was council approved in July 1950.
This facility was located approximately 406 feet to the west-northwest of the subject property according
to the ERIS database report reviewed. This historic UST listing does not represent evidence of a REC in
connection with the subject property at this time based on the separation distance, time since the operation
of the facility began, and subsequent redevelopment.

Pak N Go / Manor Express / Gulf Qil Co. / 2101 Manor Road
This site is listed in the UST, LPST, and City of Austin UST databases. The site is located approximately 450 ft
to the northeast from the subject property.

A petroleum release or LPST case was reportedly discovered and closed in 1995. The description of the
initial assessment for the prioritization of the cleanup reads, "No groundwater impact no apparent threats or
impacts to receptors.”

Two USTs were removed from the ground in March 1995. Three USTs are active and were installed in January
1981,

The City of Austin UST permit records state that the Manor Express facility is currently permitted, and the
Gulf Oil Company is associated with historical tank records.

This facility does not represent evidence of a REC in connection with the subject property based on the
separation distance, lack of reported groundwater impact, and closure of the LPST case in 1995.

University of Texas Main Campus / Physical Plant / 1800 Manor Road

This facility is located approximately 489 feet to the west-northwest and is listed in the IHW, UST, LPST, and
RCRA-Small Quantity Generator (SQG) databases.

The EPA RCRA Program identifies and tracks hazardous waste from the point of generation to the point
of disposal. The database includes selective information on sites which generate, transport, store and/or
dispose of hazardous waste as defined by RCRA. SQGs generate between 100 kilograms (kg) and 1,000 kg
of hazardous waste per month. The facility reported numerous RCRA hazardous wastes including and not
limited to ignitable waste, corrosive waste, spent halogenated solvents, spent non-halogenated solvents,
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used oil, various metals, cresol, benzene, and trichloroethylene. Violations were noted in 2008 and 2014
associated with Compliance Evaluation Inspections On-Site with the RCRA-SQG facility registration (EPA ID
TXD988063731). Historically, at least in 1992, the facility was registered as a Large Quantity Generator (LQG).

A petroleum release or LPST case was reported in March 1989. Groundwater was impacted; however, no
apparent threats or impacts to receptors were noted. The LPST case achieved closure by August 2000.

The university is an active UST facility with a record of at least 53 USTs including those that have
been removed from the ground.

The Industrial & Hazardous Waste (IHW) database is maintained by the TCEQ and violations/enforcement
actions were not implemented in this program. The facility initially registered in July 1993, last amended its
registration in in 2014.

Based on the database information summarized above, separation distance and size of the UT campus in
relation to the subject property, this facility does not represent evidence of a REC in connection with the
subject property.

7.2 REGULATORY AGENCY INQUIRIES

PSI requested records or information about the subject property and/or surrounding area from the
governmental agencies listed in the following sections. Information was requested by telephone, in person,
via e-mail or through a written FOIA or equivalent request, as appropriate.

7.21 CITY OF AUSTIN/FIRE DEPARTMENT

PSI submitted a request for information (RFI) to the City of Austin Environmental Assessments Team, which
queries records from the Fire Department for information related to any spills or hazardous materials
incidents on the subject property. The responsive documents are appended in Interview Documentation. No
RECs were identified from the records, which are summarized below.

It appears that 1900 E 22nd St was granted a waiver from providing on-site stormwater detention
(BOG 2015-0020-O, Boggy Creek watershed). The response to the request for a waiver of on-site
detention can be found appended in Interview Documentation. Additionally, 1902 E 22nd St is located within
approved RSMP project BOG RS 2012-0003-W Boggy Creek watershed. A copy of the approval letter can be
found appended in Interview Documentation.

A complaint was registered with the city regarding that condition and signage of an original residential
structure at 1900 E 22nd Street, which was abandoned prior to plans to demolish it in 2005. This portion of
the property appears to be a community garden now. An additional complaint was registered with the city
regarding a broken fire hydrant in 2018. Austin water public works made the repair.
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